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Legazpi Savings B nk ai st provide retail
financial products and services that promote 4
financial inclusion, sustainability and value
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On the other hand, the Bank's deposit level grew by only 4%
or by P84 million compared with |ast year's increase of 23%
or by P365 million. Although the increase in deposit may
seem nsignificant, we take pride that in the height of the
pandemic, the Bank launched the Simple’ Savings product,
a basic deposit account, with the purpose of reaching out to
the unbanked sectors. This is also part of the institution's
wvision of helping the community achieve a sustainable
future

The 2020 giobal pandemic brought chaos & disruption not™
only to the banking sector but to the entire industry as wall.
Legazpi Savings Bank was no exception. As businesses
were either on a temporary shut down or have closed
permanently, the Bank's loan portfolio suffered affecting
severely the microfinance product. :

The year 2020 may not be the best year for LSB. Aparn from
the Covid-19 outbreak, super typhoon Rolly devastated the
Bicol Region. Nevertheless, amidst these challenges, the
Bank managed to have a Net Income before Expected
Credit Loss (ECL) and Loan Modification Loss (LML) of
P24 .8 million. As a result of the extension anc movement of
the amortization dues of the borrowers, the Bank booked a
Loan Modification Loss (LML) net of accretion of P24 4
million. Mereover, the Bank also booked an additional
“provision for ECL of P30.8 million thus total provision for the
‘year was P51.00 million

For the year 2020, Loan Portfolio dropped by 2% or by
P33 million compared with the previous year's growth of"
41% or by P532 million. The declaration of community
quarantine also brought microfinance past due to a high of
P190.9 milion. However, through the government programs
such as the Bayanihan | & |I, the BSP relief and the Bank's
tremendous collection effort, past due went down 1o
P77.1 milion as of December 31, 2020 and remained
stable since then. The resilience of microfinance borrowers
has always been evident, They were able to bounce back
and started paying their dues as soon as they recoverad
All the Bank did was to constantly communicate and give
them the support they need

the Bank's community collaboration did not end with the
isinbution. In partnership with JG Summit Holdings,
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SELECTED BALANCE SHEET DATA

The 2020 pandemic did not hinder the Bank's initiative of
transforming kiosks to Branch Lite Units, For this year,
Malolos Branch Lite Unit was formally opened on
December 14, 2020. As part of its expansion program,
Cainta Branch was also successfully inaugurated on
November 20, 2020. It was also dunng this year that the
Customer Experience Depanment (formerly Digital Market-
ing and Customer Care) was formalized

With all that has been and now looking ahead, LSB is up
and ready to embrace the new normal. We have started
our digitization project with the microfinance online
application. This online platform will be |aunched
eventually with our APDS product. We are targeting a
paperiess process from locan origination to crediting of net
proceeds. We are more confident to achieve these goals
as our new Core Banking System is now cloud-based. We
will also be embarking in mobile banking, digital marketing
and cross selling of various RBank products as approved
by the BSP. Thess initiatives will no doubt get us to the
sustainable future that we all envision of.
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These whole pandemic taught us to be adaptable lo

change.

As one writer puts it, “"Our most significant

opportunities will be found in times of greatest challenge.”
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RETAIL BANKING GROUP

SIMPLE’ SAVINGS LAUNCHING

Probably, the last thing people may think during
this pandemic is to open a savings account and
save money for the future. But if you are able to
save, it would help you recover easier. However,
the question is how about those who do not have
savings most especially those unbanked sector.
Will they be able to survive another crisis or
emergencies in the future without any emergency
fund?

Legazpi Savings Bank sees the value of reaching
out the unbanked people in order to educate them
the importance of saving.

In 2020, Legazpi Savings Bank officially launched
its Simple’ Savings Account product. Responding
to Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP)'s advocacy
in promoting financial inclusion, this Simple Sav-
ings enables Filipinos to have access to banks'
financial services like savings deposit. This is very
timely for LSB to encourage people to open bank
account with a very affordable initial deposit, zero
maintaining balance and simple requirements. The
bank believes that through this offering and contin-
ued program to widen the bank’s outreach, a more
secure and financially stable future is within our
reach.

After the initial roliout in Feb up to year-end of
2020, LSB generates 876 accounts with deposit
balances of P1.9 million.

!
-

e\

Simple’ng’Maasahan.

A woman engaged in Puto making business assisted by Calauag
Branch personnel in the Simple Savings Account opening dunng
its branch-initiated marketing drive in 8 community in Calauag,
Quezon.

LEGAZPI SAVINGS OPEN ITS DOORS IN
MALOLOS, BULACAN

Legazpi Savings Bank (LSB) open its doors in
Malolos Bulacan through its Malolos Branch Lite
Unit — Loan Center last December 14, 2021. The
province of Bulacan is steadily becoming
industrialized due to its proximity to Metro Manila.
it is served by all major banks with more than 200
banks doing business in the province. With the
opening of Malolos BLU - Loan Center, the Bank
will be able to intially service it loan customers
from DEPED (teaching and non-teaching
personnel) in the area via the Automatic Payroll
Deduction System (APDS) and Small and Medium
Enterprises (SME) businesses through its Micro
Finance Loan. Likewise, LSB will be able to
introduce its other consumer loan products such
as housing loan and small business loan.

CREATION OF CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE
DEPARTMENT

With the spread of COVID-18 all across the nation
and entire world, the Bank in response to this
pandemic, decided to have a reorganizational
structure where it can address its clientele needs
in this changing times and situation.

One of the Bank's move is the creation of
Customer Experience Department (CED) under
the umbrella of Retail Banking Group (RBG) last
June 1, 2020 composing of three (3) personnel —
the CED Head and two (2) CED Assistants -
handling these three (3) areas: Digital, Marketing
and Customer Care.

CED caters and find ways in resolving all products
and non-product concerns, inquiries and requests
received via C3 e-mall address and Facebook
Page Messenger. The Department itself serves as
a medium in channelling and connecting bank's
clients to its respective concerned business units
in providing the customer service at its best.

In terms of digital and marketing aspects, CED
formulated and launched the QR Code for GO!
Teacher’s Loan where all public teachers and
qualified non-teaching staff can avail of this
product by simply scanning its QR Code. Further,
the video advertisements and instructional videos
both in English and Filipino languages were made
and posted at Facebook Page and website, and

being played at branches for client's awareness
and guidance for their online application. E-mail
blast and text blast are resorted to when important
matters must be made known to bank's
customers.

Aside from that, CED also makes layouts of flyers
for bank products including its corresponding
advertisements to be posted at Facebook Page
and website. The Branches' and Branch-lite Units’
signages, advisories and other layout requests
coming from each business units are being
created by CED. CED had also a collaboration in
coming up with the layout of Bank's 2019 Annual
Report.

CED envisions to promote Bank's products
digitally with efficient marketing strategies while
not compromising the best customer service to its
clients.

12
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LENDING GROUP

LSB's Lending Group continues to expand it loan
product and services in line with its vision of
becoming a selling organization and bringing the
financial product and services to customers with
trump competition. The Bank expand its products
through opening new Branch and Branch-Lite
units. Embark our loan products and services
using mobile and internet platforms.

AUTOMATIC PAYROLL DEDUCTION
SYSTEM (APDS) LOAN

Despite of the pandemic, APDS loan portfolio
ended P1 billion, or it grew by 16.01% in 2020 from
P868 million in 2019. While past due is well
managed and went down to 4.11% in 2020 from
4.18% in 2019. Booking mostly came from Bicol
Region and slowly gaining market share in NCR
and Region 4. The continued booking was
primarily due to the intensified marketing effort
through personalize service and digital marketing.

Yearly Performance
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MICRO FINANCE (GO MICRO REGULAR,
GO MICRO PLUS, GO MICRO SME,
POWER-UP)

LSB's Micro Finance loan continue to be the
partner of micro and small entrepreneur. Faced by
the challenges brought by the pandemic mostly in
NCR saw its portfolioc went down to P232.78
million in 2020, from P280 million in 2019. In 2020,
we saw Micro finance managed its loan level,
where it focuses on lending to essential
businesses. With adoption of Digital platform thru
E-signature for all loan release documents, as well
as refocused business strategies, we expect Micro
Finance to expand its market in the coming year.

Yearly Performance
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HOUSING LOAN / SMALL BUSINESS LOAN / AUTO LOAN

LSB's housing loan portfolio increased by 65.40%
in 2020 from P50.41 million in 2019 to P83.38
million in 2020. The increase is primarily driven by
active referrals from agents / brokers and
Branches. However, the bank stopped its auto
loan lending, as loan portfolio went down by 9.20%
in 2020. LSB will gradually reduce its auto loan
portfolio in the succeeding years and will focus on

cross selling of the product to the mother Bank. On
the other hand, Small Business Loan portfolio
expanded by 37.78% in 2020 to P22.72 million
from P16.49 million 2019, this is despite of the
pandemic. The Bank will continue to expand its
secured lending to small business loan borrowers
in areas where we are.

Consumer Lending
(In Million Pesos)
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RISK MANAGEMENT

RISK MANAGEMENT CULTURE
AND PHILOSOPHY

Legazpi Savings Bank aims to provide retail
financial products and services that promotes
financial inclusion, sustainability, and value for all
its stakeholders. As the bank take this journey, risk
management will be an important aspect of its
business. The Bank's philosophy includes the
following:

1. Risk standards aligned with internationally-
accepted principles, practices and regulations in
the Bank's day-to-day administration of
performance and risk management,

2. Proactive exposure management using prudent
risk-taking activities which serves as its foundation
of sustainable growth, sound capitalization and
profitability

3. Commitment to create a risk-awareness culture
within the organization by instituting and upholding
the highest standards of professionalism, work
ethics and integrity among its employees,
highlighting the utmost value of risk process,
establishing a solid internal control framework and
promoting the effective utilization of its capital
investments.

The Bank's risk management is headed by a Chief
Risk Officer responsible for overseeing the risk
management function and is complemented by a
team of risk management personnel assigned for
each risk areas. The team ensures that risk

governance and control framework, policies and
practices are in place. The CRO directly reports to
the Risk Oversight Committee for guidance and
direction.

The responsibility of risk management rests upon
the respective Senior Management and Board
Level committees authorized by the Board of
Directors to establish the Bank's risk management
strategy.

RISK APPETITE STATEMENT

“To contribute a Return on Equity acceptable to the
shareholders and at par with the industry by
generating eamning assets, deposits and
fee-based transactions, expanding Bank's
reached to other regions, improving profitability
and asset quality through prudent deployment of
capital while consistently complying with
regulatory requirements” Notwithstanding its quest
for growth and profitability, the Bank would like to
maintain a CAR more than or equal to the
regulatory requirement. This is to ensure that
capital would still be sufficient to meet future
regulatory requirements.

CREDIT RISK

As LSB continues to build its portfolio, it still takes
utmost importance to credit quality, capital
preservation and profitability. LSB’s focus is on
highly retaill loans mostly caterng to the
countryside and market not captured by the Parent
Bank. Ultimately, every loan or investment

decision is driven by its culture of prudence, con-
servatism, active management, excellent due
diligence process, which was instilled by its Parent
Bank. LSB’s strategies which impacts credit risk
management are as follows:

1. Lending or investing on stable and seasoned
companies that are owned or managed by
professionals and entrepreneurs;

2. Ensuring that every loan will provide optimal
return for the stakeholders;

3. Focusing on banner products such as DepEd
loans, Microfinance loans and Housing Loans;

4. Preserving asset or capital through low risk,
adequate collateral or securities loans,

5. Expanding reach through deliberate but steady
organic growth of the loans,; and

6. Seeking for excellent opportunities for loan
portfolio growth by not hesitating to take
advantage of acquiring other banks or financial
institutions (FI's).

The Bank's approach to credit or investment is
generally straightforward, that there
substitute for a sound credit due diligence. Loans
and/or investments shall be pursued not based
solely on the yield but rather on the viability and
stability of a borrower's cash flows. Finally, LSB's
credit philosophy of asset growth and capital
preservation and its credit culture of prudence and
conservatism instituted through the strong
oversight of its Parent Bank which stems from the
long banking experience of its shareholders.

IS no

The Board of Directors, Risk Oversight Commit-
tee, EXCOM, Credit Committee, Consumer Credit
Committee, Credit Cycle Department, Financial
Reporting Department, Risk Management Unit are
the stakeholders who have relevant roles in the
implementation of credit risk management of the
Bank.

Credit Risk Mitigation, Control and
Reporting

The responsibility of credit management rests
upon the following:

The Bank employs the following credit risk
mitigation practices:

« Employing risk acceptance criteria that will serve
as guide in granting loan applications

« Limit setting for the amount of credit risk taking
activities and exposures are monitored to ensure
adherence to such credit limits

« Observing regulatory limits such as single
borrower's limit (SBL), large exposures, and
directors, officers, stockholders and related
interests (DOSRI) ceilings, among others. These
exposures are likewise reported to the ROC and
the BOD.

 Performing portfolio quality reviews to determine
performance of the portfolio along with their
causes and consequences, allowing the
recommendation of appropriate action plans.

« Utilizing credit scoring models embedded in the
bank’s loan origination systems and Internal Credit

16
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Rating System (ICRRS) for SBL/SME and
commercial loans

» Monitoring past due and non-performing loan
(NPL) ratios to measure the quality of the loan
portfolio.

+ Calculating Expected Credit Loss (ECL), relative
to the implementation of IFRS 9, to assess the
appropriateness of loan loss provisions and
determination of risk profile of each customer loan
accounts.

CREDIT CONCENTRATION RISK

Concentration Risk is the risk faced by the Bank
when a number of counterparties are engaged in
similar activities or business industries, activities in
the same geographic region, or have similar
economic features.

As of December 31, 2020, the Bank has a total
loan portfolio of Php1.784Bn (inclusive of the
Php88.76Mn residential real estate loan to individ-
ual household for occupancy). Among the
industries, borrowers from Personal Consumption
have the biggest exposures amounting to
Php1.31Bn or 73% of the total loan portfolio, due
to the Bank's focus on highly retail loans. This is
followed by wholesale and with
Php196.75Mn or 11% and agricultural, hunting
and forestry with Php49.65Mn or 3%.

retail

As of December 31, 2020, based on the Sectoral
Concentration Index (SCI) used in computing for
the Industry Concentration risk, the Bank needs to

provide additional capital charge since the calcu-
lated SCI is already at 55%, which is within the 25
to 100 range wherein the multiplier is 0.08. This
means that the Bank has risk concentration on
Personal Consumption industry portfolio and there
is a need to set up additional capital charge of
Php16.85Mn to cover the risk.

Also, based on the Individual Concentration Index
(ICl) metric used in computing for the top
borrower's concentration risk, it shows that there is
a need for the Bank to make an additional capital
charge of Php3.97Million. This is because the
resulting ICl of 0.15 is within the range of 0.1 t0 0.2
which has 0.02 multiplier based on the above for-
mula. Again, multiplying it from the total credit risk
weighted assets, based on Bank's CAR report
dated September 30, 2020, would result to credit
concentration RWA of Php198.70Million and 10%
additional capital charge would be Php29.87
Million. However, on December 2020, computed
ICl only resulted to 0.10 thus, no additional charge
was made on even date.

The Board of Directors, Risk Oversight
Committee, Credit Committee, Financial Reporting
Department and Risk Management Unit are the
stakeholders who have relevant roles in the
implementation of credit risk management of the
Bank.

OPERATIONAL RISK

The Bank's philosophy of operational risk
management, as adopted from its Parent Bank for
consistency of implementation, has its foundation
in the concept that taking risks is required in order
to seek rewards and to fulfill the company’s vision
and mission. The Bank also acknowledges that
operational risks, which are present in all phases
and levels of every business undertaking, should
be identified and assessed in order to ensure that
effective mitigation strategies are employed to the
greatest extent possible.

The Bank adopts the definition of operational risk
as provided in BSP Circular 800 (Guidelines on
Operational Risk Management), to wit; “Operation-
al risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from inade-
quate or failed internal processes, people and
systems, or from external events. This includes
legal risk, but excludes strategic and reputational
risks."

The Bank further acknowledges that “operational
risk is inherent in all activities, products and
services, and cuts across multiple activities and
business lines within the financial institution and
across the different entities in a banking group or
conglomerate where the financial institution
belongs."

The Board of Directors through the Risk Oversight
Committee, Business and Service Units, Risk
Management Unit, Compliance Unit and Internal
Audit are the stakeholders who have relevant roles

iin the implementation of operational risk

management of the Bank.

As the Bank implements the enterprise-wide
approach in risk management, it has designed a
framework wherein everybody in the organization
is aware, not just of the presence of operational
risk in every process and function, but more
importantly, of their respective roles in managing it.
The Bank implements the three (3) lines of
defense model in managing operational risk:

1. The first line of defense rests with the business
lines which are responsible on day-to-day risk
management. Part of this role is ensuring that in-
ternal controls are strictly observed and practices
within their business lines are consistent with the
enterprise-wide policies and procedures. Further,
senior management is responsible for the
implementation and consistent adherence by all
personnel to the operational risk management
framework.

2. The second line of defense comes from the
operational risk management and compliance
testing functions which are both independent of
business operations. The Operational Risk
Management  Department oversees the
implementation of ORM framework by designing
risk assessment methodology and tools,
coordinating risk management activities across the
organization, and consolidating and reporting risk
information/reports to the Board, thru the Risk

18



RISK MANAGEMENT

Oversight Committee, and Senior Management.

On the other hand, the Compliance Group
conducts an independent assessment of the
Bank’s compliance with relevant laws, rules and
regulations, as well as internal policies to
determine areas that may potentially result in
losses due to non-compliance.

3. The third line of defense is the internal audit
function which provides independent assessments
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the overall
risk management framework and governance
structures. This function reports directly to the
Board thru the Audit Committee.

Overall, the Bank endeavors to establish an
operational risk culture which promotes disciplined
risk-taking and creates shareholder value through
resources efficiency, loss reduction, increased
revenues and lower regulatory capital.

The Bank further acknowledges that "operational
nsk is inherent in all activities, products and
services, and cuts across multiple activities and
business lines within the financial institution and
across the different entities in a banking group or
conglomerate where the financial institution
belongs.”

The Bank uses the same operational risk
management tools with the Parent Bank in identi-
fying and assessing its operational risk exposures.
The levels of operational risk exposure of the

19

varous units of the Bank are captured by the
following  operational risk management tools
which are all anchored from the Parent Bank:

* Results of internal/external audit and supervisory
issues raised in the BSP Report of examination
(ROE)

+ Process Mapping

* Risk & Control Self-Assessment (RCSA)

« Business Impact Analysis (BIA)

« Key Risk Indicator (KRI)

» Loss Events Database (LED) and Analysis

The Bank compares the results of the RCSA as
against the capital charge for operational risk
computed using the Basic Indicator Approach
(BIA) in validating the sufficiency of the regulatory
capital requirements. Under the BIA, the Bank
must hold capital for operational risk equal to 15%
of the average gross income over the previous
three years of positive annual gross income.

The 2020 RCSA exercise yielded net loss
exposure of Php35.42 million. When compared to
the operational risk capital charge for 2020 of
Php44.77 milion derived through the BIA
approache, this would result in a variance or
Php9.37 million or by 20.88%. Based on this result
of the RCSA exercise, the Bank believes that the
capital set aside for operational risk as per BIA is
sufficient to cover for operational risk losses.

The Information Technology & Information

Security Risk is also included/embodied in the
limits of Operational Risk.

MARKET RISK

Market risk refers to changes in the value of
financial instruments held by the Bank due to
unpredictable fluctuations in prices of traded
assets and commodities as well as fluctuations in
interest and exchange rates and other market
indices which affect either earnings or capital.

Specifically, LSB’s market risk is composed only of
interest rate risk, equity price and other commodity
price risk. LSB’s exposures to market risk as of
December 31, 2020 is aimost NIL since most of its
investments, loans and deposit products has fixed
rates and impact of the interest rate risk is further
assessed using the Interest Rate Risk in the
Banking Book (IRRBB) and investments were all
classified and booked as Held-to-Collect (HTC)
securities, thus only minimal impact to market risk
IS assumed.

The Board of Directors through the Risk Oversight
Committee, Treasury, Retail Banking Group,
Financial Reporting Department and Risk
Management Unit are the stakeholders who have
relevant roles in the implementation of market risk
management of the Bank.

INTEREST RATE RISK IN THE
BANKING BOOK

Interest rate risk is a form of market risk but it has
a multi-dimensional nature involving the move-
ments of rates across yield curves (term struc-
tures) of one or more instruments. Specifically, for
the Bank’'s banking book, the lending activities,
taking deposits with different maturities and inter-
est rates, and investing in a portfolio of fixed
income securities, exposes the Bank to interest
rate risk. This nsk may affect the recognition
and/or accrual of interest income and expense.

The repricing gap analysis is the Bank's initial step
in assessing its capital requirement to cover for its
interest rate risk. The Bank recognizes that chang-
es in interest rates can have adverse effects both
on its earnings and economic value. As of Decem-
ber 31, 2020, the Bank's IRRBB risk-weighted
assets and capital charge for interest rate risk in
the banking book amounts to Php45.54 Mn and
Php4.55 Mn, respectively.

The Bank likewise utilizes the Earnings-at-Risk
methodology in assessing the capital requirement
of its interest rate risk exposure, Earnings-at-Risk
(EaR) of the Bank is an estimate of the annualized
maximum change in net interest income given a
specified holding period for a particular time
band's repricing gap, with a corresponding proba-
bility of occurrence in a normal market environ-
ment. On a monthly basis, the RMC is apprised of
the Bank's balance sheet structure, analysis of its
current and projected repricing mismatches, and
potential loss on net interest income (EAR). Gap

20



RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors through the Risk Oversight
Committee, Treasury, Retail Banking Group,
Financial Reporting Department and Risk
Management Unit are the stakeholders who have
relevant roles in the implementation of IRRBB risk
management of the Bank.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is defined by the Bank as the current
and prospective risk to eamings or capital arising
from the Bank's inability to meet its obligations
when they come due without incurring
unacceptable losses. It includes the inability to
manage unplanned decreases or changes in fund-
ing sources. It also arises from the failure to
recognize or address changes in market
conditions that affect the ability to liquidate assets
quickly and with minimal loss in value,

The uses the maximum cumulative outflow (MCO)
as a tool to measure liquidity gaps of maturing
assets and liabilities. The Bank's appetite for
liquidity risk is measured through the limits set for
each book/fund vehicle, and for each liquidity
target. Liquidity risk limits approved for 2020 is at
Maximum Cumulative Outflow (MCO) of
Php 500Mn. The Senior Management and the
Board thru the ROC are kept well informed on the
sufficiency of the Bank's funding requirements,
likewise breaches in limits are properly identified
and reported to Senior Management and ROC.
Preventive measures and/or corrective actions are
required/taken.
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The MCO report as of December 31, 2020 shows
that the Bank's liquidity remains at a comfortable
level. All books posted positive gaps across all
tenors.

The Bank has high volume of liquid assets in the
form of cash, Special Deposit Account,
government securities in HTC. Php555.88Mn or
36% of the total Php1.56Bn loans and receivables
will mature within the next 12 months. These are
other liquidity drivers for the Bank and they are
assumed to be easily liquefiable in 1 or 2 months.

In compliance to Appendix 71 of Section 145 of the
Manual of Regulations for Banks - Guidelines on
Liquidity Risk Management. The Bank computes
for both Liquidity Coverage Ratios (LCR) and Net
Stable Funding Ratios (NSFR) to ensure that the
Bank complies to the minimum regulatory
requirement.

The Board of Directors through the Risk Oversight
Committee, Treasury, Retail Banking Group,
Financial Reporting Department and Risk
Management Unit are the stakeholders who have
relevant roles in the implementation of liquidity risk
management of the Bank.

COMPLIANCE RISK

BSP Circular No. 972 provides that the Bank
should establish a dynamic and responsive
compliance risk management system which is
designed to specifically identify and mitigate risks

that may erode the franchise value of the Bank
such as risks of legal or regulatory sanctions,
material financial loss or loss to reputation, the
Bank may suffer as a result of its failure to comply
with laws, rules and related self-regulatory organi-
zation standards, and codes of conduct applicable
to its activities.

Compliance risk may also arise from failure to
manage conflict of interest, treat customers fairly,
or effectively manage risks arising from money
laundering and terrorist financing activities.
Compliance risk management should be an
integral part of the culture and risk governance
framework of the Bank. In this respect, it shall be
the responsibility and shared accountability of all
personnel, officers, and the board of director

The Bank's Risk Assessment process is covered
in its Compliance Program, approved by the Board
of Directors. The main procedures performed are
summarized as follows:

« |dentification. The Bank identified all historical
risk events from all of the Bank’s business units. In
addition, it identified other business risks and their
sources.

* Measurement. The Bank analyzed the level of
risk associated for each risk event. The level of risk
has been determined using both quantitative and
qualitative measures, Quantitative measures refer
to loss amounts determined to be the

consequence of non-compliance. In cases where
data is inadequate, qualitative measures had been
used.

» Mitigation and Control. Based on the identified
risks, Senior Management takes corrective actions
in order to maintain the level of risk exposures
within the tolerance level. Mitigants are in place in
order to control the risk exposures,

» Monitoring. Senior Management with the
assistance of Compliance Group monitors the
Bank’'s exposure to business risks and determines
whether the said exposure is still within the level of
risk that management is willing to take.

Based on the identified and quantified business
risks, the Bank conducted stress testing based on
severe but e.g..
compliance with all the identified risk events and
losing all legal cases filed against the Bank. The
Bank assumes a yearly capital charge growth rate
of 20%. As of December 31, 2020, Bank's total risk
weighted assets for Compliance Risk is Php38.35
Mn.

plausible scenarios non-

The Board of Directors, Corporate Governance
Committee, Business and Service Units,
Compliance Unit, Financial Reporting Department
and Internal Audit are the stakeholders who have
relevant roles in the implementation of market risk
management of the Bank.
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STRATEGIC RISK
The Bank identified the external risk, disruptions in

the economy, as the strategic risk which may
hinder the Bank from executing the initiatives set
to achieve the financial projection. The Bank
utilizes the full range of available macroeconomic
data and tools to measure the likelihood and its
impact to the Bank's general business.

The Board of Directors, Senior Management, Risk
Management Unit and Internal Audit are the
stakeholders who have relevant roles in the
implementation of market risk management of the
Bank.

This procedure assesses and evaluates the
impact of economic uncertainties to the Bank's
capital adequacy. Advanced quantitative and
qualitative techniques are used in the process to
identify the risk factors involved and to prepare
internal models for the different scenarios and
arrive at the required capital level.

The strategic risk management is an integral part
in the strategy setting, strategy execution, and
strategic management procedures of the Bank to
achieve its objectives. Methodologies were put in
place for the Bank's risk assessment. In this
process, to be able to develop a sufficient model,
the Bank needs to identify the hazards and the risk
factors that may potentially impact the Bank's
capital adequacy. The model covers both the
quantitative and qualitative data collection in order
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to cover the non-quantifiable risk aspects.

A comprehensive review of the forward-looking
economic prospects of the international, regional,
and domestic financial institutions was made to
analyze and evaluate the potential risks
associated with the operations of the Bank. This
resulted to the identification of key macro-
economic variables that was used in the model to
test the capital adequacy of the Bank in the differ-
ent scenarios identified.

The risk assessment methodology provides the
Bank initial effective strategic risk mitigation
process. Measures of certain financial and non-
financial indicators support the  Senior
Management and RMU in evaluating the Bank's
growth. These also provide guidance to the Board
on how to proceed with the Bank's strategies,
either to implement strategic adjustments or put to
end to certain strategic initiatives.

As an additional measure, a more extensive
channel for risk mitigation has been implemented
by the Bank. Every six months or as necessary,
the Senior Management together with the Board
gets to review the Bank’s overall strategy and risk
appetite as to their materiality. Collectively,
decisions are made relevant to the Bank’s financial
performance should developments in strategic
initiatives are necessary. This meeting is used as a
venue to provide a more extensive discussion and
decision-making processes where financial

metrics are discussed under long-term goal
setting. These updates in strategic direction,
depending on the management and the Board,
may then be affected.

A scenario planning exercise was carried out
adapting the macroeconomic risk factors identified
in the Risk Assessment process. The historical
data of these variables were collected from the
earliest to the latest data available. The economic
cycles of the Philippines have been tested and
measured. Likewise, the global and domestic
headwinds that led to the downturns in the
economy were identified. The impact of each
macroeconomic variable is tested against the bust
in the economy, with adjustments due to
seasonality.
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Below are the risk-based capital components, including regulatory deductions of Legazpi Savings Bank:
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Qualifying Capital (in Php Millions)
Tier 1 Capital
Paid-up Common Stock
Additional Paid-In Capital
Deposit for Common Stock Subscription
Retained Eamings
Undivided Profits
Net Unrealized Gains or Losses on AFS Securities
Cumulative Foreign Cumrency Trandation
Others
Minority Interest
Less: Regulatory Adjustments
DOSRI
Deferred Income Tax
Goodwill
Other Intangible Assets
Investment in Subsidiary
Total Common Equity Tier 1 Capital
Additional Tier 1 Capital

Instruments issued by the Bank eligible as Capital

Total Tier 1 Capital
Less: Investment in Subadiary - 50%

Net Tier 1 Capital
Tier 2 Capital
Redeemable Preferred Stock
General Loan Loss Provison (GLLP)
Unrealized Gain AFS Equity Securities
Total Tier 2 Capital

Less: Investments in equity of unconsolidated subsidiary banks
and quasi banks, and other finandal allled undertakings - 50%

Net Tier 2 Capital

Total Gross Qualifying Capital
Less: Total Investment in Subsidia

TOTALQUALIFYING CAPITAL

2020

1,245.96

(574.48)
213

11.93

(0.35)
(111.75)

(2:34)

571.10

2019

1,245.96

(695.61)
41.23

10.20

(0.49)
(26.46)

(1.93)

572.90

Risk-based Capital Ratios:

Qualifying Capital (in Php Milkons)

Tier 1 Capital 571.10 572.90
Common Equity Tier 1 571.10 572.90
Additional Tier 1 Capital - -

Tier 2 Capital 2217 15.44

Gross Qualifying Capital 593.27 588.34

Less: Required Deductions - -

TOTALGROSS QUALTFYING CAPITAL

RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS 2,590.16 2,386.39

Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio 22.05% 24.01%
Capital Conservation Buffer 16.05% 18.01%
Tier 1 Capital Ratio 22.05% 24.01%
Capital Adequacy Ratio 22.90% 24.65%

The capital requirements for Credit, Market and Operational Risks are provided below:

Capital Requirement (RWAs) 2019 2020
in Php Millions Risk Welghted Assets GCapital Charge Risk Welghted Assets Caphal Charge

Credit Risk 2,009.56 2,105.71 210.57

Market Risk - - -
Dperational Risk 376.82 484.45 48.44
Total Capital Requirements 2.,386.39 2.590.16 259.02
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CREDIT RISK

The Bank uses the Standardized Approach in computing its exposure to credit risk. Credit
Risk-Weighted Asset (CRWA) is an important risk measure of the Bank, primarily because it is used to
determine the Bank's minimum capital requirement for credit risk is defined as 10% of CRWA. The table
below summarizes the result of the risk quantification and capital assessment of the Bank’s credit risk

using the standardized approach.

Credit Risk-Weighted Assets (in Php Milions)

Credit Risk-Weighted Asset

Deductions:
General Loan Loss Provigions (in excess of the amount
[ermitted to be included in Upper Tier 2

Unbooked Valuation Reserves and Other Capital adjustments
affecting asset accounts based on the latest report of
examination as approved by the Monetary Board

Total Credit Risk-Weighted Assets

27

Total Risk Weighted On-Balance Sheet Asset 2,105.71 2,009.56
Total Risk Weighted Off-Balance Sheet Asset - -
Total Counterparty Risk Weighted Assets in the Trading Book = -
Total Gross Risk-Weighted Assets 2,105.71 2,009.56

2,105.71

2,009.56

Reconcilliation between the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) capital under Philippine
Regulatory Principles and Qualified Capital for Minimum Adequacy under Base Il are as follows

(in Php Million):
PFRS Capital, 2020 615.48
Difference due to Accounting princip 70.06
RAP Capital, 2020 685.54
General Loan loss Provision 2217
Capital Adjustments (114 44)
Total Qualifying Capital 593.27
Per CAR Submitted to BSP 593.27
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(oot St Doponi
ACCOMPLISHMENTS
FOR THE YEAR 2020

Chspanding lo (ammeniy

Hatod Tabang-Bikolano: Relief Operations

Last November 2020, Bicol Region was barrelled
by Super Typhoon Rolly. Week after that, comes
another strong typhoon named Ulysses. As a
respond to the affected communities, a relief
operation was launched in partnership with the
Gokongwei Brothers Foundation, Inc., Robinsons
Bank Corp., Legazpi Savings Bank, Inc. and
Premium Bikes, Inc. Relief Packs were donated to
Municipalities of Polangui, Guinobatan, Daraga,
Tabaco City, Legazpi City and Albay District.
These were all made possible in coordination with
2nd Distict of Albay Representative,
Congressman Joey Sarte S. Salceda, Ang
Probinsyano Partylist and the mentioned LGUs. A
total of 3,500 relief packs which includes assorted
foods and hygiene items were distributed to the
communities.

Social Amelioration Program Pay-out

On 24 March 2020, the Philippine congress
passed Republic Act 11649 or “An Act Declaring
the Existence of a National Emergency Arising
from the coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19),
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otherwise known as the “Bayanihan Heal as One
Act." The law mandated the executive branch to
provide an emergency subsidy of between
Php5,000 to Php8,000 pesos per month and to
distribute to around 18 million low income
households for two months.

Robinsons Bank was selected as one of the six
financial service providers to disburse the
emergency subsidy under the second tranche of
the government's Social Amelioration Program
(SAP). Among the areas assigned to RBank was
Albay in the Bicol region. Poverty incidence in
Albay in 2018 is 21.2%, with an annual per capita
of near-poverty threshold at Php24,902.

Albay province, assigned to RBank is mostly
mountainous, with scattered plains and valleys.
Transportation within the Albay province is very
limited, partly because of the terrain, making some
municipalities remote and inaccessible. Target
DSWD beneficiary population, those living below

‘or within poverty iine, have low mobile ownership.

Low mobile ownership ruled out digital banking,
and in addition to the challenges in accessing
bank branches because of the remote locations of

the municipalities RBank was assigned to, the
DSWD Field Office then decided to conduct
community-based face-to-face SAP payouts.

To ensure better service in Bicol region,
Robinsons Bank collaborated with Legazpi
Savings Bank (LSB) to execute the face-to-face
distribution of SAP to around 60,000
beneficiaries. LSB, with Legazpi, Albay as its
headquarters has 13 branches servicing the Bicol
region.

To facilitate the flow of the disbursement, with the
goal of being able to distribute in a short span of
time, thirteen (13) payout sites were deployed
around Albay, covering even the remote
areas. The site identification and preparation was
done by the Legazpi Savings Bank (LSB) team in
close coordination with the DSWD Field Office,
the local city government and the local police.
The sites were situated in municipal halls or
covered courts. Assisting LSB in each site were
10 to 12 DSWD representatives and LGU
volunteers were there and served as verifiers and
cashiers while the local police ensured peace,
order and physical distancing during the payout.
Physical barriers were set up to ensure physical
distancing, as a prevention measure against the
spread of Covid-19.

order and physical distancing during the payout.
Physical barriers were set up to ensure physical
distancing, as a prevention measure against the

spread of Covid-19.

With these efforts, SAP beneficiaries from
Albay received their ayuda in a safe and timely
manner, and in locations that were very
convenient for them.

LSB, in partnership with RBank received a
citation/commendation from DSWD-FOS |last
March 26, 2021 during its 70th Anniversary
Celebration as partner in the SAP distribution.

We Care for our fellow Frontliners

PPE Donation

Legazpl Savings Bank (LSB) values the sacrifices
and dedications of our medical frontline
professionals. As we care for their safety in facing
the health crisis, LSB In partnership with
Gokongwei Brothers Foundation, Inc. donated
personal protective equipments (PPEs) for our
health care frontliners. These PPEs includes hair
cap, goggles, mask, and face shield, laboratory
gowns, gloves and shoe covers. Over 104 PPEs
were distributed to hospital beneficiaries such as
Bicol Regional Training and Teaching Hospital and
Bicol Medical Center in Legazpi City, Albay.

In March 2020, Gokongwei Group allotted

P100 million Fund to help fight the impact of
COVID19-Pandemic in the country.
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2K Rewards Points

In communal spirit and taking in mind the Covid 19
pandemic, the Gokongwei Brothers Foundation
initiated a 2k rewards program with its chosen
beneficiaries, Multi Modal Unlimited Skills
Corp. (MUSCO) and Work With Us agencies,
wherein Third Party Employees deployed at
Legazpi Savings Bank can avail grocery items
worth Php2,000 with any JG Subisidiries. MUSCO
and Work With Us are the 3rd party suppliers of
agents dedicated to work along with JG Summit
Employees under Legazpi Savings Bank and
Robinsons Bank's employees.

This Corporate Social Responsibility activity
bolsters Gokongwei Brothers Foundation's
commitment in helping and uplifting the lives of
those who are in need especially given the
difficulty brought about by the Covid 19 pandemic.
Gokongwei Brothers Foundation, through its
various subsidiaries, strives its best that it shall
stand with its corporate ideals in the service of the
Filipino people
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A Fulure-Proof Banking Technology

Cloud banking has become an essential lifeline,
regardless of time and place, during the
uncertainties brought by the COVID-19
pandemic. This has made various transactions
more efficient by a tap-and-go approach readily
available with the internet.

To provide a more robust and automated core
banking system and a new and improved digital
platform accessible to its partners, the Nextbank
Cloud Core Banking System was introduced and
implemented in 2020 despite the challenges
presented by the COVID-19 pandemic to the
global economy.

We are strengthening the trust and relationship
with our customers and expanding what Nextbank
can offer.

#) nextbank
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The Nextbank Cloud Core Banking System is of-
fering continuity of service through its seamless
transition of its entire cloud support group to a
work from home environment. At the same time, it
is continuously reducing the time to resolve any
Issues experienced by our partners and providing
immediate responses to partners' inquiries and re-
quests. In addition to what we normally do, we are
helping employees become more agile at their
own comfort by allowing them to work remotely
during these times of crisis.

Our cloud operations team enjoyed a very suc-
cessful year by continuing to make progress on
the journey towards boosting digitalization and be-
coming a better bank through the Nextbank Cloud
Core Banking System.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(On this page from left to right) (On this page from left to right)
MYKEL D. ABAD - Director, ELFREN ANTONIO S. SARTE - Vice Chairman, OMAR BYRON T. MIER - Chairman, HERMOGENES S. ROXAS - Independent Director, ROBERTO S. GAERLAN - Independent Director,
and ANGELITO V., EVANGELISTA - Director, ERIC B. SANTOS - Director, ANDRO M. YEE - Director, and VICTOR V. LAYNES - Independent Director

*All directors have nominal shares of one (1) unit of the Bank’s Stockholdings
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BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S PROFILE

OMAR BYRON T. MIER
. Chairman, Filipino,
. 73 years old

He is the Chairman of the Board of Directors of
the Bank. He is also a member of its Audit
Committee, Corporate Governance Committee,
and Risk Oversight Committee. He was appointed
as a Director of the Parent Bank (RBC) in 2015,
and he also serves as a member of its IT Steering
Committee, Risk Oversight Committee and an
alternate member of its Executive Committee.
He also serves as an independent director of
RCBC Leasing and Finance Corporation (since
2018) and Paymaya Corp. where he also sits as
the chairman and member of its Audit
Committee and of its Risk and Compliance
Committee, respectively, since 2016. Before
joining RBC, he holds around four (4) decades
of experience in the banking industry, including
Citibank N.A., where he served as Country Risk
Manager in Manila (1983 to 1985), Public Sector
Group Head (1985 to 1987), Country Risk Officer
in Malaysia (1992 to 1995), Head of Risk
Management Group and World Corporate Group
Head (1992 to 1995); Deutsche Bank, as Deputy
General Manager and Corporate Banking Head
(1895 to 2002); and Philippine National Bank
(2005 to 2014), where he held various senior posi-
tions the last of which as President and Chief
Executive Officer (CEQO). He has a Bachelor of
Science degree In Business Administration Major
in Accounting, Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics, and Master of Arts in Economics from
University of the Philippines. He is also a Certified

Public Accountant. He has been in the service for
five (5) years.
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¥ Vice Chairman, Filipino,
61 years old

‘ T,

He is the Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors
of the Bank; a Resource Person of its Audit
Committee, Corporate Governance Committee,
and Risk Oversight Committee; and a Chairman of
its Executive Committee. He is the President and
CEOQO of RBC and is a member of its Executive
Committee, Risk Management Committee, and IT
Steering Committee. He is a director of Bankers
Association of the Philippines and the Chairman of
its Operations Committee. He is also the
Chairman of the Board of Directors of Philippine
Clearing House Corporation. Prior to joining the
Bank in November 2014, he was the President,
Director and CEO of Allied Savings Bank (2013
to 2014); Consumer Finance Group Head (2013)
and Head of Consumer Credit and Collection
Division (2010 to 2013) of Philippine National
Bank; and Head of Consumer Credit Risk
Management Division (2006 to 2010), Credit
Services Division (1996 to 2006) and Credit
Investigation and Appraisal Division (1995 to
1996) of Union Bank of the Philippines. He was
also a Manager at the Credit Information Bureau
(1983 to 1985). He has a Bachelor of Science
degree in Industrial Management Engineering
miner in Mechanical Engineering from the De La
Salle University. He has been in the service for six
(6) years.

ELFREN ANTONIO S. SARTE

MYKEL D. ABAD
President/Director,
Filipino, 52 years old

»
»
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He is the President and Director of the Board of
Directors of the Bank; a member of its Executive
Committee and IT Steering Committee; and
Chairman of its Credit Committee. He is the
Executive Vice President of RBC. Prior to
becoming LSB’s President, he has held senior
management positions in UCPB, International
Bank Exchange, and Robinsons Savings Bank.
He finished his Bachelor of Science degree in
Statistics from the University of the Philippines
and he has a Masters degree in Applied Business
Economics from the University of Asia and
the Pacific. He has attended numerous trainings
abroad such as the Youth Marketing Seminar
conducted in Kuala Lumpur Malaysia and ICAAP
Master Class and Asset Liability Management
seminars, both of which were conducted in
Singapore. He also underwent extensive
trainings on anti-money laundering, corporate
governance, ftreasury operations, and risk
management. He has also completed the
Executive Development Program of JG Summit,
conducted by visiting professors from Harvard
and INSEAD among others. He has been in the
service for seven (7) years.

Director, Filipino,
69 years old

He is the Director of the Board of Directors of
the Bank and a member of its Audit
Committee, Corporate Governance
Committee, and Risk Oversight Committee.
He Is also the Executive Vice President, and
the RBC's Chief Operating Officer until
September 30, 2019. Currently, he is a
consultant of the RBC. He has been in the
banking industry for more than forty-five (45)
years. He started his career with Bank of
Asia, which later became Insular Bank of Asia
and America (IBAA) and has held senior
management positions in PCIBANK and PCI
Savings Bank. He was part of the original
team that organized Robinsons Savings Bank
Corporation in 1997. He was a former
Independent Director of Meycauayan College
and was previously a Director of Bancnet
where he currently sits as Bancnet's OPSCOM
adviser. He graduated from the University of
the East where he earned his Bachelor of
Science degree in Business Administration,
Major in Accounting. He also has a Masters
degree in Business Administration from the
University of the Philippines Diliman. Over
the years, he has attended numerous trainings
and seminars conducted in the Philippines
and abroad such as the ATM Debit & Prepaid
Forum held in Las Vegas, Nevada, US.A.
and the Bank Administration Institute's (BAI)
Retail Delivery Conference in Boston,
Massachusetts, U.S.A, among others. He is
also a Certified Public Accountant. He has
been in the service for seven (7) years.

ANGELITO V. EVANGELISTA
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BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S PROFILE

ERIC B. SANTOS
Director, Filipino,
61 years old

Director of Legazpi Savings Bank, resource
person of Risk Oversight Committee, member of
Executive Committee & Credit Committee. He has
been with the banking industry for over 40 years
and has held senior management positions in
various banks such as United Coconut Planters
Bank (UCPB), UCPB Savings Bank, Planters
Development Bank and Premiere Development
Bank prior to joining the Bank in 2012 as Chief
Credit Officer. He graduated from the Polytechnic
University of the Philippines (PUP) with a degree
of Bachelors of Science in Accountancy. He has
attended extensive trainings on corporate
governance, risk management, anti-money
laundering, leadership, credit, and equity and debt
financing. He has been in the service for four (4)
years.
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ANDRO M. YEE
Director, Filipino,
56 years old

He is the Director of Board of Directors of the
Bank. He is also the Executive Vice President,
and is the Bank’s Chief Financial Officer of RBC.
He joined RBC in 1997 and became the Bank's
Compliance Officer (concurrent Chief Audit
Executive) (1997-2009), Chief Audit Executive
(2009-2010), and Controlier (2010-2013). He also
sat as a Director of Bancnet, Inc. (2009-2011). He
was also the head of the Bank's Community
Banking Group (2013-2018) that spearheaded
RBC's effort to offer financially inclusive products
(i.e., Microfinance and Motorcycle Loans) to the
unbanked and underbanked sector of the society
in the country. Over the years, he has had
numerous trainings and seminars on anti- money
laundering, compliance, corporate governance,
internal  auditing, trust operations and
investment management, IT security, corporate
fraud control, and risk based audit. He earmned
his Bachelor of Science degree in Business
Administration, Major in Accounting, from the
University of the Philippines in the Visayas. He is
also a Certified Public Accountant. He has been in
the service for two (2) years.

HERMOGENES S. ROXAS
Independent Director,
Filipino, 68 years old

N

He is the Independent Director of the Bank;
Chairman of its Audit Committee; Vice Chairman
of its Corporate Governance Committee; and
member of its Risk Oversight Committee. He is
also the Chairman of the RBC's IT Steering
Committee and a Vice-Chairman of its RPT
Committee. He has more than three (3) decades
of experience in banking and has held various
senior positions at Commercial Banking & Trust
Company and United Coconut Planters Bank and
its subsidiaries. He was also the President of
UCPB Savings Bank; a Director at UCPB Leasing
& Finance Corp., UCPB Foreign Exchange Corp.,
UCPB Capital Corp., UCPB Rural Bank, and
UCPB Securities Inc. He has a Bachelor of
Science degree in Business Administration from
the University of the Philippines. He has been in
the service for six (6) years.

| VICTOR V. LAYNES
Independent Director,
Filipino, 48 years old

He is the Independent Director of the Bank; Vice
Chairman of its Audit Committee; member of its
Corporate Governance Committee; and Chairman
of Risk Oversight Committee and its IT
SteeringCommittee. He was also the Independent
Director of Vision Bank (Catanduanes) (2007 to
2009). He had banking experiences in Robinsons
Savings Bank as IT Head (1997 to 2004), Senior
Manager in Export and Industry Bank (1997); and
held various positions in Equitable Banking
Corporation (1991 to 1997). He has a Bachelor of
Science degree in Computer Science from
University of the Philippines. He has been in the
service for seven (7) years.
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BOARD OF DIRECTOR'’S PROFILE

ROBERTO S. GAERLAN
Independent Director, Filipino,
67 years old

He is the Independent Director of the Bank;
member of its AuditCommittee; Chairman of its
Corporate Governance Committee; and Vice
Chairman of its Risk Oversight Committee. He is
also the Independent Director of RBC, Chairman
of its Risk Oversight Committee and
Vice-Chairman of its Corporate Governance
Committee. His career in banking spans over
three (3) decades, working with First United Bank
(1973 to 1979) and with United Coconut Planters
Bank (1979 to 2003) where he was the Vice
President for Branch Banking (2001 to 2003).
He graduated with a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics from the University of Santo Tomas
and Advanced Bank Management from the Asian
Institute of Management. He has been in the
service for three (3) years.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

ROMEL D. MENIADO
Chief Operating Officer
47 years old

)\

He is the First Vice President of Robinsons Bank
Corporation and seconded to Legazpi Savings
Bank as Chief Operating Officer. Before his
appointment as COO of LSB, he was RBank's

Chief Compliance Officer (2013-2018), Chief Audit
Officer & Head of Internal Audit Group (2010-2013)

and Assistant Controller (2009-2010). Before
joining RBank, he was a former Bank Examiner of
the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (1996-2008). He is
the Bank's representative to the Bankers Institute
of the Philippines and an active member since
2011 i.e, a member and/or chairperson of several
committees and became a director in 2016 up to
present. He is a Certified Public Accountant and
earmed his Bachelor of Science in Accountancy
from the Polytechnic University of the Philippines
in 1995 and completed his Masters in Business
Administration at De La Salle University in 2008.
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MA. SOCORRO S. LIGANOR
Retail Banking Group Head
61 years old
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She s the Head of Legazpi Savings Bark Retail Banking Geoup which has faurteen
{14) "t branches and four (4) Branch-Lite She s the Head of Lagazpi Savings
Bank Retll Banking Group and has oversight over fourtean (14) ful branches and
faur {4) Branch-Lite Unks (SLU). As RBG Mead she also handes the Custamer
Expanencs Department which has undar its resporsibdity: Digital. Marketing and
Customer Care. Ehe s @ member of the Executve Commities (EXCOM) AMLA

Risk and Comporate Governance Commiltee, PERCOM |, ALCO and Bids
Committes. Pror to joming the Bank in 2013, she has  vanous exposuras in the
banking industry. Bank of Amenca NT Samp, SA (Manda Branch) -~ 1878 1o 1886
Where she haid positions from New Accounts, Commerclal Banking Group
{Foreign Remittance, Cash Departments and Treasury) as well as Private Banking
as liaison assistant of its BA-San Francisce Branch-Manda basad cienls and 88 an
Account Officar of s Manila Sranch private banking cliemts, Account Officer RCBC
Head Ofice wha together with Ms Yvorne S, Yuchengoo picheerad and aunched
the RCBC Private Banking Group catering 10 Its High Networth (HNW) cliems
{1867 -~ 2000). Customer Care Senace Ofhicer at HSBC. HDPP Card handling
customer cara of HSBC Credit Card. (2006 — 2007) Assistary Vica Presidert HSBC
Savings Bank at its Premier Banking Group 8F Homes Branch (2007 - 2003)
Assistant Vice Presidern Salas Officer Secunty Bark for ts Sucat, ASEANA, Las
Pinas and Ayala Alabang Branches (2011 10 2012) She was tha Executive
Assistant fo e Executve Trustee aof the Ramon Magsaysay Awards
Foundation'Rockefaller Foundstion In 1987 Sha has a Liberal Asts dagres in
Business Management from the Assumpbon Cabiage. Took Trust Coursae at the
Trust institute of the Phlippines, Insurance Course from the Insurance Sendces
Commission. Advance Sank Management 3t the AIM In 2013 Units (BLU)). As REG
Head she also handles the  Cusiomer Expenence Department which has under
s responsibility. Digital Maketing and Customer Care. She is 8 membar of the
Executive Committes (EXCOM), AMLA , Risk. Compliance Committes, PERCOM
,ALCO and Bids Commitiea, Frior 10 jolning the Bank In 2013, she has various ex-
posuras in the banking industry. Bank of America NT & SA (Manila Sranch) - 1979
1o 1985, Where she held positicns from New Accounts, Commercial Banking
Group (Foreign Remmtance, Cash Departments and Treasury) as wel as Private
Banking as kxson assistant of its 8A-San Francisco Mania based clients and as
an Accourt Officer of its Manita Branch privats banking cients. Account Officer who
wgather weh Ms Yvonne S Yuchenpso pionesred and aunched the RCBC
Private Banking Group catering %o High Networth (HNW)  clients (1587 - 2000)
Customer Care Service Ofcer at HSBC- HOPP Card handing customer concenms
of HE8C Credit Card (2008 - 2007) HSBC Savings as Assistant Vice Presicent at
#s Pramier Group BF Homes Branch ( 2007 — 2009) Securily Bank as Assistant
Vice Presdent of Sales of its Paranaque, ASEANA, Las Pinas and Ayala Alabang
Branches (2011 1o 2012). She had a shoel stint as Exscutive Assistant 1o the
Executive Trustes of the Ramon Magsaysay Award Foundaton (that handied the
Ramon Magsaysay Awards in 1987) She has a Liberad Arts dagree in Business
Management from the Assumption College Took Trust Courss at e Trus! Institute
of the Philppines; Insurance Course fram the Insurance Services Commission

She sluo look Advance Bank Management at the AlM in 2013.

ERLINDA O. DEL VILLAR
Operations Head
51 years old

She is currently the Head of Operations which
handles the following units/departments:

(1)Controllership

(2)Loans & Discount Unit
(3)Cash Management Unit

(4) ATM Center Unit

(5) Systems and Methods Unit.

She is a member of the Management Committee
(MANCOM), Acquired Assets and Disposal
Committee, ALCO, AMLC, Bid Committee, CEC,
PERCOM and ITSC.

She joined the Bank in 1998 as Control Officer
and climbed the corporate ladder to Supervising
Accountant, Controller and as Operations Head.
Prior to joining LSB, she worked at Westbank as
Branch Accountant.

She graduated with a Degree of Bachelor of
Science in Business Administration Major in
Accounting from Aquinas University of Legazpi
now University of Sto. Tomas Legazpi, Magna
Cum Laude. She is also a Certified Public
Accountant.

VICTOR C. DELA CRUZ, JR.
Lending Head
54 years old

Currently the Lending Group Head of Legazpi
Savings Bank (LSB) since July 2019. He is a
member of the following committee;

Credit Committee
Executive Committee

Prior to his stint as Lending Group Head of
LSB, He worked as Account Officer of Union
Bank of the Philippines from 1996 to 1999
under the Commercial Loans Department,
Occupied various position with United
Coconut Planters Bank (UCPB). Relationship
Manager from 2006 to 2013 under the
Corporate and Commercial Banking Group. In
2013, He became the Head of Small Business
Loan Department under the Consumer
Banking Group until 2015. He organized and
became the Department Head of Metro Manila
Business Center Department from 2015 to
2016. Head of Consumer Finance Business
Center from January 2017 to 2018, where he
was awarded as the “Department Head of the
Year 2017", also under the Consumer Banking
Group. Started his career at The Philippine
Banking Corporation in 1988 as Account
Assistant. He has a Bachelor of Arts Degree in
Economics from San Sebastian College-
Recoletos, Manila. Born on October 28, 1966,
in Quezon City,
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KEY OFFICERS

ADRIAN T. LLANA
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JASON-DENNIS R. SAMBITAN

3 ,.",.

KAREEN R. VILLAREAL

ROEL S. COSTUNA
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¢

AILEEN MARY C. EJERCITO LAARNI V. ONA CYNTHIA S. BAUTISTA RODOLFO T. QUINTO
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KEY OFFICERS

CARMELA MONICA C. BORROMEO
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ABUNDIO B. BLANQUISCO, JR.

ELEANOR LENI M. ANTE

TRISHA MARIE GERETTE B. GUTIERREZ
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

BOARD GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors of the Bank ensures to
continuously improve its shareholders value and
achieve a successful and long-term business. The
Board is actively responsible to ensure that the
Bank is properly governed and managed to attain
its business goals and objectives. It also has the
responsibility to its customers, employees,

government and the depositing public, in general.

The Board is primarily responsible for the
governance, Including business and risk
strategies, organization, and financial soundness
of the Bank. Corollary to setting the policies for the
accomplishment of the corporate objectives, it
shall provide an independent check on and
effective oversight of Management.

Composition of the Board

As provided in the Bank's By-Laws, the Board is
composed of nine(9) members elected by the
stockholders, three (3) of whom are independent.
All members of the Board are Filipinos and
possess all the qualifications and none of the
disqualifications to hold directorship as prescribed
under the Corporation Code and existing rules and
regulations of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
(BSP) and the Securities and Exchange

Commission (SEC). They all passed the fit and
proper test for the position of a director of the
Bank taking into account their integrity and probity,
physical and mental fitness, competence, relevant
education, financial literacy and training, diligence
and knowledge, and expertise. Th_ey are known for

P —

their independence and professionalism, and
make decisions with complete fidelity to the Bank
while cognizant of their responsibilities under
existing applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Board determines the appropriate number of
its members to ensure that the number thereof is
commensurate with the size and complexity of the
Bank's operations. To the extent practicable, the
members of the Board of Directors have been
selected from a broad pool of qualified candidates.
With this respect, the Board is composed of
non-executive directors (including the Chairman),
executive directors and independent directors. 5
: g ¥

The Chairman of the Board holds the autherity on
the Board and provides leadership to the entire
organization. He ensures that the Bank's duties to
shareholders are being fulfilled by acting as a link
between the Board and Management. He also
ensures that the meetings of the Board are held in
accordance with the by-laws, makes certain that
the meeting agenda focus on the strategic matters
including the overall risk appetite of the Bank.

The Board has sufficient number of qualified
non-executive directors who have been elected to
promote independence of the Board from the
views of the Senior Management. These are those
who are not part of the day-to-day management of
operations of the Bank. On the other hand, elected
executive directors are those who are part of
senior management and involved in the day-to-day
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operations of the Bank. ters including the overall
risk appetite of the Bank.

The Board also has three (3) independent
directors who are independent of Management
and free from any business or other relationship
which could or could reasonably be perceived to
materially interfere with their exercise of
independent judgment in carrying out their
responsibilities as a director. They hold no
interests or relationships with the Bank that may
hinder their independence from the bank or
Management or will interfere with the exercise or
independent judgment in  fulfiling their
responsibilities. They comply with all the
qualifications required of an independent director
and none of the disqualifications as provided in the
BSP's Manual of Regulations for Banks.

An independent director only serves for a
maximum nine (9) years and will be barred perpet-
ually to become as such thereafter. However, they
are not precluded to sit as regular directors.

There was no change in composition of the Board
of Directors for the year.

BOARD MEETINGS AND CORPORATE
SECRETARY

The Corporate Secretary assists the Board in its
duties and responsibilities primarily to the
corporation and its shareholders. In the conduct of
board meetings, the Corporate Secretary provides

directors the notice, agenda and meeting materials
prior to each meeting. Proceedings of the
meetings are property documented and duly min-
uted.

As provided for in the Bank's By-laws, the Board
schedules and hoelds regular monthly meetings
and convenes special meetings, when necessary.
The members of the Board attend regular and/or
special meetings in person or through
teleconferencing and video conferencing which
allows the directors to actively participate in the
deliberations on matters taken up. The Bank
ensures availability of teleconferencing facilities if
and when a director cannot physically attend due
to unavoidable circumstances, the director may
also attend the meetings by submitting written
comments on the agenda to the Corporate
Secretary and the Chairman prior to the meeting.

In 2020, all members of the Board have
substantially complied with the attendance
requirement and actively participated in the
deliberations on matters taken up during the
regular and/or special meetings.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To allow deeper focus and increase efficiency, the
Board has created committees. which are relative
and consistent to the size, complexity of
operations, long-term strategies and risk tolerance
level of the Bank. The scope, authority and




their respective board-approved charter which is
subject to regular review and updated at least
annually or whenever there are significant
changes.

The board has appointed the members of the
committees taking into account the optimal mix of
skills and experience which allow them to fully
understand, be critical and objectively evaluate the
issues. To promote objectivity, the Board has
appointed independent directors and
non-executive directors to the greatest extent
possible and ensures that such mix will not impair
the collective skills, experience and effectiveness
of the committees. Each of these committees
maintains appropriate records (e.g., minutes of
meeting) of their deliberations and decisions,
subject to notation and/or confirmation of the
Board. The records document the committees’
fulfillment of their responsibilities and facilitate the
assessment of the effective performance of their
functions which is regularly and periodically being
conducted.

The Board has established and designated
responsibilities to the following board-level
committees:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

In order to pro-actively asscst the Board ln lts

’Mﬁllmem of its

the Bank’s transactions, it created the Corporate
Governance Committee. The Committee ensures
the Board's effectiveness and due observance of
corporate governance principles, best practices
and guidelines which are necessary component
of what constitutes sound strategic business
management. It creates awareness of corporate
governance within the Bank.

In particular, the Committee oversees the
development and implementation of corporate
governance principles and policies; reviews and

evaluates the qualifications of the persons '
nominated to the Board as well as those

nominated for election to other positions

it

appomtment by the Board decudw tﬁ'e- '

evaluation of the Boar """its committees and
executive mWﬁt; and oversees the
developmqgt and implementation of professional
development programs for directors and officers.

The Committee is composed of five members,
three of whom are independent directors including
the Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson. The
Committee holds regular meetings and may call
for special meetings as deemed necessary. To
properly evaluate its performance, the Committee
meetings are properly and duly minuted.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

OMAR BYRON T. MIER
ANGELITO V. EVANGELISTA

“I‘

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Bank's Executive Committee has been
created as the highest credit approving body of
the Bank after the Board. The Committee
provides the necessary approvals for
applications, deviations other loan transactions.
Resolutions of the Committee may be
overruled only by the Board.

The Executive Committee provides decisions
regarding applications for critical loan accounts

and deviations that require czreful deliberaﬂon,

Approvals made are in con
policies and those require
rules and regulations.

figures of on account or loan product. Credit
proposals and recommendations are being routed
for consideration and approval.

RISK OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE

To aid the Board to efficiently carry out its functions
on risk management, it created the Risk Oversight
Committee which oversees the development and
oversight of the Bank's risk management program
and ensures an acceptable level of risk while
minimizing losses. The Committee oversees the
system of limits to discretionary authority that the
Board delegates to Management, supervises the
system and ensures its effectiveness, provides
and set limits and ensures that these are properly
observed and that immediate corrective actions
are taken should breaches occur.

“The Risk Oversight Committee
which oversees the development
and oversight of the Bank's risk
management  program  and
ensures an acceptable level of risk
while minimizing losses.”

The Board has appointed five members of the
Committee who possess a broad—range of
experhseaswell as,__.f;]'_f - ;




AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted an Audit Committee to
provide oversight over the Bank's financial
reporting policies, practices and control and
internal and external audit functions. In particular,
the Committee aids the Board in monitoring and
evaluating the adequacy, effectiveness and
efficiency of the Bank's internal control system.
Further the Committee assists the Board in
fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with regard to
'mtegri(y of the Bank's financial reporting process;

the independence and performance of the Bank' S

..extemal and intamal auditors: th

the Bank's
requirements.

compliance  with  regulatory

“The Board has constituted an
Audit Committee fo provide
oversight over the Bank's financial
reporting policies, practices and
control and internal and external
audit functions. In particular, the
Committee aqids fhe Board in
monitoring and evaluating the
adequacy, effectiveness and
efficiency of the Bank's internal
control system.” ‘

To carry-out its mandate, the Committee !
explicit authority to any matter wlthiig 1
reference, full access to COOpE
Management and full discret Bh to invite any
director or executive officerto attend its meetings,
and adequate resource: to enable it to effectively
discha,rggj;s;mﬁé‘ti’ons.

As prescribed under existing rules and regulations,
the Committee is composed of to the greatest
extent possible, sufficient number of independent
and non-executive board members. All members
of Committee, including the Chairperson who is an
independent director, possess the required
qualifications and none of the disqualifications.
The Committee holds regular meetings and may
call special meetings upon the request of the

of ehairperson or by at least two (2) of its members,

AUDIT
COMMITTEE

OMAR BYRON T. MIER

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
STEERING COMMITTEE

in compliance with BSP regulations. the Board
has created the Information Technology (IT)
Steering Committee which oversees a safe,
sound, controlled and efficient information
technology operating environment that supports
the Bank's goals and objectives. In particular, the
Committee among others: reviews and monitors
the performance all IT projects; reviews the
Bank's current IT infrastructure, system
performance,
significant issues and eve

associated rlsks and other_

of third-party service providers on all technology
initiatives subject of the service contract; and
reports to the Board relevant and adequate
information regarding IT performance, status of
major IT projects and significant issues affecting
the Bank's IT operations.

“The Committee among ofthers:
reviews and  monitors the
performance all IT projects; reviews
the Bank's current IT infrasfructure,
system performance”

The Committee is chaired by an independent
director, assisted by the Head of IT Department
and executive officers of the Bank. The heads of
Audit, Risk and Compliance are also invited in the
regular and/or special meetings of the Committee
as resource persons.

IT STEERING COMMITTEE

VICTOR V. LAYNES

o T — V) 1
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

BOARD TRAININGS

In accordance with the Corporate Governance
Manual and existing BSP regulations, the
Corporate Governance Committee is responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the
required trainings and continuing education of the
directors. Relative thereto, all members of the
Board have attended the required corporate
governance seminar for bank directors at
BSP-accredited training providers, a pre-requisite
for Monetary Board confirmation. These include
topics on risk and governance, audit and control,
and accountability.

To remain relevant and abreast with the evolving
corporate governance landscape. the directors
attend refresher courses on corporate governance
provided by accredited training service providers.

Committed to ptoviding continuing professional
education and ensuring that senior management
continuously possess the qualifications for their
positions, LSB provides seminars and trainings
given by accredited external training providers
and trainings provided in coordination with the
Parent Bank and/or JG Summit Human Resource.
These are, but not limited to, trainings and
seminars on governance, leadership, risk
management, accounting, compliance and AMLA.
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SELECTION PROCESS FOR BOARD
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Every year, the Bank holds stockholders meeting
where new sets of board of directors are being
elected. The Bank has transparent procedures Iin
place tor the nomination and election of the new
sets of directors to the Board. Shareholders
nominate candidates who shall be evaluated
based on qualfications and none of the
disqualifications per existing BSP and SEC
regulations and a pool of candidates is formed.
Nine (9) will be elected from the pool of

candidates. During the organizational meeting,

chairmanship and membership of the diffs
board-level committees, including principal officers
are appointed, '17

w
Candidates for Senior Management positions are
carefully screened based on their qualifications
and are subjected to the fit-and-proper rule test,
Appointment of Senior officers are submitted for
approval of the Corporate Governance Committee
and confirmation of the Board of Directors, For
positions that needs regulatory approval/
confirmation, appropriate request for approval/
confirmation of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas is
also sought.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The Bank has performance evaluation process in
place to assess the performance of the Board and
its board-level committees based on their

their respective mandates. This is through a Peer
Assessment Questionnaire. Similarly, the
President is evaluated as a member of the Board
and Senior Management, the results of which is
discussed and approved by the Corporate
Governance Committee confirmed by the Board.

COMPENSATION POLICY

The Board of Directors compensation is a fee or
per diem in an amount as may be determined by
the Board which shall be paid to each director for
attendance to any meeting of the Board, subject
to the approval of the stockholders; provided,
however, that nothing herein contained shall be
construed to preclude any directors from serving
in any capacity and receiving compensation
therefor. The Board, as may delegated by the
stockholder, shall fix the compensation and
other-remunerations. Pursuant to a delegated
authority, the Board may fix the compensation
and other renumeration of any Director of any
other officer of the Bank should they be
designated to perform executive functions or any
special service to the Bank. In no case shall the
total yearly compensation of directors as such
directors, exceed ten percent. (10%) of the net
income before income tax of the Bank during the
preceding year.

The Bank's Senior Management and Key
Executive remuneration program encourage the
attraction and retention of high callber
professionals  possessing  the )

experience and capabilities to drive the success of
the business. The compensation structure is
designed to be at par with the prevailing savings
banking industry rates. Consistent with the Bank's
principleof pay for performance and Remuneration
Policy, the Board approved compensation and
BSP approved fringe benefit program consists of
car plan, various types of leave benefits,
allowances and financial assistance in the form of
employee lcans are provided to rank and file,
junior officers, Senior Management and Key
Executives. The health and well-being of a regular
rank and file employees up to senior management
and executives are likewise given importance as
their Group Hospitalization Plan/ Health
Management Organization (HMO) provides
extensive Executive Check-up Package.

Granting of compensation agreements/ offers,
recommendations for annual merit increases and
promotion variable bonuses are
approved by the Chairman of the Board.

increases,

RENUMERATION POLICYFOR
EMPLOYEES

The Bank's employee’s compensation structure is
designed to be at par with the prevailing banking
industry rates. The compensation package is
composed of guaranteed compensation, inclusive
of statutory and company-initiated bonuses. Its
policy is pay for performance or meritocracy,

.hlghhghhed by a compet:ﬁve salary scale, annual

otion which are
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hinged on employee performance and attainment
of the Bank's Key indicator. Competitive fringe
benefit programs such as various types of leave
benefits, uniform assistance, and financial
assistance programs in the form of employee
bereavement  assistance, personal loan,
motorcycle loan, car plan loan. and housing loan
are provided to eligible employees aimed to assist
them in their time of financial need and to improve
their standard of living. The health and well-being
of the employees are given importance in the form
of Group Hospitalization Plan or HMO Card, the
Group Life Insurance and Personal Accident
Insurance and Hazard Pay.

“The compensation package is
composed of guaranfeed
compensation, inclusive of
staftutory and company-initiated
bonuses."

RETIREMENT AND SUCCESSION
POLICY

Except for independent directors who are subject
to maximum term limit to remain so, directors may
remain on the Board for as long as he/ she
remains to be physically and mentally fit and
proper for the position of a director, able to
discharge his duties pursuant to regulatory

i'édixlremants for banks. For succession,

replacement, or vacancy, the Bank's

pmvidaﬂmtvacanciesinmaoardmayhemad.

by-Laws

directors, if still constituting a quorum; otherwise,
the stockholders shall fill such vacancy in a regular
meeting called for this purpose.

Members of the Senior Management are covered
by the rank's Mult-employer Retirement Plan
under its parent company JG Summit; it is a
non-contributory defined benefit plan covering all
regular and permanent employees of the
conglomerate. The Retirement Plan covers early
or optional retirement, compulsory retirement as
well resignation payment schemes for qualified
employees based on set criteria.

coordination wnth,ﬂ the ~Human Resources
Management nt, came up with an
Individual JGSAdvanoement Planning Process to
prepare such candidate to take on the critical
positions in case of vacancies. The development
plan is updated annually.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In compliance with BSP Circular 895, as amended,
all material related party transactions are being
approved by the Bank's Board of Directors. With
this respect, the Bank did not create a separate
RPT Committee. Nevertheless, it has RPT policy

‘which defines related parties which include
director: stockholders or related interests

(DOSRI) of the Bank and their close family
members. It also Includes corresponding persons
in affiliated companies, subsidiaries and affiliates,
any party that the Bank exerts control over or that
exerts control over the Bank, and such other
entity whose interest may pose potential conflict
with the interest of the Bank.

The Board evaluates material RPTs to ensure
that these are not undertaken on more favorable
economic terms (e.g. price, rates, fees, tenor,
_collateral requirement) to such related parties

'  that similar- transactions with non-related parties

under similar circumstances and that no
corporate or business resources of the Bank are
misappropriated or misapplied, and to determine
any potential reputational risk issues that may
arise as result of or in connection with the
transactions. Refer to the Notes tc Financial
Statements for the Bank's related party
transactions.

SELF-ASSESSMENT FUNCTIONS:

COMPLIANCE SYSTEM

The BSP issued Circular No, 747 — Revised
Compliance Framework for Banks as amended
by Circular No. 972, in order to actively promote
the safety and soundness of the Philippine Bank-

ing System through an enabhng policy ar\d

oversight environment, sucn_, 20!
govemed by the mgn standards

collectively designed by the BSP and its
supervised institutions. Toward this end, a robust,
dynamically responsive and distinctly appropriate
Compliance Risk Management System has been
put in place as an integral component of the
Bank’s culture and risk governance framework. In
this respect, it is the responsibility and shared
accountability of all personnel, officers, and the
Board of Directors.

“Toward this end, a robust,
dynamically  responsive and
distinctly appropriate Compliance
Risk Management System has
been put in place as an integral
component of the Bank's culture

Part of the Compliance Risk Management System
is the Bank's strong compliance infrastructure.
The Board of Directors, through the Corporate
Governance Committee, exercises oversight
implementation of compliance policy, ensuring
policies and procedures are followed and
corrective actions are taken by the management to
address  breaches, failures' and control




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

through the Chief Compliance Officer, render
periodic reporting of compliance issues that the
Bank is beset with. As Bank employee, everyone
should conduct business activities in adherence to
high standards of honesty and integrity and shall
abide by the laws, regulations, rules, standards
and codes of conduct and good governance
applicable to our banking activities. This may
cover observing market rules, managing conflict of
interest, proper accounting and recording,applying
best practices, compliance with tax laws,
developing new products and electronic delivery
channels, providing e-banking services and may
also include special areas such as prevention of
money laundering and terrorist and proliferation
financing.

The Bank's Compliance Risk Management
System is anchored on a program that ensures
proper dissemination of laws, rules and
regulations, self-assessment of compliance
therewith, validation of self-assessment and
monitoring to ensure that all are compliant
therewith. The Compliance Unit disseminate laws,
rules and regulations, including revisions or
updates thereon, which affecting the different
operational areas of the Bank. The different
business units conduct periodic self-assessment
of its compliance with relevant laws, rules and
regulations through the Compliance
Self-Assessment Checkilist. Results of the
self-assessment shall then be validated by an
independent testing conducted by the Compliance
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Unit. Any exceptions found in the self-assessment
as well as the Independent testing are then
reported to the Corporate Governance Committee
and the outstanding findings are subjected to close
monitoring to ensure these are properly
addressed. The compliance program is subject for
review and revision as may be necessary to be
updated with new issuances and depending on its
effectiveness to achieving excellent compliance
and monitoring risks.

MONEY LAUNDERING AND TERRORIST
FINANCING PREVENTION PROGRAM

As approved by the Board and required by the
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) and c,onsgter’xt
with the Parent Bank, the Bank is implementing a
program to combat money laundéﬁn’gf terrorist
and proliferation financing. The Program has been
issued and regularly being updated to comply with
Republic Act No. 9160 also known as the
"Anti-Money Laundering Act of 2001", its
Implementing Rules and Regulations, BSP
Circular No. 1022 and regulatory Issuances of the
Anti-Money Laundering Council. The Program is
intended to protect the integrity and confidentiality
of the accounts of the clients, and ensure that the
Bank is not used to launder illicit proceeds or to
raise or move funds in support of terrorism taking
into consideration best practices to combat
terrorist financing.

The Program has been developed to disseminate
information which will help the employees

—

understand money laundering activities and their
prevention, detection and report suspicious
transactions, know better the Bank's customers;
understand the penalties for non-compliance;
conduct the required AML training for responsible
officers and personnel of the Bank; satisfy legal
and ethical responsibilities with a minimal
adverse impact on the Bank's overall daily busi-
ness responsibilities and performance goals.
Moreover, the Program has been promulgated to
protect the Bank as well as its employee's
interests.

Laws governing secrecy or bank deposits have
been strictly being complied with by the Bank
when implementing procedures related to
combating money laundering, and terrorist and
proliferation financing. The Program provides
guidance in complying with the Arti-Money
Laundering Law as well as other applicable
regulations without violating relevant and without
losing or clients in the process.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND AUDIT

The Bank has implemented its internal control
processes which are designed and effected by its
Board of Directors, Senior Management and all
levels of personnel to provide reasonable assur-
ance on the achievement of objectives through
efficient and effective operations: reliable,
complete and timely financial and management
information; and compliance with applicable laws,

reguiations, supervisory requirements and the
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Bank's policies and procedures.

The Bank put in place adequate and effective in-
ternal control framework for the conduct of its busi-
ness taking into account the size, risk profile and
complexity of operations. The framework embod-
ies management oversight and control culture;
risk recognition and assessment; control activities;
information and communication; and monitoring
activities and correcting deficiencies.

“The Bank put in place adequate
and effecfive internal control
framework for the conduct of ifs
business taking into account the
size, risk profile and complexity of
operations."

The control environment of the Bank consists of:
(a) the Board which ensures that the Bank is
properly and effectively managed and supervised;
(b) Management that actively manages and
operates the Bank in a sound and prudent manner,
(c) the organizational and procedural confrols
supported by effective management information
and risk management support systems; and (d) on
independent audit mechanism to monitor the
accuracy and effectiveness of the Bank's
governance, operations and information systems,
including the reliability and integrity of financial and
operational information, the effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, the safeguarding of

assets, and compliance with laws, rules,




The Bank has an internal audit system that
reasonably assures the Board, Management and
stockholders that the Bank's key organizational
and operational controls are faithfully complied
with. The Board appointed an Internal Auditor to
perform the function, and required the Auditor to
report to the Audit Committee, a board-level
committee, which allows the internal audit activity
to fulfill its mandate. The Internal Auditor is being
guided by the International Standards on
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing and
existing laws, rules and regulations. With the
Board appointment, the Chief Audit Officer (CAQ)
oversees the implementation of the internal audit
system, Currently, the CAO has been appointed as
the concurrent Head of Audit of the parent bank.

OTHER GOVERNANCE POLICIES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MANUAL

Consistent with the Parent Bank, the Board
adopted corporate governance framework or the
Corporate Governance Manual (or "Manual") that
embodies the roles, systems and processes in the
Bank. The framework governs the performance of
the Board and Management of their respective
duties and responsibilities to stockholders and
omer stakeholders. The Manual is being
~ periodically reviewed with the objective of

eoriﬂnually ahgning the Bank's policies with the

- BSP and SEC circulars or issuances on corporate

A

A2 "’"' ’J’J ‘La ,‘]L !

ensures that the interests of stockholders and
other stakeholders are always taken into account,
the directors, officers, and employees are aware of
their respensibilities and the business of the Bank
is conducted in a safe and sound manner.

CODE OF CONDUCT

Similar to the Parent Bank, the Code of Conduct
for Employees exists to develop or pattern
behavior according to the Bank's standards, to
ensure professional conduct, and to enforce
discipline and order. The Code is implemented by

the Human Resources Management Department.
Copies of the Code of Conduct are giv

employees upon hiring, while semin:
conducted regularly and regu!ar ‘issuanc

.-f

s of the Code of Conduct
are given 1o employees upon
hiring, = while  seminars  are
conducted regularly and regular
issuances of advisories in order to
further expound on the subject.”

WHISTLE-BLOWING POLICY

Consistent with the Parent Bank, all employees of
the Bank are encouraged and should impose upon
themselves to perform the duty of disclosing to
their immediate superior the existing or potential

-vnolahons and wmngdomgs that they are or may

e of., The Bank's Pohcy on Tamely

known the Whistle-Blowing Policy. serves as a
guide for all employees for reporting matters that
breach integrity.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to the Bank's by-laws and subject to
resolution of the Board, the Bank may declare
dividends annually provided the Bank has
unrestricted retained earnings or surplus.
However, to date, the Bank has not declared any
dlvmn(s’ in accordance with existing laws, rules




Pursuant to BSP Circular 857 entitled BSP
Regulations on Financial Consumer
Protection, Legazpi Savings Bank provides
financial consumer protection in accordance
with the said BSP Circular., The BSP
Framework identifies five consumer protection
standards which Banks must observe at all
times; Disclosure and Transparency, Fair
Treatment; Protection of Clients Information;
Financial Education and Awareness; and
Effective Recourse

LSB established a Consumer Protection Risk
Management System (CPRMS) Guidelines.
There are amendments and updates made to
the bank’'s CPRMS to define the roles and
responsibilities of other business units and
brief description of risk management tools,
process and/or procedures.

The CPRMS Guidelines aims to identify,
measure, monitor and control consumer
protection risks inherent in its operations.
These include both risk to the financial
consumer and the Bank.

CPRMS FRAMEWORK
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The Senior Management and the Board are
responsible for overseeing strategic direction
and governance. They are responsible in
developing the Bank’s consumer protection
strategies and establishing an effective

management oversight over consumer
protection program.
The Risk Management Unit provides

foundation for ensuring that the Bank's
consumer protection policies, procedures and
practices address and prevent identified risk to
the Bank and associated risk of financial loss
to consumers.

The Compliance Unit ensures that the policies
and procedures are consistent with the
consumer protection policies approved by the
Board and address compliance with the
consumer protection laws, rules and
regulations.

The Internal Audit Department provides the
Senior Management and the Board with
analysis, findings, and corrective actions and
recommendations in meeting the consumer
protection objectives.

The Human Resources Management Group is
responsible for a Financial Education and
Awareness Program that ensures that all
relevant personnel particularly those whose
roles and responsibilities have customer
interface, receive specific and comprehensive
training on consumer protection program of
the Bank.

All business units are responsible in the
complete and timely reporting of all request,
queries and complaints (RQCs) received from
all contact points of the Bank. They ensure
that all RQCs received are forwarded to the
Bank’s Customer Care Center (C3) Unit.

Consumer Assistance Management is handled
by the RBG that provides timely and efficient
means for resolving complains with Bank's
financial transaction. Digitization has opened
pathways for Legazpi Savings Bank to build
relationships to its customer in order to serve
them better. The Bank received inquiries,
requests, feedbacks and complaints from
customers regarding its products and services
through digital platforms. Various
communication channels through the
Customer Care Center (C3) such as the
hotline, email feedback forms, website, social
media, etc. are made available to clients so
they can easily contact the Bank regarding
these concerns.

MANAGES
the issues received issues raised by
employees reqarding
complaints received through the different concerns within tha
froem customess andd  channels, ccardinata Bank, and

reports these to the  with concerned units, suggestions for

MONITORS
daily nquaries.
requests. and

RECORDS

from cusiomers

management to and respond to

presade soutions on  clients in efficent

the Bank's prodicts  and projession|

and services to manner within the

ensure service committed

quality ot all times.  lurnealound tima to
ensure customer
satfaction

impravement
Reports are included
In the concerned
uit's perjormance
evaluation,
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ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

EPOSIT PRODUCTS

NOW ACCOUNT

The NOW account is a 2-in-1 checking account
that allows you to settle your day-to-day payables
through its check book and conveniently allows
you to monitor your check issuances through
passbook.

SAVINGS ACCOUNT

Regular/ ATM Savings

An interest bearing savings account that allows the
customer the flexibility of accessing funds anytime

through over-the-counter (OTC) / ATM for both

savings and transactional purposes.

Bulilit Savings

An interest bearing savings account designed
specifically for minors aging from seven (7) to
twelve (12) years old.

Like the Regular Savings Account, it allows the
customer the flexibility of accessing funds anytime
through over-thecounter (OTC) for savings and
transactional purposes.
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Friendly Savings

A Savings Account that allows clients to earn
higher than regular savings rates by maintaining
high deposit balances. The earnings potential is
largely influenced by the amount of deposit main-
tained and the prevailing Market Interest Rates.

SPECIAL SAVINGS ACCOUNT

A Peso Term Deposit account that allows clients to
earn higher than regular savings rates by
maintaining theirdeposit balances for a specified
period of time. The earnings potential is largely
influenced by the amount of deposit maintained,
the tenor of deposit, and the prevailing Market
Interest Rates.

TIME DEPOSIT ACCOUNT

A Peso Term Deposit account that is evidenced by
a certificate of Time Deposit CTD). It allows clients
to earn higher than regular savings rates by
maintaining their deposit balances for a specified
period of time. The earnings potential is largely
influenced by the amount of deposit maintained,
the tenor of deposit, and the prevailing Market
Interest Rates.

lOAN PRODUCTS

CONSUMER LOANS

Microfinance Loan (Go Micro Regular, Go Micro
Plus, Go Micro SME, Power Up)

A loan product managed by the Retail Banking
Group that is targeted to microenterprises. It is
created to provide an affordable credit facility that
will help micro entrepreneurs expand their present
business activities that will eventually increase
their income. It offers better interest rates and
easier payment schemes as compared to the
informal money lenders that microentrepreneurs
currently deal with.

APDS Loans for teachers

A multi-purpose loan product managed by the
Retail Banking Group (RBG) that is targeted to
DepEd's teaching and non-teaching personnel.
Repayment for APDS obligation is drawn against
DepEd teaching personnel's salaries thru
automatic payroll education.

Professional Salary Loan

A multi-purpose loan program managed by the
Retail Banking Group (RBG) that is targeted to
employed individuals. The loan is granted based
on the paying capacity of the borrower.
Repayment are drawn against the borrower’s
salaries and other payroll credits.

Housing Loan
An amortizing term loan facility secured by real
estate properties under the borrower's name.

Auto Loan

A peso loan available to individuals or
entrepreneurs to finance the purchase of
brand-new or second-hand vehicles. Re-financing
of units already owned by the applicant is also
covered by the product.

Jewelry Loan

A multi-purpose loan facility offered to individuals
and secured by jewelry or gold items. The loan is
payable via advance monthly interest payments
with the loan principal payable monthly or upon
maturity.

COMMERCIAL LOAN

Small and Medium Enterprise Loan

A loan program that helps build business by
providing short and long term facilities to Small
and Medium Enterprise to support liquidity or
capital build-up, expansion and acquisitions or
buyouts, among and other business needs.

Small Business Loan

A loan product that is a fully-secured credit facility
(either by real estate or deposits) targeted to Small
and Medium Enterprises (SMEs). In the current
market, SMEs have limited access to credit.

The SBL product aims to address this need by pro-
viding SMEs the cash they need to grow their busi-
ness. Extending loans to this target market will
also help the Bank in increasing its deposits, given
that SMEs represent a huge CA/SA market.
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BRANCH NETWORK & ATMs

LEGAZPI

Regular Branch

Rizal Comer & Mabini Strests,
4500 Legazpi City

TL- (052) 732-3000 to 30005;
(02) 8396-7460,; 0919-063-0926
0919.0630- 944/945

local 8001, (052) 742-1380
0919-0630-0927

ALBAY

Reguiar Branch

738 Building, Rizal, Street

Old Albay District 4500

Legazpi City

TL- (052) 732-3000 to 30005;
(02) 8396-7460; 0919-063-0926.

0919.0630- 944/945 |ocal 80006;

80106
0919-0630-0932

MASBATE

Regular Branch

Units 8&9, S&T Building

Cagba Street

Brgy. Tugbo, Masbate City

TL- (052) 732-3000 to 30005,
(02) 8396-7460, 0919-063-0926

0919-0630- 944/945 local 80010 ;

(056)333-5744
0919-0630-0935

POLANGUI

Regular Branch

Natlonal Road, Basud

Polangui, Albay

TL- (052) 732-3000 to 30005,
(02) 8395-7460; 0919-063-0926;
0919-0630- 844/945 local 80004
0919-0630-0930

DAET

Regular Branch

SUBIA Building J Lukban Street
Daet, Camarines Norte

TL- (052) 732-3000 to 30005,
(02) 8396-7460; 0919-063-0926;

0919-0630- 844/945 local 80008:

80108
0919-0630-0924
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DARAGA

Regular Branch

Perete Building

Sta. Maria Street

San Roque, Daraga, Albay

TL- (052) 732-3000 to 30005;
(02) 8396-7460; 0919-063-0926;
0919-0630- 944/945 local 8002
0919-0630-0928

DASMARINAS
Branch-Lite

WINCORP Building

Molino-Paliparan Road Salawag,

Dasmarinas City, Cavite

TL- (052) 732-3000 to 30005,
(02) 8396-7460, 0919-083-0926,
0819-0630- 944/945 local 80016
0998-565-8874

GOA

Branch-Lite

J. Quinzon Building
Bagumbayan Pequefio

Rizal Street, Goa, Camarines Sur
TL- {052) 732-3000 to 30005;
(02) 8396-7460; 0919-063-0926,;
0919-0630- 944/945 local 80012;
80112

0919-0630-0938

GUINOBATAN

Regular Sranch

T. Paulate Street

Guinobatan, Albay

TL- (052) 732-3000 to 30005;
(02) 8396-7460; 0919-063-0926;
0919-0630- 944/945 local 80007
0919-0630-0933

LUCENA

Reqgular Branch

AM. Lubi Building

cormer Tagarao & Elias Streets
Brgy. 5, Lucena City

TL- (052) 732-3000 to 30005,
(02) 8396-7460, 0919-063-0926,
0919-0630- 944/945 local 80014 ;
80114, (042) 717-6765
0919-0630-0940

NAGA

Reqular Branch

NEA Building, Trnangulo

Naga City

TL- (052) 732-3000C to 30005;
(02) 8396-7460; 0918-063-0926;
09190630~ 944/945 local 80011,
80111

0919-0630-0936

SAN FERNANDO, PAMPANGA
Regular Branch

4 AND 2 Building

Mc Arthur Highway Sindalan

TL- (052) 732-3000 to 30005,

(02) 8396-7460: 0919-063-0926:

0919-0630- 944/945 |ocal 80015
(045) 436-60005
0998-565-8865

SORSOGON

Regular Branch

CBA Bldg. Jamoralin Street,
Burabod, Sarsogon City

TL- (052) 732-3000 to 30005,
(02) 8396-7460; 0919-063-0926;
0819-0630- 944/945 local 80005
0919-0630-0931

TABACO

Regqular Branch

G/F, N.N. Building

AA Berces Street, Basud
Tabaco City

TL- (052) 732-3000 to 30005;
(02) 8396-7460; 0919-063-0926,
0919-0630- 944/945 local 8003
0919-0630-0929

CALAUAG

Branch-Lite

Agravante Building

Rizal Street, Brgy. Sta. Maria
Calauag Quezon

TL- (052) 732-3000 to 30005,
(02) 8396-7460; 0918-063-0926,
0819-0630- 944/845 local 80013 ;
(042) 717-6763

0819-0630-0937

IRIGA

Sranch-Lite

DLS Buiding, 121-Zone 6
Hi-Way 1, San Isidro
Iriga City

TL- (052) 732-3000 to 30005;
(02) 8396-7460, 0919-063-0926;
0919.0630- 844/945 iocal 80017
0958-565-8876

VIRAC

Regular Branch
G/F D&L Building
corner Surtida & Rizal Streets
San Jose, Virac, Catandusnes
TL- (052) 732-3000 to 30005,
(02) 8396-7460; 0919-063-0926;
0919-0630- 844/945 local 80009
0919-0630-0919

CAINTA

Regutar Branch

"ECCOI Corporate Center,
Ortigas Extension,

St. Anthony Subdivision,
Cainta, Rizal

TL- (052) 732-3000 to 30005;
(02) 8396-7460; 0919-063-0926:
0919-0630- 944/945 local 80018
0998-565-8893

MALOLOS

Branch-Lite

MKTJ Building M2, Fausta,
Subdivision, Mabolo,
Malolos, Bulacan

TL- (052) 732-3000 to 30005;
(02) 8396-7460, 0919-063-0926;
0919-0630- 844/945 local 82506
0919-063-0946
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Stockboldess and the Boxrd of Directons
Legazp: Savings Bazk, Inc.

Report on the Audit of the Fimancial Statement:
Opisi

We Bave sudised the fimancial statomsnts of Logazps Sevings Bank, Inc. (s Bask), whichk comprite e
statemaeats of Exancial positica a5 3t December 31, 2020 and 2019, aad e statexneats of incoms,
statemeats of comprebensive income, statemsents of changes in equoty and statecmeats of cash dows for the
year: then ¢aded, and notes to the fimancial statemants, including 3 summary of significant accounting
policies.

Ia our opinion, the accompanying Snancial stasscncan preseas fairly, in all matesial respects, the Snancial
position of the Bazk 23 at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the yours then ended i accordance with Philipping Fimancial Reporting Standands (PFRS:).

Bazi: for Opinion

We conducied our andins in accordance with Philipping Standards oz Anditag (PSAs). Our
respomshilitios wder those standards are funther described i the Awdbtor 's Respornibiliscs for the Awd:
of the Financeal Statements sectSon of onr seport. We are independaant of the Bazk iz accordance with e
Ceds of Eshics for Professional Accomatants in the Philippines (Codo of Ethics) tegether with the ethical
Tequiresseats that ae relovast to our audit of the Esancial statemeats o the Phibppines, 20d we bave
falfilled our othar ethical responsidilitien i accordance with these requiremsants and the Cods of Ethics.
W beliove that the audit evidence we bave obtamed is sufficiens and sppropriate 1o provide 3 bais for
ow opiaica.

Rezponuibilitie: of Management and Thoze Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Mansgemant is for e preparation and fiir presentation of the Saancial statemeats in
accordance with 3, and for such internal coaol a3 mazagemesnt dotarmings is 2ecessary to ezable
the prepanation of fimancial statemmean that we £eo Som matenial misstasement, whother dus to Saudor
esTor.

Is propasing the fzancial statements, managament is rosponsible for assessing the Bank's abilizy to
coations 33 2 going comcem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 20 going concern and ming the
going concemm basis of accomting unless management ethar inteads o Bgaidars e Baok or to cease
operasons, or has 2o realistic altsmative butto do to.

Those charged with governance are respoable for overseaing the Bazk's Saxncial reporting process.

80



81

SGV

fNabtizg abelter
nev b ng sarke

Auditor’s Re:poasibilitie: for the Audit of che Fiznanaal Statemenc:

C=r objectives 2o to obtain reasozable assurance about whether the Snancial statsments 23 2 wholo are
£roo o material misstatemsent, whothor duo to faud or emver, 224 to i3sme an auditer”s report thae
includes our opinicn Reasozable assurance is a high level of assurancs, but is acta raarantes thatas
audit conducted = accordance with PSAs will always detect a mmarerial misstatament whea it exdsts.
Miztatemsents cas anise fom Saud or eover and are considered matenial i€ ndividually cr iz the
agzregate, they could reascmably be expected o influsnce the economic decisions of uiars taken on the
bazis of these Snancial statements.

As part of an andit in accordance with PSAs, we execcise professional udz=ent and mamtain
professicaal skepticiam throughout the andit We alio:

o Identify and aisess the ritks of material miststatement of the Snancial statements, whether due to faud
¢z error, desizs and porfoem andit proceduzes respoasive to those risks, and obeain andit sridencs that
is sufEcicat and appropriate to provide 3 basis for our opinica. The ridk of sot detscting 2 material
misstatement resultng from fand is higher Sax for cos resultax from error, a3 Saud may isvolve
collution, forgary, intentional omissions, mimepresantatons, or the ovarrids of intermal ceatrol

* Obtnin an undersnanding of intermal congol relevast to the audit in ordar to design andit procedure:
22 are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the parpow of expressing an cpinico oo the
effectivensss of the Bank™s internal conwel

e Evaluate the appropristesess of accounting policies mied and the reasonableness of accomnting
estimates and related disclosures mads by mamsgameat

o  Cozclude on the appropriatensss of managament's use of the going concem basis of accousting and,
based oo e audi: evidence oboained, whether 2 material uncertainny exises related to evears or
conditons that may cast signiScant deubt oz the Back's abilizy to continus 33 3 going ceacers. we
conclude that a material wocertainty exists, we xe required o draw amensos in owr auditor’s report o
26 related disclosures in o Snancial statemmants oo, if such disclosues are inadequate, to modify our
cpinion. Our ceachasions are based o the audit evidencs odtained up to the dato of cur anditor’s
roport. However, future events or conditicas may cause the Bank to cease to coztinme as 3 going
comcera

e Evalzate the ovenll presentaton, soucture and contant of the Snancial statements, inclnding the
disclosures, and whether the fzaxncial stataments represent the undarlying tansactons and svents ina
ssamnee that ackioves fair preseatatioa

We commusicate with thots charged with governames regarding, among other mamers, the planzed wope

and tming of the audx and significant audit £adings, including any signiScant deSciencies in internal

coatol that we identify dusing our sudit

SGV
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Report on the Supplementary Informacon Required Under Revenne Regulacon: 152010 and
Bangko Sentral ag Pilipina: (BSP) Circular No. 1074

Crar andit: were conduced for the purpese of formuing an cpindon ca the basic Snancial statemens: taken
as awbole. Toe supplementary information required under Reveans Regulations 15-2010:aNetwe 27 and
the BSP Circular No. 1074 iz Nets 28 to the Snancial staeznsants are preseated for s of Sliag with
tho Bureau of Intecmal Revenus and BSP, respectively. and is ot 3 required part of the basic fiaancial
statements. Such informaticn is e responstbility of S5 masagament of Legazpi Saving: Bazk, Isc. The
information bas beex smbjected to the anditing procedures applied in ouwr andit of the basic Szancial
statements. Io o opmion, the informason i3 Hivly staved. 1 all matenial respects, in relaticn 20 the basic
financial statecneats taken as 2 whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.
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LEGAZPI SAVINGS BANK, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

LEGAZPI SAVINGS BANK, INC.

December 31
2020 2019
ASSETS
Caik and Other Cash Isexas #113,070,533 272,868 361
Dre from Bazzke Seatal og Pilipizas (Note 13) 444.9635.492 391,666 967
Duo foos Other Banks 98,109,462 91,865,631
Securittes Parchased Uzder Resale Ageemant (Note 6) 129,666,175 66,578,028
Imvesmnent Securites at Axsortized Cost Nows 7) 19,998,100 200,309,182
Loxas and Receivables (Notes § and 22) 1,624,458820  1,579.602.409
Property and Equpment (Nots 9) 138,431,131 142,812,646
Izvestment Propectios (Note 10) 105,813,713 1158590079
Defarred Tax Asset (Nets 21) 128,598,596 113377036
Other Assets (Note 11) 18247783 14.986.695
#2.521.392.505 2,789,961 044
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Depozit Liabilitiezs (Notes 13 and 22
Dezand B171,545,768  B175.869.19]
Savizgs 1523699167 1415330652
Tize 362,276,750 380821370
2057521685 1972031213
Accausd Expenses (Note 14) 20,651,593 262930415
Rodosmable Prefecred Shares (New 13) 30,700,000 30,700,000
Other Liabilises (Note 14) $7.037.615 $2.638.101
2,205.910.593 2,122.320.728
EQUITY
Capizal Ssock (Nees 17) 1245960000  1,2452960,000
Defcit (631,839.217)  (5580.805.189)
Susplus Reseove News 17) 6451913 6431913
Remsasuremaent Lozs on Resrement Lishilisy (Note 19) (5.090,784) (3966 308)

615481912

1912 667630316
22,821.392.805 22,759 961,043

667640316

Sev avcompamung Noves 1 Fleassa! RQatenentx

STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Year: Ended December 31
2020 2019
INTEREST INCOME
Loans and receivables (Notes § and 22 B367,743. 622 R320641740
Dwe fomm Bangko Sextral og Pilipizas and other bazks 9,642,645 10,333,621
Secunities Parchased Under Resale Agrsament (Note §) 4014132 3463332
Isvesmnent secunitios at amortzed cost Note 7) 3594339 §330307
384,994,738 3354.789.000
INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposit Eabilises (Notes 13 and 22) 31,717,668 26,757,084
Lease Lability Netes 14 and 20) 4775928 4.334.866
36,496,596 31081950
NET INTEREST INCOME 348 498142 323 667.050
Service fees and commission income (Note 18) 1381573 1672222
Service foos and commiision expents (Noes 18) 4,568,001 £.884263
NET SERVICE FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME
__(EXPENSE) (Note 18) e (3.186,428) (7.212.041)
Gain oo 32J0 of 1zvesTnent JeCunUes At amorazed cost (Nets 7) 2,931,559 -
Pro&it from assets sold (Notes &, 10 a=d 11) 1,846,258 13015692
Gain ca foreclose - set (Notes 10 and 11) 358177 12818272
Loss on modification of leazs (Note §) (79.838.113) -
Micellansons (Notes 18) 17,597 382 14365935
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 288,207,277 356284908
OPERATING EXPENSES
Ceozpensation and frings benede: (Notes 19 and 22 126,080,121 118,133,657
Prevision for cvedit and imspaismesnt losses (Note 12) 51435707 595,843
Degrociation and amertizanion (Nowe 9) 42,713 948 36982560
Security. messengerial and janieocial 35,759,849 458356172
Taxss and Lconses 17427615 25,557.007
Izforasica teckaology 14988225 10236313
Trazsportatios and savel 11355413 17250978
Occupancy and equipmens-related (Nowe 20) 10,734 384 13534478
Power, Bghe and water $,227.197 £935.091
Issuraace 7.846 365 6,537224
Communicastion 3,483,680 4,832,505
Manazement and professoznal fees 1,991,845 1997137
Entertaimmeae, amusenent, and recreation (Nets 21) 1842193 2078971
Mixcellanecns (Note 18) 13,054,219 13 948959
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 346,940,761 307,544,197
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX (58.733.4%9) 48,730,711
BENEFIT FROM INCOAME TAX (Nees 21) (7.699.456) (76.925.802)
NET INCOME (LOSS) (#51.034,028) #125666.513

Sev aooompam vy Noder 3 Flvamaa! RQatemwents
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LEGAZPI SAVINGS BANK, INC.
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Tiore that may mot be reciaoyfed 10 penlit or los.
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS
S CORPRES NG Noves 13 POl Naemeet

NET INCOME (LOSS)
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LEGAZPI SAVINGS BANK, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year: Ended December 31

2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Iscome bofore income 2x
Adastmeats for
Provision for credit and immpament losses (Nete 12)
Deprocation and amortizatios (Nots 9)
Izterest o lease Mabdity (Notes 14axd 20)
Reotrement expeanse (Nowe 19)
Gain e sale of investmant socurities at amortized cost (Nees 7)
Profs Som assets sold Netes 9, 10a2d 11)
Gain ca foreclosare (Notes 10azd 11)

Changes in opscating assets and Habilites:

(®58,733,4%4) 45740711

51,435,707 595,843
42,713,948 36,982,560
4778928 $.334.566
4472827 $.407.881
(2.931,859)

(1.846,258)  (13.015.692)
(338,177)  (12.418.272)

Increase m:
Loans and receivables (99.871,780)  (540.158,551)
Other assets (1.979.993) (3.200.594)
Increass (decrease) in:
Deposit liabilizes 85,490,472 364586324
Accrued expenies (6,295.821) 13341007
Other liabihises (7.797.861) 7.572.233
Neot cash used in cpentions 9,073,645 (86.231,382)
[zcome taxes paid (7.282.240) (8.724.824)
Net cash provided by (uied ) cpsmatiag actiites 1,791 409 (84936216
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
AcquisiSons of;
Preparty aad equipment (Note 9) (20.595.895) (33.711,589)
Scfrwrase costs (Nees 11) (1,359,528) (1,108,893)
Branch licenses (Note 11) (310,000) a
Procesds from sale of

Izvestmeent securites at amortized coit Nee 7)
Izvestment properties (Notes 10 and 24)
Proeperty and equipmant (Note 9)

Repessested chamsls (Nots 11)

183,242,931 -
10,299,419 12.979.410
241,499 2.091.165
14,500 427,000

Not cazh used iz investng actvities

171532926 (18322.907)

CASHFLOWS FROM FINANCINGACTIVITY
Pay=eat of principal porton of lease Labilisy (Nots 20)

(10,492,660) (8.144.547)

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

162831675 (234347.737)

(Forward)

L I

Year: Ended December 31
2020 2019

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING

OF YEAR

Cask a=nd other cash itesss #72,568,361 #70,058.658
Due from Bangko Seatl ag Pilipizas 391,666,967 521,361,553
Dus Som othar banks 91,569,631 65986236
Securities puchased usdse resals asreemment 66,578,028 §£.000.000

$622982987  $745.406.637

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

Cask and other cash itomss #113,050,533 R72.868361
Dus Som Bangko Seamal ng Pilipinas 444 968,452 391.666967
Dus fom other banks 98,109,462 81,869,631
Secunisss prschasod usndar resals agrsement 129 666,175 €5 578 028

785814662 ﬁ%225982 987

OPERATIONAL CASH FLOWS FROM INTEREST

Interest received $3136,658,052 #336,111.8541
Lorerest paid 237,187,846 27.450.469

Sex arcnmpnCng Nots 1o Finandal Nasewernes.
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LEGAZPI SAVINGS BANK, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

Corporate Information

Lexzazpi Savings Bank, Izc. (the Bazk) was incorporated and registered with the Philippine Securnities
aad!uhanmzm(S C) oz May §, 1976. Tze Baak offers » wids mage of financial
sevices that includes checking, savings, special savings, tme, automared telier machine (ATM)
accounts, mavket vendors loan, asncnlam.l loaz, uhrv lean for ex=ployees, real etats loan,
comsuwmption loan, commercial loan, credit line, bills pmdnud Ize, back-to-back loaz, auto loan,
bousing Joan, developmental Joan, and other fimancial services.

Ths Bazk operatss and provides it3 services through 3 network of ninstosa (19) banking units
ncluding its Bsad office and 3 madn branch in the area of Alday.

The Back'"s principal place of busingss is a2 738 Bldg Rizal Smest, Old Albay Distice, Legazpi City.

Rebinsons Bank Corperation (the Parent Bank) acqured effective control and managament of the
Bank oa Decemmber 26, 2012, in accordance with PRilippine Financisl Reportng Standards (PFRS) 3,
Buxinesy Combinatons.

The Parexnt Bank i3 §0.00% aad 40.00%: cwzned by JG Sumemit Capital Services Corperation and
Robinsons Retail Holdings, Inc., respectively. Toe ultmate pareat company of e Bank is
JG Summi: Holdings, Iac.

LE

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Ths accompanying financial statemsant of the Bank have becn proparsd oo a histerical cost basis,
The Snancial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (PHP), the Bank’'s functonal and
preseatation currency and all amomats ave roundsd to the ssarest peso (I). unless otdarwie indicared

Sossment of Complicce
Ths Baxk's SEnancial statemmeats have besa prepared in compliance with PFRSs

Preseataton of Fisancial Statements

The Baxk prezexts its statements of Szancial pouites broadly in the order of liguadity. As analyiis
regarding the recovery or sertlement within twelve (12) moaths after e shatament of Snancial
position date (cwrrent) and mere an twelve (12) mozths after the statecnent of fxancial position dats
(o0n-cTent) is presented o Notwe 16,

Fizancial assets and Snancial liabilites are offtet and the not amonst is reperted in the statemaent of
financial positon if thers is a cumrsatly eaforceabls Jozal right to offiet the recomized amounss and
thers is an mtenson to settle oo A net basis, or 0 realizs the asiet and sets the Labilizy
simultaseonsly.

The Bazk assessed that it has 2 currently eafercsable Jozal right of offiet if the right is Dot contingent
on a furere eveant, and is Jozally saferceabls in the normal course of buiiness, and in the svent of
solvency or bankrupicy of the Baxk and all of the coumterparties. Income and expense are oot offtet
in ths statemeat of incomoe unless requived o parmitted by any accomating standard or intecpretation,
and 2; specifcally dizclosed in the accommting policies of the Bazk

L L

Change: in Accountng Policie: and Dizclosures

Ths accounting policies adopted ave consistent with thowe of the provioms Snancial year except for t2e
following sew, amendments and improtvezuents 10 PFRS, Philippins Accommting Standards (PAS) and
Philippine Intscpretation which becams ¢ffsctvs starting Jazumary 1, 2020. Except as otherwie
indicated, thete changes in the accounting policies &d not have any signiScant impact oz the
financial position or performance of the Bank:

e  Amasndmsats to PFRS 3, Business Combtnznons, Defiretion of a Businexs

e Amsadmeats 0 PFRS 7, Financial Insnements: Disclosures and PTRS 8, Finxncaal Instrumsents,
Inscress Rase Benchoark Reform

e  Amendmexts to PAS 1, Presonation of Financsal Ssatements, 20d PAS 8, Acoourting Policies,
Changres in Acomting Fxamates and FErroes, Defiration of Matersal

o Conceptaxl Famewoerk for Financial Reporting issued oo Maxch 29, 2018

S:andard tat has beon adopred and that is deamed 20 have signifoant impact on the Snaacial
stateneats or parformance of the Bazk is described below:

e  Amgndmeats to PFRS 16, COVTD.19-related Rent Concexsions
mm«:mmﬁouhofwlnm&euamdumsIGaqmu:oa:oa!uu

modiScaricns 10 FOIL CODCSL330DS Anung 25 3 direct consequancs of the COVID-19 pandemic. A
lozee may eloct not to 333013 whether 3 runt concession from 2 Jessoris a loass medification if it

meets all of the following critenia:

= Thke rent concession is a dixect consequence of COVID-19;

= The change iz lease payments resnlts i 2 revised lease comsidematon that is substantally e
saz=e 33, or leoss than, e leass coniidenaton immediately proceding e change:

* Asyreducton in lsase paymeats affects oxly payments crigimally dus oa or befors
J=20 30,2021: 323

= There is 20 subitantive chazge to other temms and conditions of the Jease.

A Jesses that applies this practical expedisat will account for any chazgo in Je2:6 payments
seswitiag from the COVID-19 relaed rant concession in the same way it would accommt fora
change that iz ot a3 Jease modifcation, i.e. 23 2 vanable loase paymen:.

The a=eadmaents are efectve for amaual reperting perieds beognning on or after Jusne 1, 2020,
Early adopton is parmined

Toe Bank adopted the relief granted by e amsndmentn applying sarly adeption beginning
Jazzazy 1, 2020, The adoption of e amendmonts: resulted in an merease in Miscellansons
income amounting 0 #0.62 millica for the year saded Decamber 31, 2020 (308 Note 20).

Significant Accounting Policie:

Eaiz Valus Meassemess
For measuresseat and disclosure puwrposes. the Bank detarmings the fair value of an 33362 or a Labilisy
at initial measurement date or 2t sach statemeant of Saancial position date. Fair value ds the estimated

price that would be receved to soll am asiet or paid 2o sansfer 3 Lability iz an ordecly cansactes
betwesn market participants ar the measwrament date.
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The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the tansaction to sall e asset o
Tazifer e Lability takes place either

¢ In the principal market for the asset or Bability; or
In the abience of a principal market, in the most advantagecns market for the asset or Labzlicy.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Bank.

Ths fair value of an asset or 3 Lability is measured ning the assumptions that market participants
would use whea pricing the azset or Bability, assuming that market paticipants act in thedr economac
best mrersst

If the asset or Labilry measuwrs at fair value Bas a bid and ak price, the price within Be bid-ask
spread that is e ot represssnative of far valus = the circumstances shall be used o measwre fawr
value, regardless of where the mpur is categonzed withis the fair value hierarchy.

A Hr value measurement of 3 soz-Snancial asset takes inro sccount 3 market partcipant’s ability to

Fenerate economic benefits by using the 2:3et 3 it highest and best use or by selling it to amother
marke: partcipant that would use the 3356t i its highest and best use.

Far Vabwe Hierarchy

All 3520t and Mabilines for which fair valns is measured or disclosed in the Snancial statements are
categonzed withiz e far value Rerarchy, described as follows, based ca the Jowest Jevel of input
that 33 sigmfcant to the HHir value measurement as 3 whole:

Leovel 11 Quoted (uzadjuited) mazket prices ia active markets for identical assets or Labilities:

Lovel 2: Valuation techmiques for which the lowest lavel of input thae is significant to the fair value
mexurament i3 dectly or indirectly cbservable. and

Lavel 3: Valuasos techmiques for which te lowest level input thar is signaficant 1o the measurement
i3 unobsenvable.

The Bank uses valuatioa teckaiques that are appropniate i the cucumstances and for whick sufcient
data are avalable 20 measure fair value, maximizing the ute of relevant observable mputs and

miaimuzing the use of unobiervable mputs.

Sauk azd Cauk Squivaleaty

Cask and casd equivalean inciude “Casl and other cask items (COCT)", "Dus from Baagko Seawal ng
mwu(BSPJ “Due Som other bazks” and “Securities Purchased Under Resale

(SPURA)’ with original matwrities of thres (3) months or less from dates of placeznents and that are
subject 10 msigniScant nuk of changes & value. Dus fom BSP includes statutory reserves required
by the BSP which the Bank coasiders as cash equvalents wheres withdrawals can be mads 2o meet
the Baxk’s cash requirements a: allowed by e BSP.

E a1 - Iaitial B o i Sl A
Date of recogmition

Purchases or sales of fnancial inssruments that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulatios or convennon 1o the marketplace are recogmuzed on e serlement date.
Senlement date accounting refers o (3) recognition of an 3336t on the day it is recedved by the Bank,
axad (b) the derecogmition of an asset and recogmition of any gain or Joss on disposal on the day thatit
1 delivered by the Bank Deposits, amounss dus from banks and customers and loans are recognized
whea cal is recaived by the Baxk or advanced to the borrowers.

Imetsal recogration of finanaial tnerumsents
All financial assets and financial Habilites are recognized minally at fair valne plus any doectly
atmibunable cost of acquiition or issue, except in e case of Snancial astets and fimancial Habilines at

fiaamcial assets at fxir value through profit or loss.

‘Day I' difference

Where the Tansaction price in a pos-active market is different from the fair value from other
observable current market Tansactons in the same mstrument oF bazed oo a valuason
teckaigue wiose variables mncluds caly daty fom obwrvable market:, the Bank recognizes the
difference betwesa the Tansacton price and the far valkee (2 "Day |7 differsace) in the statement of
income, unless it qualifies for recogmition as some other type of asset or Bability. In cases where fHair
value is determined uiing data which are not observable from the macket the difforsnce betwean the
Tansaction price and the model valus is oaly recomnized i the statemnent of incomse whea the imput
become observable or whea the imitument i3 derecogmuzed For each tansaction, the Bask
determines the appropriate method of recogaizing the amount of "Day 1” differsacs.

Clhassification and Measuressent of Financial Assets

Fzancial assets ae classiSed in thewr entirety based ca the coatactual cash flows chanctenisties of
the Snancial assets and the Bank's busingss model for mazmaging financial astets. The Baxk classiSes
its Enancial assets into e following categenies: financial assets at faur value through profit or loss
(FVTPL). Saancial assets at fair value through other comprebensive mcome (FVOCT) with recyclng
of cumulative gain: and losses (debt instruments), Snancial assets designated at FVOCT witk o
recycling of cumsazlative gains and Josses upea derecognition (equity Imstumsean) and Exancial assets
mexswed at amortized cost (AC). For purposes of classifying Exancial assets, an instrument is an
‘equity mstrament’ if it is a noa-dentvative and meets the defimition of “equity” for the isuer (under
PAS 32, Financial Inarements: Presensation)), except for certain aca-denvative puttable mstuments
presented a3 equity by the issuer. All other sca-decivative fxaxncial assets e "dedt mstuments’.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Baxk do 20t bave Snancial assets a2 FVTPL and FVOCL

Contractual cash flows characteristics

If the Snancial asset is Beld within 3 buiiness mods! whoss objectve i3 to bold 233ets 20 collect
contractaal cask flows or within 3 business modal whoe objective is achioved by bot collecting
comtacraal casl flows 20d selling financial assets, the Bank assesses whether the cash flows from the
fimancial asset represent solely payment:s of pramcipal and taterest (SPPI) oo the principal amount
ocutstanding “Principal’ for the purpose of this test 1 defined as the faur value of the Examcial asset at
metal recopution and may change over the Life of the Sxancial asset (o.g 1 there e repayments of
principal or amortization of the premium or &scount). Instuments that do act pass this testare
amomsatically classifed at FVTPL.

In making this assessment the Bank determines whether the coztractaal cask flows are coasistent
with 2 basic londing arrangement, 1.6, interest aacludes comsideration caly for the time valus of
measy. credit risk and other basic lending ritks and costs associated with holding the financial asset
for 3 particalar peniod of ame.

Buxinesy model

The Baxk's business modal i3 determuined at a level that reflects bow groups of fmancial assets ae
managed together 1o achieve a particular buiingss objecuve. The Baxk's business model does not
depend oz management’s inteations for aa individual motrument, rather it refers to how it manages its
financial assets in order 0 generate cash Sows.
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Ths Bank's business modsl determings whether cask Sows will result Som collectng conmacmal
cab flows, selling Szancial assets or both Relevane facters coasidered by the Baxk in determining
the busizess modsl for a group of Exancial assets includs bow the performancs of the buiiness modsl
axd the Sxamcial assets beld within that busingss mods] are evaluated and reported to the Baxzk"s key
managenent personsel, the misks thar affect the o of the business model (3nd the fizancial
assens 26ld within that busingss model) and how these risks aro mxzaned and how managen of the

buiiness are commpensated

The business model assessment s based on reasonably expected sceaarion withont taking “wontcase’
OF "3Tess CA30” enarios int0 account. If cask fows after inidal rocommition ae realized in 3 way thar
is differant from the Baxk's original axpectations, the Bank doss not change the classiScation of the
remaining financial 33362 beld in at buiiness medsl, but incorperates sucd informasion whea
333853:0F Dewly oniginated or nowly purchased Snancial asiets going forward.

Fnancaal assets at amortzed cost

A Snancial as3et is moeasured a2 amortized cost if (3) it is bold within a business model whese
objective is to Bold financial assets = order to collect contractaal cash fows and (&) the coatactual
torms of the Sxancial asset give 56 02 specified dates to cath flows that are wolely payments of
principal aad inscest oa the principal amoust outstandmg. Thee Exancial assets are initally
recognized at fair valus plus doectly amribanable tansaction coits and subsequantly measwed at
amortized cost using the EIR mothed loss any impairment in valvs. Amortized cost i caleulated by
takizg ino acconmt any discoust or prumimm oD acquisiton and fees and costs that ave an integral part
of the EIR. The amortzatioa is included in “Interest income” ia the statemmeat of income and is
calculsted by applying the EIR to the gross carying amoun: of the fnancial asset, excopt for (3)
purchased or originated credit-ixspaired fizancial assets and (3) financial aszets Sathave
subieqgusatly become credit-immpaired, whers, in boch cases, @6 EIR is 2pphed to the amcrtized cont
of tho Snancial asset

Ths Bank clasiifed "Cash and other casd itemis”, "Due Som BSP', Dus Som other banks’, Securites
prrchased mnder resale agreaments’, "Iavestoent tecunites at amorized cost’, "Loaxms and
receivables” and refundable security deposits (incladed under “Other aszets”) as Exancial assets 2t
amortzed cost.

Ths Bank may imevocably elect at inital recognition to classify a debt Gnancial asset that mests the
amortzed cost criteria above a3 at FUTPL if ardesiznatios sliminates or signiScantly reduces an
accounting mismatch bad the debt financial asset besn measured at amortized cost

As of Docemsbear 31, 2020 and 2019, tho Baxk has not made such designasticn

Reclawifications of financial instruments

Ths Bazk reclassifies 123 Sxancial 3556t when 234 coly when, thare is a cBange in the busingss

modsl for managing the Snancizl assets. Raclazuifications shall be applisd prospectively by the Bazk

a=d azy previously recogmized gains, Josses or intssest shall sotbe restased. The Bazk does not

reclassafy its Snancial Nablines.

The Bazk is roquired o reclasify the following £aancial assets:

o from amortized costto FUTPL if the objective of the business mods] changes sothatthe
amortized cost criteria are 20 longer met;

o from FVTPL to amortzed cost if the objectve of the business moddl changss so tharthe

amornzed cost criteriy s2art to bo mot and the inswumaent’s conmacmal cazk flows mest the
amertzed cost critema.; and

e from FVOCI to amortized cost if the objective of the busingss modsl changes so that the fair
value critenia are 20 loager zaet bat the amortized cost critoria is i1l et 234 e nsT=ment’s
contactual cash Sows meet the amoertized cost critena.

Impairmant of Finascial Azt
Ths Baxk records expected credit loss (ECL) for all loans and other debt fimancial assen not

clazsifed a3 FVTPL, sogether with loan commitments and Snancial guarantes conmact.

ECL represonts cvodit losses that reflect an wabiased and probabiliny-weizhtod amount which is
determmined by evaluating a rangs of posiible outcomes, the fime valus of meonsy and reasonable and
supportable informasion about past events, curreat coaditons and forecasts of futare economic
ceadisens. ECL allowances ars measwred at amounats equal to sdther (i) 12-zmo00tk ECL or (1)
Lifotme ECL for those financial instrumeats which bave expenisaced a significant ncrease in credit
sizk (SICR) since utial recog=ition (Genseral Approack). The 12-month ECL is the pertion of
lifotimo ECL that results Som defaxlt ovents ca 3 Exancial insument that are possible within the
12 moxnths after the reponting date. Lifetime ECL are credit losses that reszlts Som all possible
dafaulr svens over the expected BS of 3 £xangia] instrumene

Stagng axsessmen
Fer pon-credit-impaired financial izstuments:

o Stage l i comprised of all financial inssuments whick have not experienced 3 SICR wnce inital
Tecognition or is considered of low credit risk as of the reporting date. In determining whetheras
accomat should be assessed under Stags 1, o Bank ceasiderns e sumber of days past due a3 its
criteria. Loans past due up 20 30 days except for microfinance loans wheredn days past dus for
Stage | accounts is 0 - § days are considared Stage 1. The Bazk recogzizes 2 12-month ECL for
Stage 1 Enancial instuments.

e Stage 2 is comprized of all financial insouments which bave experianced a SICR since initial
socogniton A SICRi: geounally deacned present in accomats with more than 20 days up 20 90
days past due, except for microfaance loans. The Bank recomnizes a Bfetime ECL forStage 2
£2:a03] insTumean.

For credit-iznpaized Snancial insouuments:

e Stage 3 is comprized of all financial 3556t hat have objectvs s13dencs of impairment as a result
of cos or more lo3s events thar have ocaured afier inital recopition with 2 DezItTe Impact oo
the estmated furmre cash flows of a loan or a portfolio of loans. Tie Bank recomnizes a hfetime
ECL for Stage 3 fmancial inszuments.

Defirtion of “defnde™

Ths Back classifies 3 Exancial instumesnt 23 o default when it is credit fmpaired, or becomes past
duoe o3 its coatractaal payments for more than SO days except for micvofinance loans whersdn days
past due is more than 10 days. As part of a qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in defazle,
the Bazk coasiders 2 vasiety of Instances that may indicate unlikolingss to pay. Whea such eveats
occur, the Bank carefully comsiders whether the ovent thould result in meating e customer as
defaulned. Axinsorument is considersd to be 20 loager in defanlt (6. restored) if there is sufSciear
e1idencs 20 support that full collsction is predable and payments are received for at loast six moaths.

Credat sk at rsnal recogrstion

Ths Bazk uies intarnal credit aszessment and 2pprovals at various lovels to determing tho credit mzk
of exposuzes at inisial recogmition Assessment can be guantitatve or gualinntive and depeads on Be
materiakisy of the Hcility or the complexity of the portiolio to be 23:8350d.
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Suypnificars inorease tn credit nisk

Ths assesumeat of whether thare Ras beaa » significant increass in credit risk is bated o2 a2 incrsase
in ths probability of a default cccwring since mital rocogniten. The SICR criteria vary by ponfolio
axd incinds qnmimiw changes in probabiltes of defanlt and qualitative factorns, incledng 2
backsiop bazed oo deli . The credis rizk of a pxticular axpesurs is deamed 20 bave increased
npﬁcndyx::comnﬂmopmx!.hadn:bnnk s internal credit assesu=eat, the borower
or counterparty is determined to require close moxnitering or with well-defined credit weaknesies.

For exposures without intermal crodis gradses, if conmactual payments ars mors than 30 days (except
for microfinance loans whersin e threshold for SICR is 7 - 10 days), the crodit ritk 33 deemed 20
Zave increased signiScantly since initial recognition. Days past dus are determined by counting the
sumber of days since the sarliest elapied dus date in respect of wiich full payment has oot besn
received. Due dates are determined without conuidering any mace peciod that mighs be avazlable to
the bemrower. In subioquesnt reportng periods, if the credit risk of the £aancial imtument Improves
such thas thers is 20 longsr a SICR since inital recognizion, the Baxzk shall revest 10 recognizing a 12-
meath ECL.

ECL parameters and methadologies
ECL is a function of the probability of default (PD), less givea default (LGD) and exposure at defaule
(EAD), with the tming of the loss alio conzidarsd, and is ¢stimated by incerponating ferward-locking

economic mﬁommw&omofowodmdupdm

Ths PD is an estimate of the lkelibood of default over a 12-meoxcth bonizoa for Stage 1 or Lfetime
Borizos for Stage 2. The PD for cach individual instrument is modelled based on histeric dataandis
estmated based o c—rent market conditions and reasonadbls and supportable informaten about
fomure economic conditens. The Baxk sopmented i credit exposurss based oz bomogencus risk
charactemistcs and developed 2 comespoading PD methedology for exch portfole. Te PD
methodology for each relevant portfolio i3 detarmined based on the underlying saruwre o
chanactesistc of the pertfolio, balavior of the accounts and materiality of the tegment as compared to
the total postfolio.

LGD is 2= ostmate of e Jois anizing on dexxdr Itis based on the difference betwsesn the
coatacraal cash flows due and those that the lender wozld expect 10 receive, including Som a3y
collateral.

EAD i3 a2 estimate of the exposure at 3 future defaxlt dars, taking into account expected changes in

the exposwre after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, and expected
drnywdowns ¢ committed facilines.

Forward Joclang irformation

Ths Back incerporates forward-locking information into both its assesament of whether e crodit
risk of an Insorument Bas incrsased sigmiScantly 1ince it initial recognition and its measurement of
ECL. A broad range of forward-looking information are considersd 23 ecomomic inpuns, such as GDP
growth, exciangze rate, intarest rate, inflatica rate and other eccoomic indicators. The imputs and
models used for calculyting ECL may not always captze all charactenistics of the macket a2 the date
of the Snancial statemexts. To refect this, qualitative adinitment: or overlays are occasicmally made
as temporary adinstments whea such differences 2o signifcantly material

Wntc-offs

Fizascial 2330t 200 wrirtes o either partially or in their entirety oaly when the Bazk Bas s2opped
punuing the recovery.

Restrucnered loars

Where possible, the Baxk seaks 0 restructure past dus loans rather than take possession of the related
collateral. T2is may involve extsading the payment arangements and ths azeement of now loan
ceaditcas. Oxnce the termms have besa rezepotated. azy impaimment is measured using the onginal
EIR as calculated before the modiScaticn of termns and the loan is 20 lenger conidared past dus.
Managsent continmally reviews rexegotiated Joans to saswre that all criteria are met and that fanuwe
prymezts are likely 1o cccur. The loxms continus to be subject 20 an individwal or collectve
impairment 3sesiment, calenlated using the loan’s original EIR. The difference botwesa the
recorded valus of the original loaxs and t2s present valus of e resrncnured cash Sows, discouated at
the crizmal ZIR, i3 recogzized 23 par of interest income in e statement of Imcome.

Finascial Lisbilities

Fizascial Eabilities are clasiifed as Enancal Babilittes at FUTPL and other Snancal labilites. The
claziifcaton of fimancial Labilises at inisal recozniton depends on the purposs for which the
financial Babilites ae incusred and their chamacmistes.

Az of Docammber 31, 2020 and 2019, tho Baxk has mo financial Labilites at FVTPL.

Other finzncaal babslies

This pertains 20 Snancial Habelices that are et beld for cading ernot designated as atFVIPL at the
incepton of the Nabality, Oher fimancial Labilises are recognized mitally at fair value 2nd are
subsegaeatly caried at amortzed cost. taking into account the impact of apphying the effectve
interest method of amertizatica (or accretion) for agy related premium, discomnt and azy directly
amxibutable tansacton costs.

This cassgory inclhades "Deposit Labilizies”, "Redeamable prefarred shares’, and certain itoms under
‘Accraed exponses’ and "Other Liabilizes”.

Fizascial Eabilites are measured at amortzed cost. except for the folowing:

£aanc3] LEabcliztieos measured at fair value through profie or less:
Exanca] Eabalities that arise when a tansfer of 2 Snancial aszet does not qualify for
darecoznition or when e Bank retains: contiouing involvemear;
Eaanca] guarastes coatacts;
¢ commitments 20 provids a Joan at a below-market interest rate: and
e comtinpent consideration recognized by an acquirer in accordance with PFRS 3.

A Snancial liabdity may be d.upabdat.ur'nbo :hmnppcoﬁzc:lou 1fit eliminates o
sigaiScastly red@aces 3 measuresmeat ©F JoCOEItion inconsistency (am accounting mismatch) o

o ifa Bostcomtract contain: one or more embedded derivatives; or
if 3 group of fxancial Eabilities or Eaancial assets and liabelites is mazaged and its performance
evaluared oa a fair value basis I accordancs with 3 docemented misk management or investment
STAREY.

Wheoo 2 Snancial Hability is dexignated at fazr valus through prefitor loss, e movement iz fuir
value armbutabls o changes iz the Baxzk's own credit quality i caleulated by determining the
changes in credit spreads abeve ebiamable markes interest razes and is preseated wepantely = other
3 Ive Income.
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Fimancial assets and Snancisl labilites are offtet and the not ansount reporied in ths statemseat of
financial position if and oxly if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offiet the recogai
amouxts and thers is an inteaton to settle om a oot basds, or 10 realize the 2336t and senls the liabiliny
simultaseonsly. The Baxk aisess that they bhave currantly enforceabls right of offier if e right is not
coatimgeat o= 2 foturs eveat, and is lemally enforceable iz e normal coursé of buiiness, event of
defauls, and event of insolveacy or bazkrupecy of the Back and all of the counterpartios.

Izcome a=d expenses are not ofiet in the shatezent of ncome wless required or parmined by azy
accounting standard or interprecaticn, and as specifically dizclosed in the accomnmng policies of the
Bank.

Derocoxnitica of Financial Assets and Liabiines

Francaal assets

A Snancial asset (or. where applicable a par of a fizancial as:e: or partof a group of similar fzancial
assen) is dereceg=ized when:

ths right to recedve cawl flows Som e asset Bave expied: or
the Back has tansferred its rights to receive casd Sows Som the asset or has ass=med an
oblizasios to pay tho received cah flows iz fall without material dolay to a third pasty undes a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; or

o ths Bank has tansferred its rights to receive casd Sows Som the asset and either (2) Ras
sansferred substansially all ths risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) bas neither wransferred nor

retained substantally all the nisks and rewards of the asset, bus has traasfarred conol over the
et

Where the Bank Bas transfecred its rights 20 receive cask flows fom am assot or Zas extered into 2
pais-through amangemsent, it evaluares if and to what extent it Bas recained the risks and rewards of
ownaerihip. Whea it bas nexher tranifecred nor retained substantially all of the nisks and rewards of
the asset zor transferred control over the asses, the Bank continumes to recognize the tanaferred asset
o the extent of the Baxk's coatzuing involvement In that case, the Baxzk alio recognizes an
associated Hability. The transfarred asset and the aszocated Liability are measured oo a basis thae
reflocts the right and obligaticns that the Bank has retained.

Ceatizuing avolvement that takes the form of 2 guaraniee over e ansferred 2330t 33 measwmed at

the lower of the original camrying amonznt of the 2330t and the maximum amount of coasideration that
the Baxk could be required to repay.

The Back derecognizes 3 £xancial asset wien the terms and conditons Bave besn reaezotated to the
exieat tha, subitantally, it becommes a now a3t with the difarsace betwesn it cumying amount and
the fair value of the new asset recoznized a3 a derscommition gain cor loss iz proSt or loss, to the
exieat that an impairment lois Bas not already bosa recerded.

Ths Bank considers both gualizasive and guantitative Hctors iz assesuing whether a modifcation of
financial asset is substansal or mot. Whan assesiing whether 2 modification is substansal the Bazk
comsidens the following Hactors, among others:

Change = curmency

Inzoducton of an equity feature

Change in counterparty

If e mediScation rosulis in the 2330t 0o Jozger considered “solely paymant for principal and

IteTest

The Back alio performs a2 quantative assesament sixmdar to that being performed for modification of
fmancial Dabiltes I performing 126 quansnamve 2iieiimext. the Bank ceaiiders the nsw termsof 2
Snancial asset to be substandally different if the preseat value of the cask Sows ==der the now terms,
ncluding aoy fos paid oot of any fees recaived and discomnred miing the eniginal effective intecest
738, 33 arleast 10.00%; differsn: Som ths present value of the resmaining cash flows of the exginal
fnancial astet.

Whia the contactual cash flows of 3 £xancial asset are recegotiated or otherwise modifed and the
rezegotaton or modificaton does not resultin the derecomution of that £xancial asset, the Bank
recaleulates the gross camying amoust of the £xancial 2330t a3 the present value of the rexsgotated or
medified contactual cath flows discoumted 2t 26 origimal EIR (or credit-adinsted EIR for purchased
or originated credit-immpaired fizancial a33e%) and recoznizes a modification gain or loss in the
statemment of income.

Wiz the modification of 3 Snancial asset results o the derscomiton of the oustxa;ﬁmn:nlasm
axd the subloquent recogmiton of a new fimancial 33362, the modified 2330t i3 considered 2 ‘new *
&nn:n.lnut Accordingly, the dats of the modification thall be treated a3 the date of imitial

of at fizancial 3136t whea appiving the impxmmsnt regairsmonts to he modiSed
ﬁu.ncaluut The newly recognized Enancial asset is classified as Stage 1 for ECL mearmemant
purpeses, unless the new fxancial asset is desmed to be originated as credit immpaired (POCI).

Fancsal hakelisy

A Snancial liabiity is derecoznized whan the oblizaton under the Hability is discharged or cancelled
or has expired. Where an oxisting Snancial liability is mplaced by ancther fom e sams lender oz
subsansally &fferent termms, or the tarms of an existing Dability are substansally mediSed, such an
exchanze or medificaticn is Teated a3 a derecogniton of the crigizal liablity and the recogniton of a
sew Lability, and the diffsrence in the respective camrying amonnts is recognized ia statemneat of
mcomse.

Preperty and Eguipmant
Laxzd is stated at cost Jess agy impaimment iz value. Depreciable property and equipmeat are carmied
at cost Joss accumulated depreciaton and amortizaton, and azny imspairment in valne.

Thas initial cost of property and equipment comaists of its purciase price and azy directly ammibunable
costs of bringing the 2330t to its working condition and lecaton for its imtended use. Expenditures
mcumdam&omndoqumthnobmmmwmmm suck as ropairs and
maintesance, are normally charged againit operations in the year the costs ave incwred. In sitmaticns
whare it can be clearly demomstrated that the expeadinmres kave resuled in an increase iz the furare
sconemic benefin expocted 1o be obtained Som the uie of property and equipment beyond it
onigimally aszessed standard of parformance, the expanditares are capinalized a3 an additonal cost of
propesty and equipmeat

Deprociatien and amortizaton ars calculated niing the staighe-line method over the ostimated useful
lifo of the depreciable assetns. Loaekold improvement are amortized over the shorter of the termss of
the covering Jeases and the estimared mseful Hves of the improvements.

Ths estimated useful Lves of property and equipmsat Hollow:

Building 23 yean
Fumimre and fixrures 1to3 yeann
Informatica techaology (IT) and other offico equipment ito3yean
Traospornton equipment 1to Syean
Lsasebold improvemant 10 yeans
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The useful lives and the deprecaticn and amorszanos method are reviewed periodically o sasure
that the pericd and the method of depreciation and amornzation a6 consistent with the expected
patters of economic beneSts Som the items of property and equipment and adiuited prospectively, if
Ippropriate.

The camryiag values of the property and equipmsat and any signiScant part metially recogzazed are
renviewed for impatment whea events or changes in circumstances indicate the camrying values may
20t be recovenable. If any such indication exzsts and where the carmying values excesd the estimared
recoverable amoumt, an upaimment loss i recogaized @ the statexnent of income (466 accountiag
policy oa Impairmant of Noa-fnancial Assets).

Ax tem of property and equipment and azy signifcant part mutialy recogaized is darecognized wpoa
disposal or whea 0o furure sconomic beneSits are expected Srom it uie or duposal. Any gan or lows
anung Som derscogmiton of the asset (caleulated as e diffrence betwesa the net disposal procesds
and the camying amount of the aiset) i3 included in the statemnent of Income in the year the asset is
deocomnazed

The Bank clazuifies nght-of-use assets as part of propecty and equipment. The Baxk recogmizes right-
of-use assets at the commencement date of the leass (1.6, the date the underlying asset is avazlable for
use). Right-of-uie assets are mitially measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
mmparment Josses, and adyasted for any rememurement of lease liabdines. The musal cost of nghe-
of-use 3sets mcludes the amonnt of lease Habilites recogmized. mitial direct costs :ncwred, loaze
pryments mads ar or before e commencemaent date less any less any leass mceatives recsived and
estiate of costs to be mcwred by e Jesses m dismantling and removing the undeciving asser,
restoning the s3te o wiich it is Jocated or restoring the undeciying asset o the coadition required by
the terms and conditions of e lease. maless those costs are incwred to produce inveatories. Uslesns
the Baxk is reascmably certaun o obtain ownenbip of he Jeased asset at e end of the lsase term. the
recognized nght-of-use asets ae depreciated co 2 soaight-Lline basis over the shorter of e
estmated useful life and lsase termm.  Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment.

Isvesmmeat Propernes

Izvestment propartes are measwred mnmally at cost. including Tansaction costs. Tramsacton costs
represent soarefundable taxes suck 23 capital g2ins tax and docummentary stamp tax that are for the
account of the Bank. Ax invesament property acquired through as excBange TIACLOS it measwed
at faxr value of e astet acquired unless the fair value of such an asset cannot be measured in which
C230 the MVeLTDent property acquired i measured at the carrying amousnt of asset gives up.
Fuxhudmsmchsuﬁodummmzw 3) sacy of udgment in case of
judicial foreciosure; b) execution of the Sheniff s CertiScate of Sale in case of exwra-judicial
foreclosure: or ¢) aotarization of te Deed of Dacica in case of dation @ payment (dacion en page).
md&mmmﬁhmofﬁonmmﬁﬂ&.mwoﬁhammn
up is recogaized 23 "Gain oa foreclosure - 26" in he statement of income.

Subiequent 20 imital recogainon, depreciable mvestment propertes are camied at cost less
accumzlated deprecaticn and impairment in value, if any.

Izvestment propernes we darecozmized when ey bave sither besn disposed of or whan they we

withdrawa from use and 0o furere bemefit is expected fom thewr disposal. Any gains or
los3es on the retirement or disposal of an iovesament property are recogmized in the statement of
mcome under Profit Som assets s0ld’ in the year of retrement or disposal.

LD LT

Expeaditmre: mowred after the mrestmeat propertes Save besa put into cperatoms, such as repain
and maintenance costy, are normally charged aganst incoms in e year i3 which the costs are
mcuwred.

Depreciation is calculated oa 3 straighe-line basis using e remaining useful lives Som the tme of
acquisition of the Imvestuent propertes but not 10 excesd %a (10) yoars for buildings.

Trazsfers are made 1o inTesInent propertes wiea, ad oxaly whea, there i3 a change iz ue evidenced
by eading of owner occupation, commencement of an operating leass 10 another party or eading of
comstuction or development. Transfars are made from ivestment propertes whea, and caly whea,
there i3 a change = w16 ovidenced by commencament of ownar 0CCupaton of commencement of
development with a view 0 sals.

Fer a transfor Som mvestment propesty to ownar-occupied proparty. e deamsed cost of proparty for
sublequent accounting is its carryiag value at the date of change in wie. If the property occupied by
the Bank a: an owner-occupied proparty becomes an ivestment proparty, the Bank accounts for such

poropesty in compliance with the policy stated undes property and equipmaent up to the date of change
in ue.

assots - sessed
Ropossessed chamsls compniie repossessed vehicles and jowsines. Repossessed chamels aze stased a2
cost less accumnulated depreciation and upamrment i value, if 2ay. Depreciation is calenlated oz 2
staight-1ins basis uiing the remaizing uweful Lves of the vehicles Som e time of acquisition The
usefal Bves of repossessed chamels are estmared © be tree (3) yeurs

Iztangible Assets

Iztaag:ble assets acquired separately e measured om imitial recogmition atcost. The costof
intangibie 36t acquired = 2 busmess combination is its fair value as at the date of acquisiica.
Following mitial recognition, mrangble asen are camed at cost Jess azy accumulated axmortizaton
axd a3y accumulyted imparmesnt losses [otermally geserated mtangible assets, excluding capinalized
development coit, are sot capitalized and expeadirure is reflected in the s2atemsat of income i the
year = which the expeaditure is tacured.

Ths useful lives of mhangmble 335e% are 3356458d to be either Snite or :ndeSinate. Intangible assets
m&bhmmmo@dmhuuﬂxw&adaasud&mmm
there is an mdication that the intangible 2330ts may be The amortzation pericd and the
amortizaton methed for an mtangble asset with 2 fmite uweful 1ife i3 reviewed at least at sach
statemseat of Snancial poustion date. Changes = the expected useful Life or e expected pattems of
comsumuption of futuwe economic beneSts embodied i the asset aze accounted for by changing the
amortzaton pericd or method, 33 appropriate. and teated as change iz accousting estimates. 108
AZMOrt2ITOD Xpense o2 intangible assets with fxate Lves is recogmized in the statemuent of mrome
comsistent with the fanction of e tatangible asset

Iztaag:ble assets with mndedinute wseful Lives are tested for muparment anowally ecther mdvidually o
at the cash gesenating umt (CGU) Jevel Such intaagbles are not amortized. The useful bfs of an

mtangible asset with 2 indefxaite 13fe 13 reviewed 2xgually to determine whethar mdefinute L
254 AIeat continues 0 be supportabls. Ifzot e change mm e wieful Bf assesiment Som
mdeSinite to Snite is made oz 2 prospectve basis.

Gains or Joses ansing Som Be derecogmitos of a3 wangible 2536t are measured a3 the differsace

betwesa the net disposal procesds and e camrying amount of 26 3356t and are recognized in e
statement of mcome when e 3556t is derecognazed
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Branck hicenyex

Branch licenses anse Som e acquisiticn of licenses to operate sew branches Som the BSP. Branch
licenses have :mdefnw uiefl Lves and are tewed for mmpaimment o2 a3 amnual basis.

Software costs
Softwraze costs are carmed at cost Jess accummulated amortization and any accumulated imparment
loss. Software costs are amortized on a staight-line basis over the estimated useful Life whick is tree

(3) yeans.

Impairment of Noa-Eaancial Astes

Property and equepment, tivestment propernes and repassessed chattels

At oach statemzent of Snamcial positica date, the Bank assesses whether there is azy indication that its
soz-Snancial assets may be impaired Whea an indicater of Zupairment exists o whea an aanual
ImpaIrzoent Witng for an et i3 required, the Bank makes 2 formal estimatn of recovenable amount.

Recovenable amount is the kigher of an asset’s (or CGU"s) fair value less costs to sell and its value 2n
use a0d s detemmined for an mdividaal asset wless the 2330t does Dot generate cash mSows that are
largely dopendent of those from other assets or groups of amets, I which caws the recoverzble
amoust is 2330s%ed a3 part of the CGU o which it belcag:s.

Where the camying amount of an asset (or CGU) exceads its recoverable amonnt, the asset (or CGU)
i comsidered impaired and is written down 10 it recovarable amount In assessing value iz use. the
estmated future cash fows e discounted to thelr preseat value uing 2 pre-tax discoust rate thae
reflects cuwrvemt market assesuments of the tzme value of mouey and the nisks speciSc to the asset (or
CGU).

Ax mopaimment loss i3 charged 0 operations i the year in wihich it anses. A assessmnent is made at
each statement of fnancial positon date as to whether there is any ndicaticoa that previousdy
Tecognized mmparmaent Josies Way 20 loager exist or may bave deczeased. If such indication exists,
the recovennble amount is estmared A previonsly recognized mmpairment loss is reversed caly if
there 23: besa 2 chazge in e sstimates uted 10 determuns the asset’s recoveradble amoumt since the
hqunmmoM [f that is the case. the camying amount of the asset (or CGU) s

mcreased to ity recoverable amount That mcreased amonnt cannot excesd the cxurying amoumt that
would bave besa detarmined et of depreciation and amoruzatios, had oo mupameat ois beea
recognized for the asset In pricr years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of mcome unless
the asset (or CGU) is carvied at a revalued amount, in which case the revensal s ceoxed as a
revaluation increase. After such arevernal, the depreciation and amortzation expense is adjusted iz
fonure years 0 allocate the asset’s revised curying amount, less any residual value, oa 2 systematic
basis over its remaining Life.

Insangble axvets

Izt2ag:ble 2030t with indeSnite useful Lives are tested for mupazment ansually at he statement of
financial positon date either individually or at the CGU level, as appropriate. Intangbis assets wizh
fzute Lves are assessed for mupamment whenever thers 15 an indication that the mtangible asset may
be impazed

Revemme Recogmnon
Reoveous is recognized 2t an amount that refect:s the considaration to wiich a0 satity expects 10 be

extitled = exchange for Tansfeming goods or services o a customer.

The Bank follows 2 five-step model t0 accoumt Sor reveans ansing Som contracts with customers.
Ths Sve-step model 15 as follows:

ldentfy the coatrace(s) with a customer

ldennfy the parfonmance obligations in e coamact
Determuine the transaction price

Allccate the Tansactios price to the parformance obligation in the contract
Recognize revecse wiea (or 23) the ety satisfes a parformance obligation

ennow

Ths Bazk execrcites judgement, taking te comsideration all of the relevast fHaces and crcumstances
whea applving sach step of the model 20 conmracts with edr customaers. Toe Baak bas coacluded thar

it 33 acting as 2 principal in all of its reveaue arrangements.
The following specific recogaition criteria must also be met before revenus is recogmized:
Revemues within the scope of PFRS 15

Servace feex and commasson income

Thesws fes mcluds wrvice fes on deponit-related accounts and mazagement foes. Feos oa deposnt-
related accounts are recognized caly wpon collection or accrued when there is reascaable degree of
certainty a3 to its collecton.

Income from sale of property and equepmers, mvestmers property and repossessed chattels
Iscome Som ale of property and equpment, imvestment property and repoisessed chamels are
recognized wpon completicn of the sarming process and the collectability of e sales price is
seascoably asswred.

Other tcome
Other income is recogmized whes sarned at 3 point in txne aad s recorded wnder "Mixcellaneous
mcome’ = the statament of income.

Revenwes outvide the scope of PFRS 15

Inserest moome
For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and intecest-bearing Exancial mstuments,
merest income 1 recorded at the EIR. which is the rate that exactly discounts estiznated fumure cash

PAYIear: of redeph trougd the expected Lfs of e Smancial imamumeat or 3 woner pened, whare
appropriate, to the net caryying amount of the Exancial asset or fxancial Lability. The calculation

takes =20 acconnt all coatactual terms of he Snancial instrument (for example, prepayment cptioas),
mcludes a3y St or incrumaental costs that are duectly armbutable o e mstument and xe a0
ntegral part of the EIR, but ot funwre cyedit losses.

The carrying amoumat of the Snancial asset or Snancial Bability 15 adiusted if the Bank revises its

sstimation of payment or recaipts. Ths adjusted carrymg amsousnt is calculated based ca the original
EIR and the change in carrying amount is recorded as Imterest income’.

Once the recorded value of 2 fnancial asset or group of uauilar financial assets bas been reduced due

%0 an Zmpament loss, st ICOme continues 10 be recogmized using the crigsal EIR applied 2o
the new caTying amount
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Irserest income - finance lease
Ths excess of azgrezate loass roneals plus the estmmated residual value over the cost of the leased
IMYeLEANEDE Property constrates the wnexmned lease ncome. Reuidual values represeat estizmared

proceeds Eoos the disposal of investmeat property 2t the tme lease is estimated. The wmearned lsase

income is amortzed over the term of the Jease, commancing on e meath e Jo2se it exocuted uiing
the EIR method.

Unsarned lsaie income ceases 10 be amortized when the loase commract receivables become past due
for mcre than three months.

Rersal mcome

Reamnl income arising Som operating leased properties is acconated for ox a straighe-Line basis over
He leaze terms oz caxo=s lexses and i3 recerded tn e wtatement of incoms wader “Miscelansous
income’.

E 3 a2
Expentes are recogzized whea it is probabls at decreass in funws economic benedn slated rothe
decroase In 35501 OF 22 increse In Hability Bas occurred and that the decreass In econemic beneSts
can be moasared reliably. Expenses that may arise in the course of ordinary rogular activities of the
Baok includs, among othern, the oparatng cxpenses on the Back™s opsration Expentes are
recognized as incumred.

Bemewing Cost

Beomrowing costs are capitalized if thoy ave directly atributable to the acquisition of 3 qmalfying asset
Capinlization of bomrewing costs commaencss whan e activites to prepare the qualifying 2336t o
in progress and expendinres and bomroming costs are incwred. Borrowing costs are capitalized vl
the qualifying assets are substantially ready for their inmanded use. All other borrowing costs are
expeased 21 incwTed.

Leazes

Ths Bank determing: at conmact incopton whether 3 coawract is, or coatains, 2 lsase by assessing
whather the cozmract ceavers the night 20 conmol the use of as identiSed asset for aparicd of e in
exchangs for conuideratica

Bank as a lessor

Finance leases, where the Bank ramafers substantally all the ricks and beneSes incideanal to
ownerihip of the lsased itam 20 t2e Jes10s. 2o included in the statement of Exancia] positon under
‘Loazs and receivables” accouzr. A Jease receivable is recognized at an amommt equal to the et
mvesament in the leaze. All income resulting from the recetvables s included = “Intorest imcome o
Joans and recsivables’ in the statamaent of incoms.

Leaie: wiere e Bank does zot tazafer substantally all the risks 2a3d bezeSt: of ownenbip of e

assets are classificd a3 operating Jeases. Inmimal direct costs imcwmred in nogeotating openyting leaies

are added to the cxTying amonnt of the lsased aiset and recogaized over the 19356 torm on e same
basis a5 the rextal income. Contingent rents are recognized 35 revenus in the year in which they are
earned,

Bank ax a lessce

The Bazk applies a single recognition and measurscnent approackh for all Jeases, except for thort-term
Joases 20d leases of low-+alns assets. The Bank recognizes right-0fuse 2336t ropresenting the right to
=30 the wderlying 2330t and loase Labilites to make lease pryment.

L LI L L

lease habilinex

At e commencement date of 25 Jease, the Bank recomnizes lease Habilites measured at the preseat
value of a0 paymexts to be mads over the leass term. T2 Jease paymaeants include Exed paymenn
(including n-substance Exed payments) less any loass incentves recaivable, vaziable loase payments
that depead o an index or a rate, 2ad amonnts sxpectsd to be paid under residmal value guanatess.
The lease payments also inclade the exercise price of a parchae cptioa reascxably cortain to be
exsrcised by the Bank and paymeats of panalties for terminating 3 Jeass, if the loass term reflect 2o
Bank exercizing the option to tarminate. The variable loase payments that do sot depend on an index
Or 2 rate are recognized a5 expense in the pericd oo which the svext or condition that wizzens the
payIneat Occurs.

Is calculating the prosent valus of leass payments, &6 Bank uies the incremeatal borroming rate at
tho [s3:0 commencamment date if the interest rate xmplicit in the Jease is oot readily determuinable.
Afier the commencement dats, the amomt of lease Liabilities is increased to refloct 26 accyetion of
interest and redaced for the leass payments mads. In additon, the carrying amoust of lsase Labilites
is remsasured if thers is a modiScation, a change in the le2ts term, 3 change in the in-sxbitance fixed
Jo236 paymeats or 3 change in the assesament to purchass the undesiying asset. Lease Labilites are
presented under “Other Habilites' in the statement of Snxncial positen

Nhowz-term leases and leases of iow-value asscty

Ths Bank applies the thort-term leass recogniticn axamption to it Jeases that 2ave 2 Jeass term of 12
meads or less fom e commecament dae and do 2ot contain a purchaie opSen, and low-valus aszen
TSCOEISON eXeImPDOD 1o 23 1eases of kiotk spaces on ofiie locatons and other equpment thatare
coasidered of low value (e, below #2350,000). Lease paymeats oo short-tarm loases and loases of low-
valus 33390 200 recopnized 23 expexse under "Occupancy xod sqgupmaent-related” oo 3 soxighe-line

basi: cver the loase term.

Bermement Cop

The Baczk has scxcoatibutery deSned bexmefit plas covering substaztially all its ofSces and regular
exployess. Under this retirament plan, all covared ofScers and regular expleyees aro cattled to cask
bezsfn after satiafying cortain 226 and senvice requiremsents.

Ths not defined beneft Labilizy or asset is the azzrezats of thoe present valus of the defined bezeat
oblization at the ead of the reporting pericd reduced by the fair valus of plas assets (if any), adjusted
for any offect of limiting a2 met defined beneSt 22301 10 the asset ceiling The assetcailing is e
present valus of any economic banefins available in the form of refinds fom the plan or reductoas in
forure contributions to the plan.

The cost of providing beeSts under the defined boneSt plans 1 acnuarially determined miing the
projected uait credit mothod
Dsfned benefit costs comprize s following

o Sarvice cost

e Netinterest on the ¢t defined bonefit Nability or asset
¢ Remexursmaents of net defined benefir Dability or asser

Service costs which includs cumrest 16rvice costy, past sanice costs and gains or losses oz 2on-
TOREDS WISt e recogaized 33 expenie i the strement of ncome. Past wervice costs e
recognized whea plan ameadment or curnailment occurs. These amounts are calculated peziodically
by indopendent gaaliSed actuaries.
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Nt interest oo the net dofined beneSt liabiliey or 2356t is the change during the peried in the Dot
defned beneSt Labality or asset that aniies from the passage of tme which is determined by applying
the disconat rate based on gorernment boads 20 6 26t defnsd beneSt lability or asiet.

Netinterest on the net defined bezeSt Labiliny or asset is rocoznized a3 expenie or incoms in e
statemeat of income.

Rameasurements comprising actuarial gain: and lo3ie3, Toturn o plas assets and any chaape in the
e Eoct of e asset cotling (excinding not Interest on defined benefs Bability) are recogmized
immediately in statement of otder comprebansive income (OC]) in the pertod in wiich ey anise.
Romsaiurements are sot reclasuified to the statemext of income = subieguent poricds.

Ths Back's right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to serde a defned
bezeft obligation is recozmized 23 3 soparate 33592 at fxir value whean and only whea reimburiement is
virmally certain.

Termuation hengfit

Termination beasSts are amployse bonefits provided in exchange for e terminaton of az
sxployss’s employmesnt as 2 resnlt of either an sxtity”s deciiion 2o terminats an e=ployes’s
exxployment befors the normal retirsznsat date or an ex=ployse’s decision 20 accopt an offer of
bezefn in exchange for the termination of employmeat

A Lability and oxpense for a terminaton bezefit is recoznized at the cxrlier of whea the ety cxm no
longer withdnyw the offer of thoze beneSits and whea the entity recogmizes related resTucning costs.
Izta] recogmition and subiequent changss 1o tarminason bexefins are measwred in accordance with

tho mature of the szmployee benefiz, 23 cither post-ammploymeat beneSts, short-term sxmployve benesSts,
or other long-term exployes bensfin.

Exeadaions

Provisions are recognized whea the Baxk kas 3 present oblization (Jezal or constractive) as a result of
a past ovent azd it iz prebable thatan ontflow of resowres exmbodying economic benoSr: wil be
required 10 2emtls the obligation and a reliabls estimars can be mads of the amommt of the obligates.
Whare the Bank expects soms or all of a provisica to be reimburted, for exameple, under an insurance
coatrace, the reimburiament is secognized as 3 separate asset dut caly wiea the reamburieznent is
virtaally cartain. The expense relating 0 any provision is preseated o the OCL netof any
reimbunement. If e offect of the tme value of monsy is matesial, provisions are detarnuined by
discouzting the expected future cask flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects curreant macket assessmeats of
the tme valus of meaey and whers appropriate, the nisks specific o e lability. Where discousting
i3 used, 26 increase in the provisica dus to the passags of tme s recoznized as an Inotersst expenss”
in the statemext of income.

Ceoztinpent Lishilisios and Coztingent Assets

Cextzgent Dadilites are not recogmized in the Snancial statecnants but are disclosed wloss e
possibility of an cutflow of assets embodying economic benafits is remets. Coztingent astets aro not
recognized but are diclosed i the Snancial statemmcats when an indflow of ecozomic bezefin is
probable.

Iscome Taxss

Current sxx

Cumremt tax assets and Labilizies for e curteat pericd e measured at the amonnt expected to be
recovered Som or paid to the taxation suthonites. The tax rates and tax lyws used to compute the
amouzt are thoie 2t are anacted or subitandvely exacted at tho statemueat of Snancial position date.

Effoctive Jazaxy 1, 2019, management pericdically svaluates positions taken in the tax remuwrns
with respect to sintations in whick applicable tax regulations are subject 10 intarpretations and
establishes provisions whaere appropniate.

Deferred tax

Deforred tax is provided using the statament of Snancial positioa method, ca taxmporary difforsaces
at the statamant of Snancal pesition date berwrees thoe tax bases of assets and liabilinies and thexr
cxTying amounts for £aancial reporting purposes.

Deoforred tax Labilitios are recogzized for all taxabls tsxaperary differcaces. excopt:

o  Whea the deferred tax liability axizes from the initial recognition or an assetor lability ina
Tansacton that is oot 2 business combization and, at the tme of the Tazsactica, afects neither
ths accounting proSt nor taxable profit or loss.

o Inrospect of taxable temporasy diffecences associated with izvestments in subsidiaries, associates
azd interests in joint vearmres, whean the tming of the revarsal of the temporary diffcrences can be
ceaolied and it is prodbable that the texporay differances will not revernte i the forvsosable
fanare.

Deferred tax 233013 270 recoznized for 2ll dsdacuble texmporary differsaces, the camry forwasd of
=oused t2x credits and aoy uoused tax loiies. Deferred tax 2330t are recogized to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductble exporary difforences
and the camy forwawrd of usused tax credits and mumied tax Josses can be utlized, except:

*  Whea the deferred tax aszet relazing to ths deductthls temporxry differsaces arites Som the initial
recognition of an 2336t or Hability iz a tansacton that is ot 3 buiiness combination and, at the
tims of the wansaction, affects neither the accomating profit nor taxable profit or loss.

o Iz respect of deducuble tamporuy diffarences associated with igveitment i subsidianies,
33z0ciates and interest i joint veanwes, defarred tax i are recognized caly to e exters that
it is probable that the sexnporary difforsaces will reverse in the foresesable furare and taxable
profit will Be available against whickh the temporary differsaces can be usilized.

Ths cxrying amoumt of deforred tax 2:sets is reviewsd at each statemmeat of fmancial poution date
and reduced 0 the extent that it is 20 leagesr probable thar sufScient fumwre taxabls income wil be

avazlable to allew all cr part of the deferyed tax azzets to be muilized. Unrecomnized dofecred tax asien
are redssessed 2t oach statemmcnt of Snancisl position dxe and are recognized to the exteat thatit has

become probabls that ftare taxable income will allow the deferred tax 336t 20 be recoversd.

Deforred nax 2ssets and Labilites are moasuwred at the tax rates that are expoected to apply in the year
whea the 33362 is realized or e Labality is senties, based ox the tax rates (2ad tax laws) thae have been
exacted or substaztvely saxcted at the reporting dats.

Deforred tax relating to items recognized outiide profit or loss is recogmized cutiide profit or loss.
Defarred tax items are rocognized in corralatica to the mnderlying Tansactons eithar in OCl er
directly in equizy.

Defarred mx 2:30ts 2nd dofeced tax lablites 2o offet if 2 lomally eaforceable might exists to cumramt
22X 333005 azainst cxzrent tax Labilites and the deferred taxes rolate to the same taxabls satity and

3200 taxaton authority. Tax beneSts acquired as part of 2 business combinatica, but ot satisfying
cmtema for soparats recommition at that dats, are recogmized subsequeantly if sow informatien about
facts and circumstances changs. The adjusmment is either weated as a reduction in geedwill (as loag as
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it does not exceed goodwill) if it was nowred duning the measwement period or recognized i proSt
or less.

Euvenrs Afer she Reparsing Peried

Post ysar-and events that provide additenal information about the Bank™s positon at the statemsat of
financial positon date (adiusting ovents) are reflected i the £aancial statecmeats. Post year-sad
events that are zot adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the Sxancial statemsents when
material

Standards [ismed but Nos Yot Effecsive

Standards issued but oot yet effectte up to the date of ismance of the Company’s Sxancial
stataments are Listed below. The Listmg consists of standards and intecpretations issned whickh e
Cozpany reasczably expocts to be applicabls at a futurs date. The Compazy inteads to adopt these
standards whea they beceme efectve. Excopt 23 otherwise indicated, the Company does 2ot expect
the adopicn of thess new and amended PAS, PTRS and Philippine Interpretations to have signiScamt
impact on the fimancial statexsats.

Effective beginrmung on or aficr Jonary 1, 2021

o Amcndmsats 1o PFRS 9, PFRS 7, PFRS 4 and PFRS 16, /nterest Rate Benchmuark Reform -
Thase 2
Toe amcadment protvide the folowing temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting
eects when an interbaxk offcred rate (IBOR) is replaced with an altemmasive neasly ritk-£ee
mterest rate (RFR):

o Practcal expedicat for changes in the basis for determining the coaacmual cash Sows 232
result of IBOR reform

o Relief Som discontinuing bedging relationships

o Reliof Som e sepamately ideatfiable roquirament when an RFR instrumeant is desizmated 23
a hodge of a risk componsat

Toe Bank shall also discless tnformaton abous:

o The abour the manwe and extent of risks 10 which the eatty is exposed amising from Snancial
Istrumeats mb‘oa'amORnﬁom. and bow the casty manages thoso risks; and

o Thepro accapm:hommwabwmm‘had:ndnus azd bow the ety
.zmgngthnmm

Toe amendment are e fective for annual reperting perieds bogmning on or after Jazuary 1, 2021
azd apply remospectvely, Bowover, the Baxk is sot required 0 restats prior paciods.

Effective begmrvung on or gficr Jonxwry 1, 2022

Ameadmsats to PFRS 3, Reference to the Canceprual Framework

Ths axmendmcats added 2o excopton 20 the recognition principle of PFRS 3, Buiiness Combinations
0 avodd the issne of potential *day 27 gain: or lesses arising for Habilities and coatingent Habilites
that wozld be within e scope of PAS 37, Prontsions, Fm:grmlmhho::wd(‘mmm
or Pailippize-IFRIC 21, Levies, if incmred separately. It alio clari€fied thae contingent assets do net
qualify for recognition at the acquisiton date. The Group applies thess ammeadments prespectvely
for anzual reporting pariods beginaing on or after Jasuasy 1, 2022,

Amaendmeats to PAS 16, Plary and Equapment: Proceeds before Intended Usse

Ths amendmcats prohibit catities dedacting from the cost of an itam of propearty, plantand
equipmaat, any proceeds frem weling items produced while bringing that asset 20 the Jocation a=d
conditicn necossary for it to be capabls of operating in the manner intended by mazagement Instead,
as ety recoznizes the procesds from selling such items, and the coits of producing those items, i
profit or Joss.

Ths amendmcats are efecave for anoual reportng peciods beginning oz or after Janzary 1, 2022 a=d
must be applied retospectvely o itemms of property, plant and squipment made availabls for use o
or after tho boginning of the sarlies: pericd presexted when the satity St appliss the amendmamt.

Amendmsats to PAS 37, Onerous Contract - Casts of Fulfilling a Contract

The axmandmeats specify which costs an sasity nseds to include when assesiing whether a coamact is
oneroas or Joss-making. The ameadments apply 3 “dizectly related cost approach™. The costs that
relats directly to a coatract to provide goods or services includs doth incremmental costs and an
allecation of cosn dizectly related to coamact activities. General and adminisTrative costs do oot
relare directly to 2 contract and ars oxclinded unless they ars sxplicitly chargeable to the coumssrparty
undar the conact The amendmean are effective for annual reporting partods beginning ca o after
Jazuxry 1, 2022, The Group will apply these ameadments to contracts for which it Bys oot yee
f2l6illed all its oblization: 3t the bemaning of the az=ual reportinz period in whick it £rst applios the
amsadment.

Arwal Improvements to PFRSs 2018-2020 Cyde

Ameadmsats to PFRS 1, Fint-time Adopties of Piulippenes Finanaal Reporang Stardards,
Subssdiary as a first-tzme adopicr

Thes amendmeats permit 3 subsidiary, joint veature or associate that elocts to apply paragaph D16(a)
of PFRS 1 to measure cumsulative translaton differences using e amounts reported by the parsat,
ba:ed oo the parsat’s date of ansition to PFRS. Ths ameadment is efecuve for amnual reporting
pesiods bozinning on or after January 1, 2022 with sarber adeption porminted

Amead=sats to PFRS 9, Financial Instrumerts, Fees i the 10 per corst* sest for derecogmation
Sinancial liabilities

Ths amoend=eat clariSes the fees that an entty includes when aesiing whother e terms of anew
or mediSed fxancial Eabdity are subitaztially diffsrant from the terms of the crigzinal fimancial
Liabality. Muwumm&vawdxmuﬂﬁhmmmmmm
including o3 paid or received by either 6 borrowaer or lender oo 26 other’s bahalf Ax eantity
applies the amendmeat to financial Habilites that are mediSed oz oaon&wtbobon::ﬁng
of the anzusl reportng period i which the eatity finst spplics the amendment. The ameadment is
e&ective for annual reporting peniods beginzning o or after January 1, 2022 with sarlier adoption
pemitted. The Grozp will apply the amesndments to Exancial Labilities St are modiSed or
ouhaagodoaoca&wt!abegna;o‘&oamﬂrmpmodawmmmﬁmapp&s&o
ameadment.

Amandments to PAS 41, Agriculure, Tacation in for value measurements

The xmendment removes the requiement in panagreph 22 of PAS 41 that eatites exclude cash Jows
for axation when measuring the fair value of astets within the wcops of PAS 41. Axn catity appliss
the amoendment prospectively to fair vales measurscnents on or after the boginning of the fime anaual

reporting period beginning on or after Jazuary 1, 2022 with ewrlier adoptica permitted.
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Effective begnnrang on or aficr Jowary 1, 2023

PTRS 17, Inswrance Contracts

PFRS 17 pmﬁa updated informatica about the obigatcn, risks a:dpwiomo of inswrance
comtracts, INCTALSE ABLPATEACY I3 &na.\lmfmmnpcmdh insurance companiss, and
mmeduces comsistent accounting for all insurance contracts dased oo 3 cuwreat measurement modsl

Ths standard is effectve for anzmal pariods beginzing on or after Jazuary 1, 2023, Exrly applicaton
i3 pecmmitted but only if the entity also applbes PFRS 9 and PFRS 15.

Amendments to PAS 1, Claxafication of Liabilitses as Currere and NonCurrent
The amaendoueats clarify the following o specify the requirements for clasiifying liabilites 23 currant
©r Dom-cuITeat:

What is eant by a night 10 dofSr sentlomens:

Taat a right to defar must exist at the ead of the reperting peried:

Ta2t clasification is unaffected by the likehhocod that an exsity will exercise its defarmal right,
Taat oxly if an exboddad derivative in a coavernblo Labiliny s ittelf an equity instument would
ths terms of a Habelity not izmpact its classifcaton

Dofenred cfocrag:

Ameadmsats to PFRS 10, Consoladated Firxmncial Satements 23d PAS 28, Imvestments in Associates
and Jont Ventures - Sale or Contnbution of Assets berween an Investor and ity Assocsate or Joirs
Venture

Ths axmendmsears ad&ess the conflict berwess PFRS 10 and PAS 2§ in dealing with the loss of
ccatrol of 2 subsidiary that is 20ld or contibated to 23 2230ciate of joint veatme. The ameadmentn
clanify chat 3 full gain or loss is recognized whea 2 transfer to 20 a350<iate o joint veatwre avehes a
buiiness as defined in PFRS 3, Bwincss Combinations. Azy gain or Joss resultng fom the sals or
coatibution of assets that 4o not constnuts a buiingss, Bowever, is recognized only to the extent of
warelated investers’ interests in the associate or joint veanwe. Oz Janzary 13, 2016, the FRSC
postponed the onignal effective date of Jazuary 1, 2016 of the said amendments unal the IASS has
comapletsd its broadsr review of the ressarch project on equity acconnting that may result in the
simplScatics of 2ccounting for such tansactoas asd of other aspects of accomnting for associates
3=d joint vemmures.

. Siguificant Accounting Judgment: and Eztimate:

Tos prepanation of e Bank™s Exancial stateoseats roquizes the managemssat to make judgments,
estimates and assmmpticas that affect the reported amonats of assets, liabilities, income and expenses
azd the disclosmres of contingent assets 22d costingent Labilides. Funwe events may occur wiich caa
canse the asumptons used in ariving at the estimaes to change. The offecn of any champe in
eitimates ave reflectsd in the Sxnancial statements 23 they become reasozably detsrminable.

Judgmexsts and estiznates ae costimmally evalmated and ave based oo Ristorical oxperiance and other

Hictors, mcluding expectatons of famure svants hat are belisved to be reasozabls wader the
cicumsnancss.

The following are the critical judzments and koy assumptions that have a aigzificant risk of material
adjusumesnt to the caryisg amnousts of assets and liabilites within the next Sxancial year:

Indgent:

a) Fwaluation of st s model in managirg financial trstruments
T2s Bank manage: its financial assets based oa business medsls dnt:ni:.ninnsdoqun level
of £aaaci2] 2330t to match its expocted cash cutows, largely aniing fom customess’
withd&awals and contimning loan disbariezsents 10 borrowens, while mamtiining 3 sTatezic
portfolio of financial assets for investmeat and mading actvities consistent with its itk appetite.

In determining the clasiifcation of a Snancial instromaent under PFRS 9, the Baxk doveloped
baiimess models which refiect how it manage: its portfolio of fimancial instuments. The Bazk"s
buiiness models need oot be assessed 2t entity level or 23 2 whols but applied 2t s level of a
portfolio of fimancial instrumants (1o, group of financial instraments that are managzed together
by the Bazk) and oot oz az InsTument-by-instumment baus (3.9 not baied oz intenton or specific
charactsnistics of individaal Saancial instument). The Bank evaluates in which busingss medel a
£x3ncis] instument or a pertfolic of Exancial imstrumants belong to taking into consideration the
objectuves of sach buiines: mods] established by the Baxzk.

Iz 3d&iton, PFRS 9 ephaiizes that if more than an infequent and mere thas an insignificant
wale is made out of 3 portfolo of fimancial assets carmied at amortized cost, an extity should assess
whether and bow such sales are consistent with the objective of collecting coztractual cask fows.
I making this judzment, e Bank ceasiders certain cucumstances documensted in its dusiness
model manual to 231055 that an incroass in the Sequeacy or valus of salss of fnancial Imstumean
in a particular period is Dot necessanly inconwistent with 2 bald-to-cellect business medel if the
bazk caz explaiz the reaseas for those sales and wiy those sales do not redlect a change iz the
Bank's objective for the business model

Iz 2020, the Bazk disposed government secunities clasufied as HTC securities with caxying
amount of R180.98 mulon whick resulted in a gain of B2 93 millicn recorded in the statement of
income under ‘Profit from aisets sold”. Thoe sale was dus to a change in managsmnent’s inteatica
from helding the instumesat to collect principal and intarest to realizing &6 gain from the
&isposal of the securities in view of the imspact of the COVID-19 pandemic. T2¢ remaiming HTC
wourities of the Bazk will rexmain to be under HTC buminess modsl (388 Note 7).

b) Imx

TboBankdmmustholuaumu tbom-ca:colhbhm:nof:blna.toptbuuﬁmv
pesicds coversd by an option to extead e Joxss i it is reasonably cartain 10 be oxercised, or xay
pesicds coversd by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably cectain not to be exercized.

Tos Bank 2as several Joase conracts that includs exteasics and termination optons. Upea the
adepticn of PFRS 16, ths Bazk applies judgenseat in evaluating whether it is reasonably cartain
or 2ot 20 exercise the cpticn 0 renew or terminate the lease. That is, it ceasiders all relevant
Hctors 22t create a0 eConOmIc IDcentve for it 10 exXArci e either the renewal oF rminaton.
After the commencament dato, the Bank reassesses the leass term if thars is a siznificantsrsator
change in circumstances that is within its contrel that affects its ability to exescise oraot 2o
exarcize the cpton to rezew or the terminats.

LR
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<)

d)

al

Uncertamtics over moome 62x treatments

T2e Bank applies signiScant judgement in ideatfying uncertainties Oves IDCOmE LaX Teat=eats.
Since the Bank operates in a hizhly rogulated sovirozment, it a1sessed whether 6 Intcprotation
Bad a3 immpact on its Exancial statemsents.

Tas Bank applies significant judgment whether it is probable that 3 particular unceriain income
tax teatment will be acceptable to the taxason antherity. The Bank comiiders the followmg:

o Pastexpenionce related o similar tax treatment
Logal advice or case Lyw reolated to other ontities
¢ Practice gideling: published by the taxation authority that are applicable to the case

Toe Bank roassesses the judgament if the Hcts and circumsnances on which the judssmeat was
based change or as a result of aow information that affects the judgement.

Contingencics

Toes Bank is cumrextly involved iz vanious Jogal procesdings. The estimars of the probabls cost
for e resoluticn of claims Bas besa doveloped in consultation with the outside legal commsel
Zandling the Bank™s defense in this matter and is baed mpon an analysis of poteatial results.
Mazazement does not balieve that the omtcome of this mamer will affsct the results of cperaticns.
It 3s probable, bowever, that future resules of cperations could be matesially affected by chazpges
in e estimates or in the effectivensss of the stratexies relating to these procesdings

(ss0 Note 23).

Impxurmont of financsal avsets

Toe measuremant of impairment Jostes under PFRS 9 acress all categonies of fimancial assets
requires judgemeat, o particular, ths estimation of the amount and tming of fanwre caih dows
azd collateral values whea determining impairmant Josses and the assessment of a sigmificame
increase in crodit ritk. These estmmates are driven by 2 sumber of Hncton, changes in whichcan
rosult in diffarene lovels of allowances.

Elexonts of the ECL models thatare coasidared accomting judgomaents and ostimates includs:

Internal crodit grading modsl, which assigns PDs to the individusl gradss
Criteria for 2:3033ing if there bas besn a signiScant incmase in credit misk and 20 allowances
for Snancial assets should bo measured oz 2 life tme CL bazis and the gmalinative assesiment
Ths sesmentation of Eaancal assets whea their ECL is 2s30356d 0o a collsctive basis
Dovelcpment of ECL medels, including the varions formzlas and the choice of inpats

¢ Dotermination of association: betwosa macresconomic sconarios and, ecosomic inputs, such
a3 unezsployment levels and collateral valnes, and the effect oz PD3, ZAD: :2d LGD:s

o Sslecton of forward-looking macroscenomic scenarios and thedr probability weighsings, to
derive the eccoomic mputs izto e ECL modsls

T2e ECL moedsls and all ECL-related policies are 2pproved by the Risk Management Comminee
azd the Soard of Directors. The Risk Managameant Uzit caleulates e ECL for all aedit risk

exposures. Toe total ECL that will be booked by the General Accounting Divison is approved
by both the Chisd Openating OfScer and the Chief Risk Offcer.

Tas carrying value of and the allowance for credit losses ox loans and receivables of the
Baxnk a3 of December 31, 2020 and 2019 2o disclesed in Notes § and 12, respectvely.

Tbo Bnk asmm ::pm:oz oz pcopam' a.nd oqu.xpnnr. ms:ma. prapms and repossested
charels whenever eveats or changes in cizcumstances indicate that the currying amemmt of an
3356t may 2ot e recovenble. The factors that the Bask considers important which could migzer
an impairment review include e follewing:

s sipufcant underperformance relatve 20 expectod Ristonical or projected futurs operatag
tesults;

* significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the smategy for overall
business; and

* significant pegative indusTy or economic tends.

A= impairment loss is recogmized whenever the carrying amount of an asset excosds it
recoverable amouxnt, Ths recoverable amount is computed niing e value iz use approackh for
propesty and oquipment and Hir valus lsss coits to el for invest=ent proporties 2ad repossessed
chamels. Rocoverable amounts are estimmated for individ=al assets or, if it 15 2ot posuble, for the
CGU to which the as10t belongs.

Toe Bank's reversal for allowascs for impaimment losses pertains to increase i recovenzble
amount of its investment properties which has besn desrmined based oo its fair value less cost 20
wll, using the valmason teckniques as discussed in Note 3.

Tae details of the carrying values of and t2e allowance for mpairment losses, if any, ca property
azd equipment, Inveitnent propectes 20d repossessed chatels e discuised
Now%s 9,10, 1132412,

Broch Lcenses

Branch licenss is considersd az intangble asset with an indeSnite useful Hfe and it is required to
be tested for mpairmment angually by comparning its carying amsoust with 25 recovenabls amoune,
fmespectve of whether there is any indicaticn that it may bs impaired. The recoverzble amomnt
of the CGU has been determined based o2 3 valus in wie calculations uiing caih ow projections
£om Sxzancial budgets approve by semior managament covering 3 Sve-yexr peniod. The Bazk
uied the cost of oquity as discount rate. Koy assumptions used in the value in use calculation are
poo-tax discount rate and growt rate, wlich are at 10.54% and 5.00%, respectively in 2020.
Mazagement beleves that oo reasomably possible change = 2oy of the key assummptions uied
wozld cause the camrying value of the CGUs 10 excesd their recoterable amount. Asof
Decexnbar 31, 2020 and 2019, the Beensing foo for establishmecat of a branch and a branch-Lite
=it of 3 thrift baxk is #0.20 millica and #0.0] millica, respectvely. The valuzes of and
the allewance for imspaimment losses on branch Beemses of the Bank are disclosed in Notes 11 a=d
12, respectively. In 2020 and 2019, s Bank 2as not recognized provision for impaimment losses
oa branch Lesnses (see Note 12).

Present value of retirement babalizy

Tos cost of pension and other axmployes banedins as well as &6 present valus of the pamsies
obligaton are determined usmg actuaral valusion:. The actuanal valkuaticn nvelve: making
vasions assumptions. 1bese inciude the determizmation of e discount rates, fiurars salary
increases, msortaliny rates and furare peasion Imareases. Due to e cemplaxity of the valuaton, e
w==darlying assumpticns and it leag-term narare, defined beneSt oblizasons are Righly sensitive to
ckanges o these 2ssumptons. All assumptions are reviewsd 22 sach statemexnt of Sxancial
poson dats.
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As of Decambar 31, 2020 and 2019, the present value of retramsnt obizadca of the Bazk
amounted to R22.64 millica and #1656 zillbion, respectively (se0 Note 19).

Iz determmining the appropriate discount rate, manazemnent considers the nterest mtes of
govermmant boads: that are denominated in the cumrsacy in which the baze £ will be paid, with
mpohadmncmpondagto&ommdmo‘éo&&dmma

Toe moernality rate is based ca publicly available mestality tables for the specific comnty and is
modiSed accordingly with ¢stimates of mortality tmprovemeat. Furare salary increases and
pension increases are based co sxpectsd fature infason rates for the specific conary.

d) Fresens value of lease aklities
T2s Bank cannot readily deteemine the interest rate imsplicit in the lsase, terefors, it nies its
mcremextal bommowing rate (IBR') to measure lease Labilites. The IBR is the rate of intarest
that the Bank would Bave 0 pay to berrow cver a similar secxs, and with 3 similar secunty, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of 3 similar valus to the right-of-use asset in 2 similar
econcmic eavironment. The IBR erefore redects what the Baxk “would have to pay’, which
roquizes ¢stimatios whea no obsarvabdle rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not
eater into financing transyctions) or whea they 2eed 0 be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditons of the lease.

Toe Bank estimaates the IBR using observable nputs (such a3 market interest rates) whez
available and i3 required to maks certain satiny-ipecific adjust=eats (such a3 the credit spread for
a stand-2lone credit mtimg, or to refisct the terms and conditens of s lsase).

The camrying amount of Jease Lablites a3 of Docamber 31, 2020 224 2019 i3 disclesed in Note 20.

¢) Recogrition of deferred tax assets
Defecrred tax 3330ts wre recognized for all uzased tax Josses 20 the extent that it is probable that

xxable profit will be available agaizmss which tho losses can be uslized. Siznifcant management
judgmaat is required to determins ths amon=t of defarred tax assets that cam bo recogmized, based

wpon the Lkely timing and level of future taxabls profts together with futare tax planaing
LTI,

Tae estizmates of furme taxable income indicars that cortain temporary &Ferences will be realized
o e funre. The details of the exporawry diffarences with unrecoznized deferred tax assets and
recognized deferved tax assets and Labilines are disclosed in Note 21.

4. Fizascial Rick Mazsgement Objectives and Policies

The m=aiz ritks aniing from the Bank's £asncial imstuments are cvedit, market and Bguidity risks. In
geaenal, the Baxk's nisk managament objective 3s 1o ensure that risks takea are withis the Baxk's nisk
appetite, which i3 2330356d based oo the Bank's capinal adeguacy Samework. The nisk masagement
process involves risk ideatfcation, measarement, monitoring and coazol.

Ths Baxk recognizes thatrisk manypemsent is the respensibility of the extire or

Accordizngly, all czmployses are sxpeocted to manags risks relating aoduzmmpecu%ﬂma Sell,
there are specialized enttes within the Back that perform certain risk mazagament functons.

Ths Board of Dirsctors (BOD) ultmately oversess and approves significant maress related torisk
managament threughout the Bask. The BOD directly cammies ont its primary responwbilities a3
required by law and through committoss and subcommiress for specific areas of focus. The
Managezneat Committes approves all major risk taking actvites of the Bank, and fanctons astde
BOD's operating committes for approval of all major credit ridks.

Amozg e Bank”s committess are:

e the Ritk Management Commimee (RMC), wlich formulates policies and strategios to identify,
=easure. manage and linit the Back's risks:

o tho Audit Commines (AC), which examings the Bank's framework of risk management, coatol
azd governancs process 10 eosure that these are adegaate and functional: and

e the Corponate Governance Commines (CGC), which exsures the BOD's effoctivensss and dus
observascs of e CorponIte FoVArnane principles and puidslings.

The following =nits withis the Bazk jointly perform itk management fanctions oz a dadly basis:

Compliance for regulatory risk:

Treasury for funding and Lguidity nisk:

Credit Cycls and Opemations for credit misk:

Rizk Management for various risks, inclading markes, credit and operational nisks: and

I:_:iuul Azdit for the ovaluaton of the adequacy of intemmal ceawol syitemus, covering operatonal
sisk.

These units submit various fisk reports to the Mazagemeat Commmittes, the RMC, the AC. 2 CGC
axd the BOD, among others.

Further specific risk managemnent disclosures, melading mitization, measursment and coatrel, aro i
the succesding sectons.

Crodit risk may be deSined as the possibility of lous dus to the failurs of 3 custozsrborrowsr o
counterparty to perfomm its obligation to the Baxk.

The Bank has several crodit nistk mitization practices:

o Tbe Bank offars a variety of Joan prodzcts with subitansial collateral values. The latter partof
this crodit ritk secton discusses collateral and ocbor cvedit enbancements.

o  Limits are 3ot ox the amount of credit risk that the Bank is willing o take for customers aad
countarparties, and exposures are mexstered against such credit Limit,

o Tie Bank al:o cbierves related regalatory Lmits suck as e single bomrowses™s limit (SBL) and
&rectors, ofScers, stockboldars and related interests (DOSRI) cotling.

o The Bank aszesses e probability of default by its borrowers miing an intermal loan classiScatien
syvstems,

e Paitdue and nex-performing Joas (NPL) rasios are also used to measwre and moxzitor the quality
of the loan porxfolio.
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Maunuam cxposure to credit risk aficr collateral held or other credit enhancements

Ths tabls below shows the Bank's net credit risk sxposure for scme itemss = loans and receivables
after considering the financial efect of collatera] and ofer credit sxbancements:

Collateral and aeher credit enfancement
Ths axcw=t and type of collatenal roquired depands om an assesament of credit risk. Guidelines axo
implemenred regarding e acceptability of types of collatenal and valuatos parameters.

Ths mais types of collateral obtained are as follows:

o Rsal Estate Mortzages (REM) over real estaze for boming loan, consumption, and SME loazs;
and

o Chamsls Morgages (CM) over vehicle and nveatory for amo loans, ceasumpdoes loan, SME
lJoans, and small business Joans.

It is the Baxk"s policy to dispose of repossessed propertes in an ordasly fachion In gensral, the
proceeds are used 0 reducs or repay the outstanding claizs, and are 20t occupied for butiness use.

Concentration of credit

Ceaceamatons amise when a oumber of connterparties are sagaped in wimilar business actvites, or
actvitios = the same geozraplic regica, or have similar ecomomsc fsatares that would cause their
abilizy to meet conractaal oblizations to be sizuilasly affected by changes in oconeomic, poliscal or
othsr conditon:. Concentrations indicate the relative semsitivity of the Bank's parfermance to
developments affectng a partcular industry.

Ths tables below sdow te dstibution of maxizuum credit exposure o cvodit sk by ndussy sector
of the Baxk befare taking into account collateral 2sld x=d other crodit sabancemeats:

W20
Finsacid Masimum
Carrying Fair Vakie Effectof Esposure o
Amowst  of Cullsterd Colisterd Crodi Risk
Lo sad resavatios
Reovayaldes Mom caadossen
Comuanption PL3 4T PSS13546 PLITOAST PLINITLIOG
Connercsd 2730 2HLSTRIYY Ta020 0283 8%
Real eviee R34 197492528 RlA% 6 -
Otler receivadides
Accnas] sstorest seceivadile .7 m8 - - 2,75 m8
Accuusts receyvadie 8227207 - - B22727
Sades corgract soceivable 208312 112 %80, 752 2058 312 -
Tood = PLOAARRELO o PSS 2N L PIIT™T16 iR PLIZZ 20104
ol -
Firsescial Mavnsun
Caurying, Fair Vil Effas of Eguouse 1o
Acrarare of Cellssersd Colicenl Cresit Risk
Locem 3d recavalios
Reovay sives Mom Custosens
Comuangton PLIRIIRS 2SS P75 531 732 PI171.235831  PLOR RSO 168
Cozurerced 82465332 22T R84 631 79051760 ER SRS o)
Real cwe 44,701,562 RV 1N 45,701 42 -
Otlex receivadies
Accruex] asteresl seceivadile 11430854 - - 11435853
Acouusts reccivale 29,990 438 - - 29990438
Sades Uiy 2T 067937 6d £33 960 TO6T 97T -
Tood Pl T80 409 ST RIS Pids 2599 1680 Pl 251 323 239

-——

Offsctting of financial asets and financial ablinies

Ths Bazk has alic extersd inte auwsosdommwmm"n’muowin
that ars accounted for as a collateralized Thaze Transactons are subject to 2 global master
repurchaso agrecment with a right of set-off caly againit e collataral socunties upen dofult and
msolvency or bazkrupicy and tharefore do Dot mest the ofietting criteria under PAS 32,
Coxzegquently, the related SPURA s presented separately Som the collatenal secarities in the Bank's
statements of Exsamcia] pesiton

Ths tabls below preseats the recozmized Snancial instumeats of the Bank that are offiee, or subject 2
exforceable master Datting agreements oF other aimilar arrangemseats but not offtet, 23 3t
Decsmber 31, 2020 and 2019, taking into account the sffects of over-collatenalizaton.

200
Lavestment
Leoany nad Advyances to *eCHriees at Refund die
Recais aldes Basks*  amortised cost s Total
Penwisd comuplion PYTTA9A0) - [ ~  PITaAN
Frasgaaad intemnal ases 77,708 TR - - STIIANY
Oy service stiviies 04T - - - HTRINTR
Wholesale and retad tode, repir
of motoe velicies
sead soloendies 0XI5 842 - - - PIORIS A2
Real estale sotivities 121.599.589 - 1968719 123 558 S8
Agrcultae, foeosy and Gading R2119%,136 - - - AL
Cominaton 21516068 - - 21516058
Flacatioa 15113410 - - - 151134100
Munufcturiag RATH 168 - - - RATH 188
Accoamedaton & fond
SCNICES ACbvites (%D R LY - - - (% - R LY
Prolewicaal scicrtific snd
e Inicd sernvicss 6461810 - - - 6461010
Tresporuton and sosge LE5TAa - - - 215TIA
O 1.0 48 B 20000000 - 21,548
1380 26582 STLTINY 2 1365719 2584709700
1.9 - 2SS

Lew allomsace for codit s IS SN2 -

(v aumeants TN of romsalndag e of
it Wllin Nt srmeant ot T o Lo 1wkt mmat
Covm sesunts  sccordancs with peresamted s FAS I afuming critesta
of recogyd ved e A Sanomrns of
Crwen i Sty frwonld NMrwasasal Praestal
[y st crinta Dm s W V-V evdlare rnl Net cxpmare
e
Thancial Avsta
SMTA AT A »- LA A » At A kd L
Q1%
Tranial Aswrs
SMTA . mmoaf » L iy N | » LTI O .

TN

Noompriwd af Doe from 00X, Due from ey Sl and ST RA

2019 5
nves troent
lat- oo Ay s o socuries o Refunidic
advies Basds® sescetin] cont (o T
Fomunnasl ntemnedares Fl0 811487 PSSO 114020 PlS IRAS S [ S P 212549
Oy scrvae sivities 651.837.13% - - - 651 487136
Penwred comption &2 - - - 4240100

(Foreard)
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e tient
Locans s Ady e o socsrtes o Refamlidic
Rocay slies Besd o* sswetimn] cost depamies Total
Wiholesade dad reted tosde, ropir
of motee velacdies
xad soloendies P277.82594) P- - P~ P2TA2594)
: foomstey and fidirg 104,45, 734 - - - 6 4% 7583
Rl oot sativites W 006158 - 15000000 1,2356941 W6 25313
Comstnason I M4 - - - IL046
Flaaticn 15877478 - - - 15877478
Mufscterieg .70, - - - 1.73059
Actoanmodaton & foad
KD bvilies 6371337 - - - 637137
Peolosionl scicntific sl
o lenced servioes S35 - - - S8T9547
T 0 ansd 2T - - - 2770498
onmmw i N 1664323 - IS0R268 - IR 691591
1858 52853% S50.11456205 2031578 1.236.931 2606 001 567
Lew allomsace for cndit o 274 721947 - 6722 274 128 669
PLSO 602400 PSW L1486 P20 35 182 P1LI&EY3] P2 2TAIS

Nompriw S af Dae fram B, D from oo Baaks and VXA

Credit guality

In sasuring a quality imvestment portfolic, the Baxk mositers credit risk Som investment securnites
ning credit ratimzs based on Standard and Poor (S&P).

Crodit quality of dus froxa BSP and cthar baxzks and ntwerbank loans receivabls are based oz available
accredited international and local credit ratess miing Fitch as standard of rating.

Ths Bazk 233izms the following credit quality groupings bazed oo natings:

Credit Qualiey Fitch Moody's S&P Stape
High Gnade AAAwA- Asato A3 AAA 10 A 1
Standard Grade BBB+t0BB- Baal 1o Bal BBB~-1tc BB- 1
Substandxrd Grade B+t C- BlwCa B-wC 2
Past due 2ad i=paired D C D 3

For consumer loams (1.0, auto, bousing, cvodit card) that are coversd by application scerecards wiich
provids either 3 pass/fail score. the basis for credit qualsy nting is the BSP clasuiScaticn and'or e

stamus of the acconune

Netther past due nor indridually impaired

The Baxk claszsifes those accounss under curmrest status haviag the following loan mades:

o Highgnde

Tais pectains 0 accounts with a very low probability of defazlt a3 demncasyrated by the

bomowes's long Zistory of stakility, profnbility and divensity. Toe bomower Bas the ability to
naite tubitantal amonnes; of funds through the public markets. The borrowsr has a stroax dodt
wrvice record axd 2 medemate use of loverage.

+  Stzdwd zade

T2e bommowsr kas 0o history of dafault. The borower Bas sufSicient liguidizy to fully service its
Ssbt over e medium term. The borrower has adequate capital to readily absord any potential

Josses Eomin

profinable cperations for atlsast the past thros (3) years.

cperatons azd any reasczably feresecable coxtingencies. The bomower reported

Substandrd gmade

Toe bomrower is axpected to be able to adjust to the cychical dowaturns in its cperatons. Azy
seolonged advere sconcmic conditons wonld bowever ostensibly creats proStability and

Lquidizy issues.
Uzrated mads

Crhar crodit 2ssets which cazmact be classificd as High Standard or Sub-standard xre tagped 23

Uzrated.

Impaired
Accounts wiich thow svidence of mspairment as of statexent of Exancial positon dats.

Belew 200 the staging parameters adopted by the Bank effectve Jazmary 1, 2018 in rslaticatoits

PFRS 9 adoption

S
Stazng by Days PaitD=e

Staging by Status

Stagag by Maransy Do s

Parameter

Stage

Dexcriptios

Cut-of date

1

LB

Apphmbkmalllampum

Accounts with 0 - 30 days pastdue (applicable for all Joxa
prodacts excopt for microfnance Joans wherein days past
dus for Stage 1 accomnts is 0 - 6 days).

Accounts with 31+ 90 days past due (appicabls forall
loan products sxcept for microfaance loaas wheredn days
past dus for Stage 2 accounts is 7 - 10 days).
Accounts with days past dus of 91 dayys and above
(2pplicabls for all loax products except for microfnance
loazs whersin days past due for Stage 3 accounts more
axa 10 days).

Applicable to all loan prodicts except for Microfinance.
Accounts tagged 33 Cusrent in its Status 200 classiSed
under Stage 1.

Accounts tagged as ITL in its Status are classiSed mder
Stage 3

Appiicable 1o all loan prodicts.

If Matezmity Dats of tho account is after the cut-0ff dato of
e ECL Calculation, and if the days leading up to the cur-
off dats Srom the mararity dats is Jess than 30 days, the
accommt is tagged under Stage 1 (For MicroSnancs loans,
if Mamunity Date of the accomat i3 after the cut-off date of
s ECL Calculyson, and if the days leading up to the cur-
off date from the mararity date is Jess thaxn 10 days, the
accommt is tagged wader Stage 1)

If Maremity Date of the account is prier to the cut-off date
of the ECL Calculation, and if the days leading up to the
cut-off dato Som the maturity date is macre thax 30 days,
ths account is t2zged undsr Stage 3 (For Micredinance
loaxs, if Matusisy Date of the accomnt is prior the cutoff
dats of the ECL Calculaticn, and if e days lsading up to
s cut-off date from the manurity date is mere than 10
days, the accoust is tagaed wader Stage 3).
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The following tables show the credit quality per class of nvestmaents and other fnancia] assets of the

Baxnk:
Dacorndar 31 2020
Stage 1 Scags 3 Stage 3 Totad
D o ISP
T lart PAALR 42 L L P A
D oo ofar b
o lart Vi, L% el - - 0% 02
S Etens ardiamd e twale agresest
s lard 129444175 - - 1394446178
WA UTIAT MO Tee 8 STortrad cont
Com e waads e tan
T lary - - - -
Private bande
T Lard 19,95 10 - - 19,99 10
Telasladie Seponrs
vt 1% 74 - - 1,961 74
POALTOL DD B » POALTOL I
Dwierdar 31 W13
= - D 1 SSage o Q:r 3 ?nd_
D o TSP
S lart | 222Ny L - POl T
D T Qe b
S lart LR A - - Yixem e
S tas prdiomd ol twale agremeest
S lard L2 ¥ o - - L2 R ¥
IAITIET MOT T & STOrtoal cont
L S S g
s Lart PLIOSA AW . - PO A
Trivass bonda
P lart 920,000 ¢ - - 20026 A
Telrrlatie lepoem
Lirrasad 1 048 M1 - - 1 248 81
mwt‘.‘,su; » » ; PrELATT SN

Ths following tables sbow the credit quality per class of Joans and receivables, gross of allowance for
crodit losses and ussarned intersst and discount of s Baxk:

Stage | Seage 3 Stage 3 Totad
T acaiv e Tom CETEWEE
Nemter Mg Dus aor Indnitady espainad
I gnde LS LS L "
Rl iNeInmn e 12280047 - - 1220002479
e @ Torm grade HepO, 164 - TIAOE, F o4
Part S50 %2 oot kxparwd - pAN S RIS - PAFS R
et e wd erpaimd - - 19230 se3 194347 50
13,3640 MECSELS ) 100 0 1,55 00 400
Comwecinl
Narter Pue Des sor Indnitad y Srapaioad
1500 gnde - - - -
sl dNalun pule 620 0T - - IR W7
et endnt lom gnde 227,10 - - 127 1m0
Pt 200 s ot be e e - ORI -
Tad Cum oS - - " 2 15,532
79,09 %87 & om 28 X 4018 032 (B STy
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Ligmdizy itk may be defined 33 the possibility of loss @26 20 ths Bank's inability to mest its Snancial

obligaticas when they become due. Liquidity risk is ceosidersd in the Baxzk's assets and Labikises
managesent. The Bazk sesks to longthen Lability matarities, divenify existing fimd sowrces. and
coatizuously develop now instumseats that cater o &Effercat sogmeats of the market.

Ths Bazk alic keops credit Lmes with financial mmimsons. a3 well 33 3 pool of ligwd o highly
=arkenble secwrines. Reterves management is azothar specialized function withs the Bazk,

coxsplying with BSP reserve requirements, which may be a buffor againit unferesesa liguidity draizs.

Ths Lquidity or matunity gap repert is another tool for measuring Lguidity risk. Although available

coatractaal marzrity dates are gessnally uied for putting

liguidation periads, often baed on histerical data, ave used if contactual maturity dates are

mnavailabls. The Lguidity g2p

por timse basd is comprred by serting the &iffereace betwean the

nﬂmandwxﬂomwm:bombnd. A positive Bgquidity gap is a3 estmate of the Bank’s zet
excoss fimds for the tmo band. A sezative Boquidity gap 15 an estimate of 3 future funding

requiremsat of the Bank. AlSough such gaps ame 3 normea] part of the buiingss, a umifcant sezative

amouxnt suay bring signiScant Lquidity stisk. To belp ceawol Bquidity risk arising o segative
cumszlaty

liguidity gaps, maximum

% outflow (MCO) trgets are set for time bands up to cae (1) year.
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Analysis of financial insruments by remaining matuntes
The tabls below summarized the manwity profile of the Bank's Snancial imstumean based oz
ccatactaa] undiscounted cash dows:

Pneomdur 31 2000

T Ower 3w Owr it
Orn Sernand 3 swentis  te 1) snente 2 Yearn  Oner ® yourn Totud
Thnamial Avwts
Cad and 0 Owr cad Iweas Lg% 2 N2 LB " ’ LB Lgpd LR
Drae Sroe DSI CILma o I e - - - LISETLE
D oo oder bava LA S L XS - - - - 109 002
B Tas rdiand wder mesale
1297970 - - - 139,700, 70
TON TR OaT e ) Kol
com* - - MR VR B3 ) 13 023
Lot wnd mecsivaian® 24506 0 (SR XTS5 o) AL LOG e T 1900 510
Fhnancial ToaBtien
Thpeat badimes® PIIEMLOL PIATTIES PILETAAS SO0 PLAR A #2108.002 59409
T adiaralia pru s Qares 34,706 000 - - - - 30,706 o0
ALSTAd e ven 0l 0Owr L (3T -
ALCPId O s - 20810 - - 0453 09)
O Badd rtan™ 1 3,903 2. 13 24T A% ) Rl )
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SO b mogtuinaal LaNined smoewwg o PIRNIA21)
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Market Risk
Market risk may be defined 23 the posathilsy of Joss dus to adverie movemaents i market &actors
such as rates and prices. Market rizk is preseat in both wading and nco-trading acuvites.

These 200 the misk to sarmings or capital arising Som chaznges in the value of oaded pontfolios of
financial inscuments. The risk anises Som market-making dealing and positon-taking in guoted
dobt securites and fereigs exchangs.

Ths Baczk obsarves masket risk limits, which are approved by the BOD and revdewed 2t lsast
azoually. Limits are st is such 3 way a5 t0 ensure that ks taken are based on the Bank™s existing
capital adequacy Samewerk, and comresponding meaitering repors are prepared rezulxly by an
indspendent ritk management wmit

Whea Limits are breached, approval is songhe Som succossive lovels of authority depending ca the
amouxnt of the excess. Limit breackes are periodizally presentad to the BOD.

Ireerest rate risk
Izterest rate risk arites fom e poswibibty that changes io ixterest rates will afect funws cazh fdows
or the Syir values of Enxncial instumeats.

The Bank's ALCO surveys the interest rass exvironment, adinats the interest razes for the Baxk™s
Joans and depotits, 33165108 Imvestment opportunities and reviews e structure of assets and
labdliges. Tas Bank uses Eamings-ar-Ritk (E2R) as a teol for meastring and managing interest rate
risk in the bazking bock.

Farrungs-at-Rask obyecaves and

EAR is a statistical measure of the Likely n:px: of changes in intorest rates 10 the Bank™s net imterest
mcome (NI). To do this, repricing gaps (difarence botweon itarest rate-seasitive assets xd
Labilizes) ae classified accerding to tmo to ropricing and multplied with applicabls Ristorical
interest rate volatlity, although available ceamactual repricing dates are pesenally used for putung
InsTaments into tme bands, conmactual maturity dates (8.5.. for fixed rate instuments) or expected
liguidation periods often baed on Ristorical dat2 2o uted alisczatvely. The repricing gap per time
baxd is computed by geming the &ffarencs between the inflows and ontflows: within tho tme band A
PORIVE repricing g2p implies that the Bazk™s NI could decling if interest rates decreass upon
Tepricing. A:»gm repricing g2p implies that the Bank's NI could decline if interest rates crsae

upea repnicing. Although such gaps 20 a permal past of the baiiness, as.p:ﬁameb.nsoa:}bms
interest rate nitk. To Belp conmel interest rate risk arising from repricing gaps, maxizyum

signiScant
repricing gap and EaR/NII targots are set for time bands up to 026 year. m.spupmdndnpomd
20 the RMC mcasthly, starting Decamber 2015,

Ths change in interest rate is calculated ming historical simulation. It is compured a3 the 99
peccentls rank changs in rates if the gap 1 negatve (Uability-teasitvs) or the 1st perceastle raxk
change In rates if the gap is positve (sset-easitive).

Ths Bank's EaR figares 23 of December 31, 2020 and 201€ ars as follows (in PHP nullions):

2020 _ _
Average  Highest Lowest December 31
Inseuemanes senuitve to local imtecest rates ¥4 #0042 (¥.3%) ».0
2019
- Aveam =t ~oava eosmber 31
Instrueoants weasitve 0 local intecest rates #®.10 o @0.11) W

Farcign currency risk
Foreigs carrency risk is the risk that the valus of £xancial instruments will Sucmate dus to changes

In foreign exchange mates. The Bazk's policy is o mamtain foreign currency exposure within
accepuable Lmirs

Changes in foreign exchangs rates Zave 2o significant impact om the Banks's foreiga exciangs gan
or less on "Due Seom other banks® 23 of Decemmber 31, 2020 and 2019.
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5. Fair Value Meazurement

As of Docexsber 31, 2020 and 2019, the camrying amomnts of the Baxk's financial Instrumants are
reascnable spproximations of fair values except for investment secunities at amortized cost loans and
receivables, refundable depoiits and depouit Labalities with terms of msore than oxe (1) year.

The methods and assumptions used by the Back in estmating the fair value of the Szancial
mstuments ars as follows:

Investmaont securinies at amorszed cost - Debt secunties

Fair values 2o generally based on guoted macket prices. If the macker prices are not rsadily
available, fair values are estimared using adjusted quoted market prices of comparabls investments or
uiing the discounted cad flow methedolegy.

As of Docemaber 31, 2020 and 2019, fair valus of izvestments at amortzed cost is classifiod undss
Levdd 2, and Level 1 and 2, respectvely.

Recenvalles from customers, sales contract recetvable, finance lease recenable and refundable
depasits

Fair values 2o ostimared uiing the discounted cash How methodology, miing the average market price
of savings baaks for similar types of receivables with maranties consistent to o rocsivable being
valued. Whare the instuments Teprice o2 3 short-term basis or Bave a relatvely thort manwity, the
cxrying amouxnt: approxizmate fair valaes.

Time and special savings deposity
Fxirvalues are estimnared maing the disconnted cask flow meodology miing the Bazk's cuwreat
incremextal borrowing rates for similar borrowinm wih manwrites comsistent with those remaizing

for the Lability being valued

Investment properties

Fair valos of iovestment proparties are based oo marke: data (or direct sales comparizon) approach.
This 2pproach relies oa the companizon of recent sale transactioas or offerings of similar propecties
which bave cccurred and’er offared with close proximity o the subject propesty.

Ths Hir values of the Bazk's Investment properties bave bean determined by appraisess, including
independent extarnal appraisers, in the bams of the recent sales of similar propertes in the same arsys
as the Investmeat properties and taking into account the ecesomic conditiens prevailing at the tims of
the valuations are mads. Toe Bank 2a: determined that the hizhest and best uie of the proparty mied
for tho land and building is its curTent mse.

Financial habdities at amornzed cost except time and special sovimgy deposits
Camrying amsounts approximare fair values us to eithar the demasd sature or e relagvely
shert-tomm mararites of these liabilites.

As of Docemaber 31, 2020 and 2019, fair valuss of loams and recaivables, Ivestmeat propertes,
refundable deposits and deposit Eabilitios are clasiified wmdor Level 3.

Ths following table summmarizes the carying amoeunts and fiir values of loans and receivables and
deposit Habilities for which carying amouats do not approximate fir valugs:

2020 2019

Carrving Vaue Far Vadue Coory ooy Value Fair Value

Fimancial Avets
Investscnt socurtics € mncctisal ool P12 95100 P17 442468 P00 09182 P195,755168
Todes snd reavatios
Rovey svdes Mo cadomen
Cotsusngtion 131528 5%) 15580099 1,382,288 258 1.554.2:0 002
Cotssrsrcial 9. 721469 151820061 2468382 9024672201
Fed entass RIATTIS 4 359009 46,703 %2 DN
Otler receivadvies
Sales contieg ravey able MNEosI12 17216487 V06T T 19,964,393
Refantabie doponits 1,968,719 1,792 5 1245931 1.16948)
Non-feancial Ascts
Ivesscnt proponticy 105 X1AT1) 206136 115890079 18185125
Financial Lisbilithes
Depost Rdilites
These JISLTATSe 364,02 1487 BRI 3163, 82529
Seviags 4520847548 452628300 IR W19 IR2 164634

Forassets and labdities that are recogmized at fair valuo oz 3 recwrring basds, S Bazk determines
whether taznsfen have ocoured berasen lovels i the erarchy by reassessing catogonization (baed
o2 the Jowest Jevel izput that is signiScant t0 the fair value measwrament as 3 whole 22 t2s end of cach
statement of Snancial posities)

In 2020, thers waso no assfass betwean Lavel 1 and Lovel 2 fair valus mcarmrassents and thers wee
20 tazsfers izto and out of the Lovel 3 category.

Description of significant unchiervable nputs to valuaton:

Accsunts Valusticn Texdnigee Signific ust Unodservable lopets

Toves s recavatios Doconuend cud Nom petlnd 6007 - 7 0956 mad grosium nee
liveemcrs propentics

Land Mol daasgproxch Pace per sguee mcter, sz, Sage, hocion,

theve clerne ot and dhwoes

Budling Clont sppeoach Cost per s macter, size, sdage, bodion,

snd tine clemest

Deport Kdilites Daconsed cad Now nethnd 3630 - 4375 il prestian mee

Refuntalie doposits Dacoarend cud Mo etlnd S 607 - 6 8% rnk pressiun oee

Sigaificant increazes (decrsases) i price per squars meter 20d size of investment properties would
rosultin 2 signiScantly higher Qowes) fxir value of the ies. Sigmificant increases (decreases) =
&scount would resultin 3 signiScantly lower (Righer) fair value of e propecties.

Size Sizo of lot = tarms of aea. Evaluass ifthe lot w226 cf propesty or
cempanible conforms 10 e average cut of e Jots in the aea and
estimmate the impact of the Jot iz &fwrances o land valus.

Shape Particular form or configumation of the Jot. A highly fmogular shape
lizsie the usable area whareas an idsal lot conSgunton maximizes the

wiable arca of the Jot wkich is associated in desizning an improvesseat
wiich conform: with e bigkest and best uie of the propery.
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Lecaton Locason of companative propesties whether co 3 mainroad, o7
wecondary road. Road widsh could alio bea considerason if datais
available. As aruls. propertes Jocated aloag a main road are szpernior
%0 properties located aloaz 2 secoadary road.

Time Elsment A= adjustment for macket coaditons is made if genenl property values
Zave appreciated or depreciated since the tamsacton dates dus o0
mflaton cr deflation or a change iz Investor's parceptions of the market
over timme. Is which case, the cumrent data s superior to Ristoric data.

Discount Geaarally, asking prices i 2d: pested for salo are negotabls. Discount
i the amsounst the seller or developer is wilkng to deduct fom the posted
wlling price if e tansacton will be in cash o7 eqvalent

6. Securitiez Purckazed Under Rezale Agreement

SPURA partains %0 lending 20 BSP azd Rave 3 ramaining maturity of four (4) days. Asof
December 31, 2020 and 2019, s fair value of the related collateral of SPURA amsouated to
#129.67 million and R66.58 sullon, respectvely.

SPURA sxrms azzual interest naging from 2.00% 00 5.00% and 4.00% 20 4.75% = 2020 and 2019,
respectvely. The interest income of the Baxk from SPURA amounted to #4.01 xillon and
#35.46 milliea in 2020 and 2019, sespectively.

Ths Bazk's effoctive interest r2es oo investments in FOVEI=znent secuites and private bonds
clazsifed a3 investuent securities at amertzed cost follow:

‘o

20 2019

Governmont secuntioes
Privats bonds

- 3.7 -412%
452% 4.52%-4.83%

I3 2020 224 2019, interest incocse 00 Ivesteat socurites at ameorszed cost follow:

. Inve:tment Securites at Amortized Cozt

This accoust consists of;

2020 2019

Governmant secusitioes 2- B130.286.636
Privats bonds 20,000,600 $0.029 268
20,000,000 200315904

Lass allowance for credit losses Nots 12) 1,900 6722

215998100 __ #200.309.182

Iz 2020 2nd 2019, izvestment socurities 2t amertized cost wers cxried at Stage 1 and thers were no
Tazifers into and cut of Stage 1.

In 2020, the Baxk &sposed government secunites clasiified as HTC securities with camying amsount
of #180.98 million which resulted in 3 gain of #2 93 million recorded in the statemment of ncome
=ndar ‘Profit from assets sold’. T2s s2le was due to 2 change in ths Bank™s inteation ca the
instuments from Bolding o collsct principal and mterest to realizing the gains Som the dsposal of
the secunities in view of the impact of the COVID-19 pandamic. The remainiag HTC secunties of the
Bank will rezeain to be under HTC business modsl

This account consists of:

2020 2019
Government secunitioes #1883 464 ®59356.115
Private bond: 1.710.875 2384192
”.594&9 23.350.307

. Loan: and Receivables

2020 2019

Recerables Som customers:

Consumption P1553,089.649 R1.394.154098
Commarcal 151,836 347 175931730
Real estate §4.722.858 52,333,337
1,789,648 854 1822416363
Less unearned intecest and discozat 50,193,981 15634664
LDascount oz loan modificaron 24,397,000 =
1.715,057,783 1.765.784.701

Cthar seceavables:
Accrued interest receivable 76,603,136 28286250
Accounts receivable Note 22) 46,554,431 33,000,256
Sales contrace recaivable 21.811.512 27.242.849

1860026862 18543243356

Lass allowance for credit losses Nowe 12) 235,538,042 274,721,847

#1624 488820 21,579,602 408

Axn analysis of changes in the gross camying amount aad the correspeading allowancs for credit
Josses in relasion to consumpton Joxas follow:

2020
Stape 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Totd

Gruss caryylsy ameouni
Beginmuey, tulexe P15 0T 1LI80 P22923001 PAGAS21T  PLSM ISR
New wocts ongneed of purcasal LIS 346070 - - LIS 346170
Asacts deroougrsaad o repisd

fesclialing wrik offy) (LIZKIS2853) 22NMLTR (A3 0625%)  (L19iS0.4T)
Toswfern o Stage | w670 (K14.323) Mran -
Tesnden o Stage 2 (23.500.949) 2 50449 -
Tesenfen o Stage 3 (63,531 .515) (1 946856) S AT -
Asicasts writien ofT - - LRS00 (B RN
Fndirg hdare (A3 T Y} 21563103 PIIS 903 P1S 0619
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Steg | Stag 2 Stap ) Jotd
Alywance for credit ooy
Bemmuny ludaxce PLI N3 N7 P27 PLAIATSS PISS T 348
Provedom for (recovery of) ool loees® WA (2233 R F ) 287564
Tesnden © Suge | 722 (L) 56.21%) -
Trnwden © Suge 2 (195%51) 19555 -
Teufen © Suge ) (17 mM5935) (27300, 1T 828 -
Anowts wonen o = = LML OO
" ) ? ALY
O ot (ot om slowance of maugens bareeen Laage | 1 T ore raacnd i provion for (ecovery of) credt s
2019 _
Stape ) Sl Sege Josd
Coom Curynyg nows
Bopmuay budaxs PRES S92.646 PIL SR YT PIWEIITR  PLOO LSS
New wocts ongecd or purchiaal 2018 %69 e - - 2008 %9
Assets derecogrond or ropeed
(exciudug wrie offs) (1879677335 (15,187, 268) (A3L88314) (SR 72m7)
Tounden © Stage | 612918 (262.626) (422312) =
Tesewden © Stuge 2 (M558 24151158 (115905 -
Trewlen © Stage 3 (53,832 900 (4 438 00) S 321600 -
Asmaats wnikn o _ - - - 4 94004 4 96 004
F&M Pl 5071 080 P22 923801 mtwgn Pl 554 154 0%
Allowance for crodie losses
Beopmua e PLLOTR 2R PIRSS 9% Pla2 247 Pl% 19967
Provesom for (recovery of) ool s 1,963 338 1536 524 1314958 3.741 0%
Towwden © Sge | 77588 (26285) (Te w2y -
Trsendern © Stage 2 (31.535) 155201 (73566) -
Teosewfen © Suge ) (T8 549 (1,244 232) 1978231 -
Assoarts wrilien of 7 - - (4 954018 (4 Va0
T e P13 25 W7 P227 6553 Plal 275915 P15S 307 348

S0 e Nt om aBoeonou of waers Debeven Sxage | 2 aw W prcAn s A Cre ) Miows

Ao analysis of changes in e gross camying amount and the correspoading allowancs for credit
Josses in relation o commercial loans follow:

0

- B Stage | St 2 St 3 Tocd
Gorom carrying smount
Bogmuny bulece PET R4S P39S PLOL e PIS3
New mects ortmeod o purcisoal $1.930209 - - R1.930469
Assets dermcnguuind or roped

(exciuading write offs) (19.027221) (HBS4000) 27319471 (S1M13582)
Trunfen o Suge | ISR 3T3 (AR5 =
Trwden © Sugs: 2 (L7409 12440709 - -
Truslen © Stage 3 (3AS13mK) (1107 MHSea 08 .-
Asscvarts writien ofT - - L :

hane PRS0 7 P 458 228 Pos X1RSI2 PLS 1 A6 347
Alywance for credit booes
toehance PI79Ss L P22 P23 n2221

Providomn for ool lowes® 1265048 - - -
Tesnlen © Stuge | - - - -
Tomwden © Suge 2 (1AI2 500, 153250 - -
Teouuden © Sug: ) (SIR%4) Y1) 519928 -
Amoants writicn ofT - - (45,024570) (45,024670)

92 ” S0 S 7,734
O et Nt om allowancs of Baurers bareven Saage [ s 1 orw raflac wd e recovery of ived\) haases

2019 .
Sugel Swpe 2 Stape 3 Joud
Gooos Curyng svous
j Do LS R P23 9556107 P1OS 03R48 PIT22905%
New macts onpaseed of purciaad £2 039,00 - - 22039 00
Assets derecogumd o repied
(esclading wrir offs) (60,833 125) Q. N02.226) $.3117%5) (69.919.116)
Tosndetn o Suge | 233158 (1.551871) (70213 -
Tresafen © Sug: 2 O8N TINV AN - -
Toesfen o Suge 3 (199647 (1), %4 555) 1516101 -
Ascnests weitien off — = _REING ___ASIING
?&M T 99 243 1331349 104 &8 17593070
Alow ance for ondie lowes
Bogiouny baloce PimRie PRRILEYY PIT RSO B0 PLO7 L8R 530
Reoovery of oalit owes* (157,167 (148795, “mamn (S 2089
Tousfen o Sug: | 2331 (15515 .302) -
Trenfen o Sage 2 (39511 59881 - o
Tesnfen © Suge ) Q3573 ANTRN 8751 2002 -
Assourts writien off - - (A7 51 (R &7 S1v
P79 S8 [ P33 211 742 P33 392 01
— —_— —— ———

ST et et om alowance of waafers Savwenn Sxage [ 3 arw raflocwd v provision for (recavery ofF credt s

Az analyus of changes I e gross camying amount and the correspeading allowance for credit
103305 in relation to real estate loans follow:

Stage | “!!L’!P Stage) Yoed

Grws carryisg smount
Begitruay tulexe Pas 293 10R | cEN PES§T I P27
New wects ongised of purcial S 2% umo = - B Zmmo
Assats derocogsmd of repeed

(eaclaliog wrik ofi) (062425T) 53,115 (153580) (2031 05 2)
Tosslen o ] - - - -
Tesaden o Suge 2 - - - -
Trsenfen © Suge 3 a4 — 1a%.740 -
Asmcsuts weites off - - (SATSgT) ___ CS&T)
R CIYSINIT e wauoal aies
ABswance for credit hooses
Regimuny haloce Pilnet | o PRSI PEL2097S
Provion for cradt losses® Heaw - 15%.42% RNan7
Troesfen w Suge | - - - -
Towwden ©» Suge 2 - - - -
Toesden © Suge ) (1ale) - 1250 -
Asscaurts writicn off = = LY 207 4/ N - 7. 1.7 2 14
&h&n PIST214 »- |l ] PIIR S
T ot st om alowesncw of afers Mavwesw Ssage | o I ovw I resorveny of orailt Mosses

. 2019 2 _
Suge | Sage 2 Saged Joud

Coose Gty g, Moot
Bogitrnay halace P12.963 502 - P65 PIS N0 752
New smsets ostgaseed of prarciual 15 561 200 - - 15 561 600
Asacts derccopamd o repeed

(eschading wrir ofi) (1686 1%85) ormn (158 X36) (1937819
Trsenden © ! - - - -
Towwlern o Suge 2 (135.90%) 145908 - -
Trosnfen o Suge: ) - - - -
Amougs weltie off = - - =

%’ % Ra6 693 108 PSS 11S nmi\u PS2 333837

LU

128




Stpe |

Towd

Allowarce for ool ks
Bogitnssy ludexce
Reoovery of aoalit e *
Toesfen o Suge |
Trasfen © Suge 2
Trsanfen © Sug: )
Assensrts writien ofT

Pla14T)
(SR810)

PSTIRTES
(IRRI0)

Foalitg hdanse

P42 661

PSSRY 51e

PS 629975

SN et it om alowonce of maafers Rerwesn Xaage | i 2 are reec wd 3o proviion for (recavery o orely b

An analysis of changes in 26 gross camying amsount and the cerrespending allowancs for credit
Joi3es in relation to other receitables follow:

Sales contract receivable eara interest 3t axomal £xed rates rnging from 8.00% to 14.00% in 2020
azd 2019.

Izterest incomme oo loams and receivables conmsts of:

= 2020 2019
Recevables Som customers:
Consumpsion 285,126,789 ®3147331.654
Coz=ercal 18244509 11,020,612
Rsal estane 6,498 957 2,169,016
Sales ccamact recsivable 243214 2.718.568

$312.302.599 2330,641.750

On Marck 23, 2020, Republic ActNo. 11469, cherwize knows 23 the Bayaniban to Heal as One Act
("Bayaxhan 1 Act™) was ezacted. Bayamiban 1 Act provides that all coversd insttutons shall
mplement 3 30-day grace period for all loans with principal and/or interest and loase amsortization
falling due within the ECQ Period withour incurring innrest o2 interest, panalses, foos and other
charges. Subiequently, ez September 11, 2020, Republic Azt Ne. 114843, otharwize known a3 the
Bayaahaa to Rocover as O2s Act ((Bayaniban 2 Act™), was saxcted. Under Bayanihan 2 Ace,

2 one-tims sixty (60)~day grace peried is granted for the paymeat of al existing, currant and
cutstanding loaxns filling dus, o any past thersef, on o7 before Decamber 31, 2020, without incwming
interest on imerests, penalties, foss, or other charges and thareby extending the mamurity of the said
Joans. Furtharmore, 2 minimsum 30-day grace peried skall alio de ranted by coversd mmsttutions to
all paymeats &zo within the period of commumity quaraating o= rent and utility-related expendinuwes
without Incwring pexaltes, interest and other charges.

Based cx the Baxk's asseszxent, the modifcatons in the contactual cash Sows as aresult of the
above reliefs 209 pot substandal and therefore do not result in the derecogziton of the afected
fnancial assets. Tonal modiScation losses resulting Soms Bayanihan 1 Act and Bayanthan 2 Act
amousted to #79.84 millica As of December 31, 2020, accrsticn of intarest on e modifed loans
amounted to #35.43 milliea

2020
N Saw 1 Stage 2 Stae 3 Totd
G carrylsg amsunt
Begimuey lulexe PLLOIRO24 Pe RS9I P2ETISY PR 09488
New wocts ociginged of pundasal 229945 - - N9 8
Assets derevopsond of ropsd
e irze wrike offs) (27400 (SRSeT) (M62012) (29.238010)
dem i RILKES (195,182) (630573 -
Tresfen © Sugs 2 (L 143550) 1280030 (1136 R%) -
Troasfen © Suge 3 31.971452) (27R450) 2269912 -
Amonrts writien off - - (T2A2022) (T2A2022)
En!l= hgane P18 2 2774409 49 D0 14K P14 %9079
Aywance for credit oo
Beginuay e PeTATE PARIY PLIY 109623 P26
Provadom foe colit oees® 18583517 (454.528) 4288512 20397201
Trsesfen w Suuge | L0544 (196) 150445, -
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Trsswden o Stige 3 (18.2354612) (RS 163803 -
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Stge | Stpe 2 Stpe 3 Towd
Gooon Curyasy Mrest
Beginusy lulexe PIS 126.339 PIRS2R1Y P11 013536 PX 992842
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Assets dereonprond o ropesd
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Toesfen o Suge 2 (5846801 SR%0510 (3.0 -
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Amourts writien off - - (7331185 (TS
Enlig e 2 P54 938924 2 PERSE9IT P25 745799 = P38 539655
Allrwance for aols loeses
Begimuay tuloxe PI128 738 PI31 043 PASATI TR P25 9R3 58S
Proviadom foe olit oees® 1677518 2755673 198549 215193
Trsenfen o Suge: | i (57) (429, =~
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. Propercty and Equipment

Ths composison of and movements iz &is account follow:
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Gazn oo sale of items of propecty 2ad equipment repornd uader ‘Profit Som assets s0ld” amonated
30 20 million and $0.76 millios in 2020 and 2019, respectively.

As of Decamber 31, 2020 and 2019, the cost of fully depreciated items of property and equupment
stll &= use amounted to $91.14 mulbos and PS1 49 millica, respectively.

The details of depreciaticn and amortizatien follow:

< - 2020 2019
Property and equprmeat 838,346,773 $33,755.658
Software costs (Note 11) 1,601.911 1,729.323
Rapossessed chanels (Nots 11) 1,490.198 272,442
Isvesament propertes (Note 10) 1,275,066 1.222.437
#42.713548 216,982,860
10. Invescment Propertie:
The compoiison of and movements in Ris account follow:
2020

Lasd Buildingy  Toral
Cost
Balances at beginning of year P130.275862 $28.771.720 P159,047.582
Addincas 720,000 596,000 1.316,000
Daspesals (.018.508) (4.165.000) (11.153.508)
Balances 2t end of year 123977054 25,202,720 149.179.774
Accumulsted deprecranos
Balances at begimming of year - 18,995,783 18,995,783
Depreciatios (Note 9) - 1,275,066 1,275,066
Disposals ~ (628.495) (628.495)
Balances at end of vear - 19642354 19,642 354
(Forwand)

2020
Land Building Total
Allowance for impurment losze:
(Nots 12)
Balances 32 beginming of year 223882611 B279,109 324161720
Provisios for the yoxr 8,679 144,445 18127
Disposals (567.014) (24.126) (591.140)
Balances at end of vear 13324276 389 431 23,723,707
Net book value at end of vear #100.652.7 5160935 9105813,
2019

: Laod  Building Toml
Cosnt
Balances 2t beginming of year R143 809304 RIS 711,456 B178.520.760
Additcas 13,527.900 4,315,000 17,842,900
Dispesals (18,721.342) (10.104.736) (28.826.078)
Reclasufications Nots §) (8.340.000) (150.000)  (8.350.000)
Balances »t end of vear 130275862 28,771,720 139047382
Accumulated depreciaton
Balances 22 begizming of yexr - 22,360,384 22,360,384
Depreciation (Note 9) - 1,222,437 22,437
Daspesals - (4.3587.038)  (4.587.038)
Balances at end of yvear - 18,995,783 18,995,783
Allowance for tmpairment losses

(Nots 12)

Balances at begizmming of year 26169518 1.098.848 27.268.366
Disposals (2,195,3093) (767.5%9) (2962833
Raclasificanons Now 9) (91.602) (32.190) (143.792)
Balances at end of vear 23.882611 279.109 24.161.720
Net bock value at end of vexr 2106.393 251 B3 496828 P115890.078

amousted to 2il and #0 03 millica m 2020 and 2019, sespectively (308 Note 18).

Direct operating ¢xpeses 00 WmVesIment propertes incinded i Lmigaton and other expease oo
asen acqured under Miscellansous expense’ amocunted to §2 66 million and B4.11 millica in 2020
axd 2019, respectvely (see Now 18).

Net gain fom sale of investment propernes reported uader "Profit from assets sold’ amounsed o
#1.63 millics and #12.21 million iz 2020 and 2019, respectvely.

Gaxn oo foreclosurs of mvestment proparties reported under ‘Gam on foreclosurs - net’ inthe
statemments of income amounted B0.76 milbos and $12.14 millics in 2020 and 2019, respectvely.
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11. Other Azzers

This account consists of:

2020 2019

Brasch licenses 216,810,000 216,500,000
Prepaid expenies 4331356 3448268
Rspossessed chamtels - nat 3,811,148 2,286,316
Rsfundable deposits 1,968,719 1,246,981
Sofrarare costs — et 1,207,683 1,430,066
Docemantary stazaps 514,414 788338
Cbess 151,655,463 149,320,624
180,301,783 177,040,693

Allewazce for imspazrment lesses (Note 12) 62,054,000 162.054.000
®18.247.783 14,956,693

Meovemmeats in “Software costs” follow:

*Others” mainly represent miscellansons assets in process of reconciliaton whick 2ave been fully
provided foras of Docember 31, 2020 223 2019. The allowance for impairment losses partains to

branch Ecenses and other assets amounntng to #15.50 million and B146.15 millica, respectvely
(ses Note 12).

Mevements in "Repossessed chamels” Sollow:

2020 2019
Cost i
Balances 2t begizning of year 22,732,490 R239.597
Additcas 4,260,000 2,891,888
Disposals (84,000) (413.601)
Reclasiificatons Note &) (1.455.000) (33835
Balances 2t end of vear 5,453,490 2,732,490
Accumulated depreciation
Balances 2t beginning of year 442,291 192,763
Depreciatios (Notwe 9) 1,490,198 272442
Disposals (83.,998) (22.916)
Reclasuifications Note 9) (433,036) =
Balances at end of vear 1415435 442291
Allowance for impairment losze: (Nowe 12)
Balances 2t boginning of yoar 3,883 $.654
Provisioss for the year 223,024 3883
Disposals - (8.63%)
Balances 2t end of vear 226,997 3883
Net book value at end of vear 23811148 2286316

Net gain fom sale of repossessed chamal under ‘ProSt Som aisets sold” ameumted to
#0.01 million and $0.05 millica in 2020 and 2019, respectvaly.

Loss on foreclosure of repostessed chattels amomted to #0.40 millica in 2020 and gan oz

foreclosmrs of repossessed chamels amounted 20 80.28 million in 2019 reposted mader "Gamca
foceclosmre - net’ in the statemest of Income.

" 2020 2019
Cout
Balances 2t beginning of year ®19,244274 #18,135.381
Addiscns 1359528 1,108,893
Balances: 2t end of vear 20.603.502 19244274
Accumulated amortization
Balances 2t beginning of year 17,794,208 16,064,885
Amcrtizatos (Nows 9) 1601911 1,729,323
Reclauficaton - -
Balances 2t end of vear 19,396,119 17.794.208
Net book value at ead of vear 21,207 683 R1.450.066
12. Allowance for Credit and Impairment Lozze:
Chazges in ths allowance for crodit and ixmpairment losses Sollow:
2020 2019
Balances atbegizning of year
Iavestmsnt at amertized cost (Nots 7) B6,722 ®795
Loazs and receivables (Note 8) 274,721,947 284.960.573
Property and equipment (Nots 8) 12,579,591 12,435599
Lavestment proparties (Note 10) 24,161,720 27.,268366
Brazch licezses (Note 11) 15.500,000 15,900,000
Repossessed camsls (Notws 11) 3,583 8.654
Other assets (Nots 11) 146.154.000 146.154.000
473,527,563 496,728,187
Provisicas for the yexr 51435707 593843
Revemal of allowance oz assets sold
(Notes 7,10 azd 11) (595.972) (2.971,508)
Accounts wrintan-off (90,243 451)  (20.824.659)
Balances atexd of year
Iovestmsnt secunities at amortized cost (Note 7) 1900 6722
Lecans and recsivables (Note 8) 235,538,042 274721997
Propecty and equipment (Note §) 12,579,591 12,579,591
Iovestment proparsies (Nets 10) 23,723,707 24,161,720
Branch liceases (Nots 11) 15,900,000 15,200,000
Repossessed camels (Note 11) 226907 3883
Othar assets (Nots 11) 146,154,000 146.134.000
2434124147 R473 527 863

A reconciliaton of e allowance for credit losses by chis of loans and receivables in 2020 and 2019
follows:

2020
Conwimplios Commercial Real estate Othery Totsd
Babowes M dopiuan of yese PISS N34S PO L2 PSEN9YS PG  PINATILNY
Proaninin 26287564 490,160 W17 20397202 S1.059 548
Accourts wanzs-off (BL8ETHI  (4S024AT0) (SH7552T) (T282022)  (90249931)
Rl ey ot enal of v PIEs TIATYY P&:,&S’JIS. PR3N NS P S0 Sss PRSI0
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2019

Comeuigsan Comeneroal Rl evace Ocders Totd
Babaocos M bogitmuay of your PiS%5 159673 PIOIORRSH) PS. 728 73S PISSR3ISES P2 053
Provasiom (rvesads) 1741706 (524790 (98510) 2.1519% 35033
Accourts weanes.ofT (4 594 034 (R 487 S10» - (T43115) (20 K24 559
Raleres st enl ol veu PI1SS 07388 P91 1921 PSEAM 978 PX 3924806 P74 721947

Below is the breakdown of provision for credit and fmpaimmment losses:

2020 2019

Loaxns and receivables (Nots §) $51,059.546 R3586,033
Investment securities 22 axmortized cost (Nets 7) 10 3927
Repossessed chatels (Nots 11) 223,024 3583
Property and equipmest (Note 9) - -
Invesament properties (Note 10) 153,127 -
51 435707 R385 823

13.

Depozit Liabilice:

Of tho tonal deposit liabilities of the Bank a3 of December 31, 2020 and 2019, 48.10% 2a2d 53.668%,

respectvely, are subject to periodic interest repricing. Remaizming deposit Labilities bear azmmal fixed
interest rates ranging from 3.00% 20 4.50% and 3.75% to 4.50% 12 2020 and 2019.

Ths Meazitery Board (MB) appreved the decreass in meserve requiracseat rato (RXR) agaiznst noa-
foreimm currsncy deposit unit (FCDU) deposit Habiites of mift banks threugh the issuance of BSP
Cizcular 1092 - Roscluton No. 423 dated Marck 23, 2020. RRR, Som 4.00% in 2019, was reduced
20 3.00% effective July 31, 2020.

The required reserves shall be kept i the form of deponits maintyingd in the Demnand Deposit
Accounts (DDA) with the BSP and any goverament secunitios wiich are proviously used as
commpliance usti] ey matwre. As of Decamber 31, 2020 and 2019, 26 Bank was i compliance with

such regulatons.

Az of Docemmber 31, 2020 and 2019, ths Bank"s Eqguidity and stamutory resesves as reported to the BSP
amousting to #61 97 millica and 876.67 millon, respectively, 2ve included under “Dus fom BSP'.

Izsorest expense on deposit Babilities comaisn of

2020 2019

Tizms $14.677.654  ®12.971834
Savizzs 17,040,014 13,785,250
$31.717.668  $26,757.084

14. Accrued Expenzes and Other Liabilitie:

Accaued expenses account conists of:

2020 2019
Accrued expenies ®17,187.077 ®22,589.553
Accrued interest payable 3,464,516 4,135,766
Reat pavable (Nees 20) ) - 303.093

220651393 #26.930.314

Accaued expanses coasist of accruals for professional Ses and other administative expenses.
Accausd izterest payable pertams to 2ccrzals of interest expense o depont Habilites (see Note 13).
Other Labilizsies account consists of

2020 2019

Lease liabality (Nete 20) 837,850,651 ®52.331.767
Accounts payabls (Notws 22) 13,163,508 20,153,754
Ratrement Labiliry (Nees 19) 22,642,535 16,563,457
Izcome tax payable $01,318 1,354,693
Withbolding taxes and other taxes payable 1,339,209 £98.063
Othars 240,094 1.237.377
397,037,615 ®32.639.101

Iztacest expanse oo leass lability amcouxsted to #4.78 milion and $4.33 million iz 2020 and 2018,
respectvely (see Nots 20).

Account payable comaist of payables to sevics providers and advance payments from customers.

Othars consist mainly of payables to agencies wrvicing amployes welfxe suck 23 Social Securnity
System, Homs Development Murzal Fund and Medicars.

13.

Redeemable Preferred Share:
Ths details of the Baxk's redeszaable prefemred shares follow:

o = Shares Amoznt
Preofared stock - 1,000 par value

Authonized 30.000 £30.000.000
Issusd and outs
Balances 2t begimning and end of year 30,700 230.700.000

The praferred steck Bas the following fearares:

a. The minimum suhicripton is 100 shares and payable ia casd;
b. The shoves shall sarn 3 monthly imterest 2t a r2%s 20 be Sxed by the BOD, but such intecest shall
zot be loss than the prevailing market intersst rates and s22d shares shall not be meated 23 tme

deposit, deposit substitues or as other form of borrowings;
¢. The interest shall be paid in tho form of &videads cumzlatively, which may be declared anzmally

or a5 oftea 23 ths BOD may determine:
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d The shares shall Bave preference iz the distibuticn of dividends and in the distibusics of assets Ducormber 33, 2820 Decenter 31 2019

&2 case of liguidation cr dissolution, provided, boweres that no dividend whall be declared or paid i ol o, e e e e
oz ndun:g; shares in the abiencs ?fo:uﬁdat wdnided prost:, Seo suwplus and apprwaf of e e Loh medey oreey RE
t=e BSP; Nea-faanctal sawt
.. ‘lc'!::;huu arco :za-va:ia; oz matters previded for i the last paragraph of Sectien 6 of 2o - e o v e . i 8 s s
£ Pre-emptive fights are not available oa prefarred shares nor siall ey be subject 20 626 and the O 158 'S 19 5% 'S i%e
shares sBall be 261d for Eve (3) years with a rnight of alisnation or eacumbrance of the same to aay (B 6%4 (1K 136 sid =
third person within the period of £ve (5) year Srom the original dats of subscription. providsd DL (2L Al LIy_1 2R 3,508
Bowerer, that e the It yoar the Dolder 12all be obliged 20 surendaer the samss to the corporatica b:mmwm.u P 7
and zpoa prior approval of the BSP and in compliance with the provisions of the Manual of Dissaunt ca fesn sodificaiien 24
Regulations for Banks (MORB) and the BSP's circularns regarding this mater, the corporatica Arcuriiwed deproaatas o G
12311 be obliged 20 take up the subscripton at the price when the prefecred shares of stock were oo _ 22
crizizally gmm Prciledtise tiasie sadoessslane roplaced with at Jeast 20 squivalest ARETNE S —— - .
amount of newly paid-in shares 30 that the total paid-in capital stock is maintained at the same ;i oW
lovel immodiately prics to redamption and provided further, that the corporation is not insolvent Pnanctal labites
or if such rodsmpaon will sot canse imsolveacy, imspairment of capital or nablity of the Depuat ::‘.ma e v l.?;: » 30 - u:: m,a:: IS s ;f
corponation 1o meet it debes a3 ey mane: and prsazcry e ez a = > =
g A snking fund for the redexmpdcn of prefacred shares is to bo created upon thedr issnance. Thisis &‘m‘m ;: 47 ;: j: 47 ::
to be offocted by the tansfer of £oe surplns 20 2 resTictsd surplus accoun:. The fund shallzsotbe 12 387 1 141 ez 2104
available for divideads. As of Decemmber 31, 2020, the Bank 2as not yet created a sinking fund mmmuu. A ¥ & . & %
pecdng roquest from the BSP 10 redeszn and rotire the profecred shares. The fand hatwmillbe — - B ) 5% P38 T Rr ) X
uied to redeszs the prefyed shares will be taken Som the equity infused by the Parsa: Baxk. - - ~ S— Smm
Toe shares may again be disposed of by 1he Bazk for 2 price £xed by the BOD. Bawed onthe -
BOD resciztion ca March 6, 2013, the entire redesmable profucred thares of the Baznk will be 17. Equity
rotrod after its redexmpton subject to BSP's approval As of December 31, 2020 azd 2019 e :
satire redeamable prefecred d;ans are still subject 20 BSP"s approval Capiaal Stock

Details of the Baxk's capital stock as of Decemmbar 31, 2020 and 2019 Sollow:
As of Docemmber 31, 2020 and 2019 the Parexmt Bazk owns 30,200 shares or #30.20 =llion ofthe

outstanding redeemable preferred thares of the Bazk. = o T Shares Amoemt
AzSosized 20.000.000 __ #2.000.0C0.000
- - e Iisued and ontwnding
16 Materity Analysic of Assets and Lishilities Balances 2¢ begzning aod end of yesr 12490600  B1.245.960.000
Ths following tabls shows an amalyuds of assets and Lisbilities amalyzed according to whother thoy are Bavilos s
» - - >
expectad to be recoveced ez sectled witkin o6 year and beyead cae year from statamants of financial The Bazk's accumsulated resenves amoustiag to #6.45 millica was appropriated usdes the old
powton daw (amcust ia millons): managamaent and BOD in previous years, prior to the acquisitien by the Parest Bazk.
Decernber 31, 2020 Decemster 31 2019 . z . - o
- A ™ As provided i the Articles of Incorpontica, the Baxk shall accumulate and maineain a surpins
D"o::':: ”"o;'.:: Total Df:;:: D':,“ Yeur Tertal resarve of notless than 5.00% of its toral assets a2d shall be availabls for mesting losies incumred by
T the Bazk. Upoa the requived amoune thareof being reacked, a sizking fund pursmaxt to the BSP rules
Cash mnd othar cuh e *Ii0 3 ’I10 r e vis asd regulations Ball b 16t 2:ide = the amount 2ecessary for the redemption of redescmable prefomed
oot AN . = - o = o5 shargs. The BOD may, atits discrotion, provide for such cthor reserves as it may seem necessary.
Soousins penchusnd soviar somie 2 E Ths 2ppoistment of net earnings for suck rosenves 1hall bo made before ¢Focting the distibztion of
agrecrsert b - 2 &7 - e? 29t exmuings.
Ivertmat sxuntes ol arortood
PSP RITB T PP u;_: L”:: o ,}ig . ,‘,': Ths Baxk is prescatly reviewing the propristy of this provision Azy required revicon will be
Otbey smets = 3 2 - 1 ! recommended for appreval to the Bank's BOD and stockbelders. Ne addisonal appropriaticn has
() 1417 PRI 1247 1489 27 besa mado 23 ¢f Docember 31, 2020 azd 2019,
(Fareani)
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U=ader BSP CixcularNo. 1011, the Bank thall reat Stags 1 provisicas for loan accounts as Geaenal
Provizicas (CP) while Stage 2 and 3 provisicnss sEall be treated a3 SpeciSic Provisicns (SP). The
Bank s2all st up GLLP eqmvalent 20 1% of all cutitanding ca-balance shest Joan accoummts, sxcept
for accomzats considared as crodit misk-Ses under existing regulations. I cases whea 26 computed
allowancs for credit lesses oo Stage 1 acconunss is loss Saxn e 1% required CGP, the deScisncy siall
be recognized by appropriating the "Swplus Raserve’ accomat. CP recogzized in profit or loss as
allowancs for credit lesses Sor Stage 1 accounts and the amoeunt appropriated in surplas shall be
comsidered a3 Tier 2 capital subjoct to the Limit provided under e CAR Samewerk

In 2020 and 2019, the Baxk "s allowance for credit Josses 3s loss than the required GP of 1.00% for
Stage 1 accounts amonntng to #10.43 millica and $9.40 milbon, respectvely.

Sapial Mazagemens
T=s prizary cbjectives of the Baxzk's capital management are to easurs that the Bank coxapliss with

extecmally fopesed capital roquirazments, 33 mandated by the BSP, and that the Bank maintains
Bealthy capital atios in ordar to support its business and to maximirs sharcholder’s valus.

T2e Bazk manages its capital stucture and makes adjusoments to itin e light of changes in
economic conditons and the nisk claractecistics of its actvities. In order 0 maintain or adjust the
capital somcnwre, the Bazk may adjust the amenat of &vidend payment to shareholders, sotum capital
to sharshelders or issue capital securities. No changes ware mads in the objectves, policies and
Frocesses Som the previous yeurs.

Rogulatory Qualifiing Capinal

Under existing BSP regulations, e determination of the Bank's complance with rogulatory
Tequiremaeats and ratics is based on the amsount of the Baxzk's “unimpaired capital™ (regulatory net
worth) as roported 20 the BSP, which iz determined oa the bazis of rogulatory accounting practices
which differ Som PFRS in some respects.

Is ad3disoz, the rik-based capital ratie of 2 bank or Capital Adeguacy Rato (CAR). expressed asa
percsatage of qualifying capatal to risk-weigheed asiets, should not be leoss thas 10.00%; for both sclo
bazis and consolidated dbasis. Qualifying capital and rsk-weighied assets aro compured based oa BSP
segulations. Risk-weighted 336t consist of total as2es less cash oo Band, dus fom BSP, leans
covered by beld-out oo or 25sizameat of depowits, loxms or acceptances under loters of credit to the
;g;m covered by margin deposits and other sos-risk itams determingd by the Moastary Board of the

On Jazuary 15, 2013, the BSP 1ssued Circular Ne. 781, Basel I Implomsating Guideknes o2
Mizisum Capital Requirements, which provides the implemeantiog gaidelings ca tho revised k-
bazed capital adequacy Samework particulasly on the mimimsums capital and &isclosure requira=eats
for wniversal bazks and commmarcial bazks, as well 23 their subsidiary banks and quasi-bazks, ==
accordance with the Basel IT standards. The Circular is offective ca January 1, 2014. Effectve
Jazuxry 1, 2014, the Bank followed the same risk-based capital adequacy Samework adepted by ins
Parszt Baxk.

The Circular et ont 3 minimum Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) rago of 6.00% and Tier | capinal
rato of 7.50%. Italso introduces a capital comsenvation dbuffer of 2.50% comprised of CETI capital
Ths BSP's existing requireznat for total CAR remain: unchanged 3t 10.00% and these ratios 2all be
maintained at all tmes.

Ths table below shows ths Bank™s CAR a3 of Decambaer 31, 2020 and 2019 as reported to the BSP
(a=ouxts i milboms).

2020 2019

Tier 1 capital 7] R573
Tier 2 capital v - 13
Gross gualifyizng capital 593 588
Lsss required deductions - =
Total gualifiag capatal 2393 R3SS
T weizhied aien R»25 ®2 386
Tier 1 capital ntio 22.05% 24.02%
Tissr 2 capital matio 0.85% 0.63%
Risk-bazed capital adegudcy raio 22.90% 24.64%

——— ~ e

Ths computed CAR of 22.90% and 24.64% 23 of Docemmber 31, 2020 and 2019, respectuvely, as
reported to the BSP, wers based on e commarcial bazk's CAR texmplate as requized by the BSP
sinco the Parent Bazk is 3 commarcial bank.

Rogulatory capital consists of Tier 1 capital, which comprises paid-zp commen stock, surphus, surplus
Teserves including cwrent your proft, Jess required deductions total outstanding umsecured credit
accommodations, beth divect and indivect, to DOSRIL

The other componeat of regulatory capital is Tier 2 capital, which ropresents the geoeal Joan loss
provizicas capped at 3 maximum of 1.00% of gross risk weighted assets. The gezeral loan less
provisicas ae based oa remalatesy accounting principle.

Oxn May 22, 2014, 2o MB of the BSP approved the adoption of 3 pradsatial Roal Eszate Swess
Testag (REST) Emit for umaversal’commercial banks and theif banks on 2 sclo and consolidased
basis on Dedr azTegate real ¢state oxposwres, a3 provided undsr BSP Cocular No. §39, Real Estate
Stess Test Limat for Real Estate Exposures. dated June 27, 2014, The REST Ikmitcombines a macro
pradaatal overlay of a severs s&ess 9t scanano, the principle of loss abiesbency through mimimum
capital ado thresholds and Beightened supervisory response. The Circular t60s o= 3 minimuum REST
limitof 6.00% CETI capital ratio and 10.00% nisk-based capital adequacy ratio, ¢ a solo a=d
comseldated basis, mnder 3 prescribed wmte-off rate o 25.00% oa the Baxk's rsal estate exposmre.
Thete Limits s2all be complied with at all tmes.

Ca October 29, 2014, the BSP isued ameadments to Cixcular No. 854 which requizes a now
minimum capitalization for Banks. The Baxk, a3 a trift bank with 11 to 100 branches, was required
%0 increase its capitalization to R400.00 milSon The Bazk 2as complied with this requirement.

On Juze 9, 2015, ths BSP issusd Cixcular No. 881, Implameating Guidelines o the Bazel I
Leverage Ratio Fomework, which provides implementing gpuidelines for maiversal, commercial, and
their subiidiary banks/quasi baxnks. The circular 5% cut a minimums leverage rasio of 5.00%.

The Back has complied with his requirement.

Leverage Ratzo

C= Juns 9, 2013, BSP issned circular No. §51, which approved the suideing: for the implementation
of the Basel I Leverage Ratio in the Philippines. The Bassl I Leveraze Rato is designed to actas
a supplemeatary measure to the risk-based capital requamaents. Toe leverage rato tends to restict
ths buzld-up of loverage = the backing sector 10 avedd destabilizing deloveraging processes which can
damags the broader Snancial system and e econemy. Likewiss, it reinforcss the nsk-dased

1




requiremsants with 3 sizeple, noz-rizk based “backstop™ measure. The Basel I Jeverage ratio is
dofned 23 the capin] meanuwe (the sumentor) &vided by e exposure measure (the deseminytor).
Toe moexitoring of e lovenage natic was implemented 23 3 Pillar | minimum requirement ¢ Soctve
ca 1 July 2018.

Tos BLR of the Bazk as of Decamber 31, 2020 and 2019 23 reported to the BSP are shewznin the
aable bolow (amsounts in millions).

2020 2018
Tz 1 capital 71 RS73
Expos=re sease 2,947 2737
Levenize nato g 19.38% 3 20.93%

Loty Coverage Ratio (LCR)
BSP Circular No. 907 provides the imsplemsemting guidelines oo LCR azd disclosurs standards thatare
comsistent with the Basel III Samework. The LCR is the ratio of Righ quality Liquid assets to total net

caub outfows which shozld 2ot be lower than 100.00%.

As of Decexaber 31, 2020 and 2019, the LCR a3 ropomed 20 e BSP s 1307.51% and 1387.05%,
respectvely.

Net Stable Funding Ranio (NSFR)

On Juze 6, 2018, the BSP issued BSP Cieular No.1007 covening the implementing guidslines on the
adopton of the Basel Il Fnmewerk on Liquidity Standards NSFR. The NSFR i3 az=ed to promeots
long term resilicnce agamst gmidity risk by requiniag banks to maiatais 3 stable fimding profle
relation 10 the composition of its aisets and off-balance shoet actvities. It complemonts the LCR.
which promotes shert term resilicnce of 3 bazk's lgwidity profle. Bacnks sball maintain an NSFR of
at least 100 porcene (100%) at all imes. The implemsentation of the minizoum NSFR thall be phazed
in 0 belp exsurs that coversd banks caz moeet the standard through reasecablo mearure: withont
disrupting crodit extension and fnancial market actvite:. Ax obienvaticn pemiod was 36t Som July 1
20 December 31, 2018. Effective, Jasuary 1, 2019, bazks skall comply with the prescabed minimam
raso of 100%.

As of Decamber 31, 2020 and 2019, tho NSFR as reported to t2s BSP is 123.67% and 114.23%,
respectvely.

Miscellansonss income consists of

L 2020 2019
Penaltes $35,796.360 4,546,693
Lease concessions 624,579 -
Incom=e on sale of checkbeok 261,401 610,048
Cthers (Note 10) 10,914,742 9.209.191

217,597,382 R14365935

Othars include reatal income Srom investment propecties, ATM Tansaction fess, otder loas fees and
surcharges, and recovery on charged-off assets.

Mizcellansons oxpenses consist of:

2020 2019

Litgation and oher oxpenis on 31168 acquired
MNoe 10) 22,656,590 ®+,113.350
Statosery and supphies 3,318,070 36351818
Advectisiag 1,145,633 1,041,320
Docmsentary stazp used 475,932 382,596
Odhers 5.454.694 +.760.8735

#13.054.219 ®13 945 958

Othar expenses include sponsoniip expenses, appraial foss, demations, periedicals and magazings,
mmembeniiip dues and Snes and pezaltss.

18. Income and Expence:

Service f0e3 and commissios inconse comsists of

2020 2019

Sarvice fees and commission incoms: J
Deposit-related 21,357,858 1,307,847
Commisiions 23,715 36375
1381573 1.672.222

Service fees and commiision expenie:
Bazkinz foes (4,568,001) (5.884.263)

(#3,186,428) #7212.031)

18.

Retirement Liability

Ths Bazk has nonceamibutery deSned bezefs plan covening all its regular and parmanent empleoyees.
Undar the retement plaz. all smployees ave eatided 10 caih beneSts after satisfying certain age 22d
1RIVice Toguiremeats.

Oxn Apnil 1, 2019, ths retremment plas was amended 0 increass the previcns beneSt pay 0 22.5 days
20 26.08 days for every your of credited sevice based o the £22l dadly basic salary fer all senvice
year: matl soparation. The effect of the change in retivement plan is refected as "Past semvice cost’
and recogaized under “Retirement expense’ i the statecnent of income for the ysar ended
December 31, 2019.

The existing regulatory fammework, Republic Act (RA) 7631, An Act Amending Armcle 257 of
Presidennial Decree No. 442, as Amended, odherwise known ax the Labor Code of the Phelippines
Tequires a provisien for retiremment pay to qualkSed private ector sxmployess in e abisacs of any

retrec=ent plas in the entty, provided bowever that the empleyee’s retirenent bexefits w=der 23y
colloctuve bargaining and other agresmmsats shall not be less thax thess provided under the law.

The law dees not roquire minimem funding of the plan.
The latest actaanial valuation of e retirement plas of the Baxnk was mads as of Decammber 31, 2020,
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Thas starzs and amounts recognized in the statecent of Snancial positon for retiramnant labdity are 23

follows:
2020 2019
Balancs at bezinzing of vear 216,563,457  $4.686.133
Net bezeft cost in statemaent of income®
Current service cost 3,646,310 2634638
Past Service cost - 1,162,704
Not interest cost $26,517 580,538
4472827 4,407,881
Conibutica T . o
4,472,827 4,407,881
Rameasuremants in OCI
Actaxrial changes amising from:
Changes iz Snancial assumptions 2,877,216 3,557,932
Expesicace adjustneats (1,259 985) 3213.527
Changes in dameograplic assumptions - 376925
Actus! retuws on plam assets (10.980) 321,039
) 1,606,251 7469433
Balancs at e=d of your 222642535 ®16,563.357
® The vt bemwfit cont s recorded wader Compernation and fringe bengfitn " in the statements of incuew.
Movemseats in "Remsasuramsent lois oa retirement labdity’ in OCI follews:
2020 2019

Balancse at bezinzing of vear
Ramexuremant gain (1oss) on retremeat Dability

(®3,966408) __ ®1.262 202

Due o chasges iz Snancial ass=mpticas (2,877,216) (3.557.932)
Dus o chazges i sxperieace adjust=eats 1,259 985 (3.213.527)
Dus o changes iz denogaplic assumptons - (376.923)
Actual reters on plas assets 10,950 (321.039)
Ramoxuremant Joss duriaz the vear = (1,606,251) (7.369.433)
Tax effect E 481,875 2.240.833
Ramoxursmant los: on retrement Liablity dwng
e vear, netof tax (1.124.376) (5.228.610)
Balance at ead of year, net of tax (#3,090,784) (#3.966.408)

The principal actuarial assumuptions wied in determining the retrement Bability of the Baxzk a3 of
Decsxmber 31, 2020 and 2019 ars thown below:

— 2020 2039
Ducotam 3.94¢% +.99%
Salxry mosases 5.70% 5.70%
Mernlity s The 2001 CSO Table -
Generasonal (Scale AA, Sociecy 2017 PICM

of Actaarie:
Duabdity s The Dabalicy Srady, Period 1932 Disabaley Stdy,
Beaefit 5 (Socaecy of Actuaries) Paciod 2, Baafe 5
Turnoves rate A zcale ranging from 16% atage A scale raging fom 16% atass
18 decreazing to 09 at age 60 1S decmasng to e st aze &0

Ths sensitvity azalysis below bas besn determined bazed on reazonably possible changes of sack
sig=iScant assummption on the defined bensSt oblizaton as of the end of the reportiag pesiod,
assuming if 2ll ether assumptions were beld ceastane

Defized bezefitoblisation

Increate (Decrease) 2020 2018
Diicoun: rate 1.00% #21,223,259 R15840.8%¢
(1.00%) 27,276,834 20,183,182
Salary increass mate 1.00% 27,183,411 20,231,355
(1.00%) 21,241,531 13,764,573

Skown below is the marerity analysis of the undiscounted beneSt payments:
2020 2019
Leoss thas 1 year P- $245.,031
Mors than 1 ysarto 5 years 6,477,695 +.888.154
Mors thaz 5 years 20 10 years 19429378 16,633,832
More than 10 years 20 15 yeans 27,969,877 24,840,500
More thaz 15 yoass 20 20 yeans 35,086,281 33,663,372
More thas 20 yeans 95,730,462 9,177,481

The Baznk's waighted average duntos of the defined bezefit obligaton is equivaleatto 12.6 yoans
axd 21.31 years in 2020 and 2019, respectvely.

. Leazes

Baok 232 Leuies
The Baok loaszes its hoad ofSce and branch premises for paciods ranging from five (2) to Eftsen (195)

youars, resowable upon mumnal agreament of beh parties. Varicms lease conmact includs escalaticn
clanses, most of which bear annual reat increase ranging from 5.00% to 10.00%.

The Baxnk alic Bas certaiz leases of building and branch premises with remaizing lease terms of 12

moaths or loss and leases with low value assets. The Bazk applics thoe recegnition exampiioas for
these nypes of leases.

Reot expense charged against cumsat openations (=ciuded i "Occupancy and equipmaent-related”

iz the statements of income) axsounsed to R7.$9 million and #1033 millica in 2020 and
2019, respectvely. Roztexpense in 2020 pertaizs to expeases Som short-term lo2iss and leazes of
low-value assetns.

The sstmated minimum fature anzual reatals payable under non-canceliable loases follow:

2020 2019
Withis cne year R14.855408 #9.189287
Beyond oze year but not mors than Sve yoarns 42564995 39,432,667
More than Sve years . 14,895,633 20.3527.936

272.316,037 #69,.145910
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Derails of the camrying amenzats of right-of-uis 3116t recoznized and the movements during the year
eaded Decamber 31, 2020 are disclosed in Notwe 9.

1 L st
As of Decexbar 31, 2020, the carrying amcunt of lease Habilities follow:

2020 2019
Balasce at beginning of yeur B52,431,767 44520658
AddisSons 11,757,495 11,720,790
Interest expense (Nows 14) 4778928 4334566
Loxze comcessions (624,879) -
Pavments (10,492,660) (8.144.547)

257,850,651 232431967

. Income and Other Taxe:

Under Pailippine tax lyws, the Bazk is subject to percentage and other taxes (presented as “Taxes and
licenses’ in the statement of incoms) as well as income taxes. Pcruange and other taxes paid consist
principally of gross recaipt tax (GRD acnd documentary “amp taxss. Incone taxes consist of £xal
wittholding taxe: on gross iDterest income from goverzment secunities, and depowits and Regular
Cosporats Income Tax (RCIT), as discussed bolow, oo o6t taxable income. Thess income taxss, as
well a3 the deferred tax boneSte, aro prosaated in the statament of incoms as “Provisica for (beosfit

from) income tax”,

Curent tax regalations provide that the RCIT mate whallbe 30.00% and intersstallowed as 2
deductble expemse sball be rednced by an amsomat of 33.00% of izterest income subjected to fizal tax.

The optional standxrd deduction (OSD) equivalent to +0.00% of gross income may be claimed 3z an
altermative deduction in coputing for the RCIT. In 2020 and 2019, ¢ Bask olected to claim
itomized cxpease doductions instead of the OSD in &6 RCIT computation.

Ths regulations alzo provids for MCIT of 2.00% of medified mows dcome and allow a NOLCO
beasfis. Beh the excess of MCIT over the RCIT aad NOLCO may b 2pplisd against the regalar tax
labality and taxable Incoms, respectvely, over tree (3) yoars Som the year of inception

Can Septamber 30, 2020, the Bureau of Intermal Reveaue (BIR) bas isiued Reveaue Regulations (RR)
No. 25-2020 to immplomezt Secton 4 (bbbb) of Republic Act No. 11494, otharwise known as
“Bayazihan 0 Rscorer a3 Oze Act™, allowing qualiSed buinestes or saterprizes which incusred nat
opmzing Joss for taxable yours 2020 and 2021 to camy over the same 23 2 deductics from it ptm
income for the next Eve (5) conserutive taxable years immediately follewing the year of suck loss

Cuzrent tax regalatons also provide for the ceiling on ¢ amount of entertaizznent, amusement and
recrsation (EAR) expense thatcan be claimed as a deducton agaizit taxable income. Usnder the
regulation, EAR expense allowed as 2 deducthle sxpexie for a service baxk is Lmired 1o the 2ctml
EAR paid or incwrred bat oot to excosd 1.00% of not roveaue. AR expanses of the Bazk amounted
20 B1.84 million and #2 08 =illon in 2020 and 2019, respectively.

BeneSt from income tax conusts of

2020 2019
Cusrens:
MCITRCIT ®3570511 RS .325.960
Final 3,469 308 +817.373
7,040,219 13,143,333
Deferrod (14,739,675) (50.065.13%)

g‘}!OD!Jg. !g;6i92 3.802)

Ths componsats of the Baxk's not deforved tax asset Hollow:
2020 2019

Defecrod tax assets oo

Allowance for credit and izspairmeeat losses
Accumulated dopreciaticn on IDvest=eat

R120965,867  RI11.827247

properties and repossessed chamels 6317337 3.831.422
Retirement Labdity 6,792,761 2.728.204
Loaze Labilizy 2,165, 016 §66911
Rsat pavabls 81,529

136,240,981 121,145.313
Deferred tax liabilities oa:
Uzmealized gain on foreclosure of mvest=eat
Propesties 7,642 385 7.768.267

7,642,385 7.768.267
R128598596  R113377.046

Deforred tax cvedited to OCT azmounted 20 #0.45 million and B2 24 million in 2020 a=d 2019,
respectvely (se0 Nots 19).

Ths Bazk did zot 36t up any defarred tax 233013 oo the foll orxry differences since
managament belicves :hnatu:mhzﬂypobab)o:hx&onhud&mbu&ﬁ%wﬂlhuﬂuod:a
the furze.

2020 018
Allowazncs for credit and impairmere losses RI904588  ®100,763,650
Lox= modiScaton 24,397,090 —
Excoss of MCIT over RCIT 3,570,911 o

NOLCO A 79,783,402 =
B138 655991  ®100.763 630

As of Docembaer 31, 2020, the Baxzk has incwmred NOLCO i taxable year 2020 whick can be claimed
33 deducton Som the regular taxable mcome for the next Sve (5) consecutive taxable years pursuant

0 Bayauiban 2, a3 follows:

Incoption Year Azsount Used Expired Balance Expiry Year
2020 R79,783,502 - #- R73.783.302 2025
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Details of the Bazk"™s excess MCIT oves RCIT follow:

Your Amoust Used Expired Balance  Expiry Yoxr
2020 $3.570911 ? - ®3.570911 2023

A rsconciliaton of stamutory incemss tax to the effective income tax is as follows:

N 2020 2019
Starztery tncome DX (®17,620,045) ®14622213
Tax effectof:
Movement: = unrecoznized dofecred tax asiets $.393 564 ($2.844351)
Noadeductble sxpeaies 3,233,052 3.823.151
Tax-paid and nontaxable incoms (1.706.027) (2.426.503)

Eformve moome Bx (#7.699.456) (#76.925.502)

President Rodrigo Duterte siznoed into lyw on Mareh 26, 2021 the Corporate Rocovery and Tax
Iaceasives for Exterpeizes (CREATE) Act to atact meore invesanaensts and msaintais Sical prudeace
and stabilicy i= the Philippings. Republic Act (RA) 11534 or the CREATE Actiamoduces reforms to
the corporate incomoe tax and incentives systems. It takes effect 135 davs after its commplete publicaton
in the OfScial Gazette or iz 3 sewspaper of gezara] circulation or Apail 11, 2021

Ths following are the key changes to the Philippins tax law purnant to the CREATE Act which Rave
a3z impact oo the Bank:

o Effsctve July 1, 2020, regular corporaze incoms tax (RCIT) mate is reduced from 30.00% o
25.00% for domestic and resident foreizn corporaticns.

o Minimum corporate income tax (M CIT) rate reduced Som 2.00% 20 1.00% of gross income
eSectve July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2023.

As clariSed by the Philippins Financial Reportag Standards Council in its Pitlippine Interpretations
Commiree Q&A No. 2020-07, the CREATE Act was oot considered substantively exacted a3 of
Decamber 31, 2020 oven though somae of the provisions Rave resoactve e fect to July 1, 2020,

Ths passage of the CREATE Actinto law on Maxch 26, 2011 is considered a3 a pez-adjusting
subieguent event Accerdingly, cuwrent and defaryed taxes a3 of 22d for the year ended

Decsmber 31, 2020 cont=ued to be commp=ied and msaswred uiing the applicable income tax rasss as
of Dacamber 31, 2020 for fizancial reperting psposes.

Applvizg the provizions of the CREATE Act the Company would have besa subjected 20 lowsr
rexular cosporate income tax of 25.00% and minissuss corporate iacome tax rate of 1.00%: eFectve
Fuly 1, 2020.

Based oa the provitoas of Revenue Rexalatios (RR) No. 2-2021 dated April §, 2021 issued by e
BIR the prorated MCIT rate of e Bazk for CY2020 i3 1.50%. This will result in a3 lowss provision
for cusTemt Income tax for the year eaded Decamber 31, 2020 and an overpaymeat incomo tax payable

as of Decormber 31, 2020, amonnting to B2.68 million and 30.09 millica , respectively, or a reducten
of B0.89 million. The reduced amoust will be reflected in the Bazk's 2020 ansusl income tax reotuen

Howeves, for fnancial reportinx pusposes, e chxages will only be recozgnized in the 2021 fnancial
statomeats.

Meroover, this will sosult iz lower dofecred tax assets in 2021 and bonefits Som dofecred tax for the

your thez coded of R107.19 =illon and B8 .67 millica, respectvely. Thoso reductcons willbe
recognized in the 2021 Enancial statemnents.

"
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Related Party Tranzaction:

Parties aro consideced 2o be related if ome pasty bas the abilisy, directly or indirectly, 20 conwol the
other party or exarcise sipnificant influcace over e other party in making fimancial and operating
decisicas or if oy ave subjected to common coawol of commeon immiScast influsace such a3
subsidiaries and associates of subiidianies or othar reland partes. Ralated parties may be mdniduals
OF COTPOTAte STUTes.

The Baxk has several busine:s relatonsiops with related parties. Transactions with such parties are
=ade in the crdinxry course of business and oo substansally same terms, including izterest and
collateral, as thoze provailing at the time of comparable mansactons with other parties. Thee
Tassacticas alio did 2ot mvelve more than the normal nik of collectability or present other
=nfvorable conditons.

Detadls on significant related pasty tansactions of the Bank follow:

2t 2073
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23. Contingencie:

Toe Bazk 3s alwo involved in a pumber of legal procesdings. The estimate of the probable costs for

ths resoluticas of thete claims Bas been developed i conmsultaton with cutiids coznsel bandling the
Bank's dofonse and is based cx 2= azalysis of potsatial results. The Baxnk dees oot belisvs thatthess

procesdings will Z3ave a matecial adverne offect on the Exancial stateznents
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Fellowing is a summary of the Bank™s commit=snes and ceatingent liabilities at their oquivaleat peso
ceaactaal amounts:

2020 2019
Lats deposit'paymeat recaived $644,091 R358.473
Ieazms beld for safckesping 15,491 16,134
Ohar coatizzent account 6,098 3221
Total 665 6350 ®519.828

& -

Odher coatingent account includes post-dated chocks and itemns Beld as collatenal valued at
¥l peritem

. Note to the Statement of Cazh Flow:

Noa-casd investing and Ssancing activities that relate to the analysds of the statement of cash flows of
the Saxk are as follows:

Under the ZCQ gidelines, the governmont idamtficd banks as one of the essential business

ernablishoments that needs to bo openaiozal. The Bazk exiures cozznued openatons and
wnimterrupted services and wiggered business coztanity plan. Ths Bazk is cemmmined to provids the
Mm.ﬂmmﬁcbcmaswwasww&mwtmpmmmm
of the ECQ. Txe bead offce implemmsated measure: and operated uwnder business coxtinuity plan.

Iz order 2o alleviate difSculties faced by e geaaral public, the BSP issned guidelines on which will
eacomage e BSP-Supervised Financial Instrations (BSFIs) to provide Exancial relief to thedr retal
cmitomers, corporate clionts and employess affocted by the cutbreak of the COVID-2019. BSFIs
wnder rebabilitatios programs may be given 2 moratorizm o their moathly payments atare dus to
the BSP. Banks wiich :mtend to avadl or Zave availed of the BSP rediscomating SHeility are eatitied 20
(3) 2 60-day mace pericd on the sertlemment of outstanding rediscounting obligatons with the BSP,
without pezalty charges, (2) resractaring of rediscounsd Joans of their ead-user borrowers affscted
by tae COVID-18, a:.:l (nz)md slgbility criteria. The mexures may already be availed up to
o2 (1) your from § Maxh 2020. T3 period may be extended depanding o2 the developmmants of the
COVID-19 sitzatica.

Ths Bazk carried cut tkelstal crow and rotation schedules for highly cnitical functons, opened a3
much foazible branches, a=d ensured cask ity i3 ATMs. Ozline lean applicaton for APDS
products is available. To case the burdea of chionss, the Bank offersd 30 to 90 dyys grace peniod for
Joan paymears. This reszlted to a modification loss amounting to R79.54 million. Asof
Decamber 31, 2020, the net kmpact of the loan mediScaticn afer subsoquaent accreton of the
meodified loass amonnted to #2440 million (08 Note §).

. Approval of the Releaze of the Financial Statement:

Ths accompanying financial statements of the Bank were approved and authorized for issue by 26
BOD oa May 20, 2021.

2020 2019
Increase in repossessed chastels due to foreclosure B4,664,015 R2.615.186
Sale of mvestent propertes on accouat 1,292,000 20,509,200
Increase in propacty equipmest due 20
reclassifications from investment propesty 1,021 944 -
Inareass in Ivesmmeat properties due to forsclosars 553,908 3,701,330
Efesct of PFRS 16
Increase in property and equipmoest 12,384,404 47,688,122
Increase = lease Eability 12,382,374 +4,520,658
Docroase in other assets - 5,768,570
Decroase in accroed sxpensos - 3,195,118
Recommiton of nght-cfnie of assetand
loaze Labilisy - 142,548
Lo2is contessions 624,579 -
25. COVID-19 Outbreak

Koy actons were txplemenred to preveat and ceamol 6 Coremaviras Diseass 2019 (COVID-19)
outbreak in the counwy. Oz March 13, 2020, 3 Memorandum on Stringent Social Distancing
Moaswres and Further Cuidelines for the Management of the COVID-19 Sitnatica issued by the
Executive Secretary of the Pxilippines placed Natozal Capinal Region (NCR) wder these measures
for 30 days starting March 15. Oa March 16, 2020, Pros.dma Proclamation No. 929 was issued
declaring 2 state dcahz:q&:ou;bm&o%ppmfwap.&do‘u(@nw&s a=d izoposed an

Enhanced Community Quaranting (ECQ) thronghont s island of Luzen ussl Apal 15, 2020, u=less
exler Bfiod or extendsd. Thoewe measures have caused dizrupsSons to buiinssses and econemic

activities, aad its impact on buiinestes coarizas 10 evelve. OnMarch 24, Repubdlic ActNo. 11462
was saacted declaning the existence of 2 natoza] e arizing Som COVID-19 situstion and a
sadca2] pelicy in coznecton therewith, and awthenzing the President of the Republic of the
Philippines for a Bouited period and subjoct to restrictions, 10 GXeCCite powsess nocossary and proper to
cary out the declared naticonal policy and for other pwposes. Oa Apzl 1, 2020, the Implexeating
Rules and Rezulatons (GRR) of Secton +{a3) of Republic Act No. 11465, Othernize Roown 23 the
“Bayzaiban to Heal As Oz¢ Act™ was released

"

. Supplementary Informadon Required under Revenue Regulation: (RR) No. 15.2010

Oz Nevember 23, 2010, the Burean of Intemal Rsvezus (BIR) issued RR No. 15-2010 prescnibing
the manner of complancs I connecton with the propanation and submissios of Snancial statements
accompazying the tax retaras. It includes provisions for additonal disclesure requives=ents in the
20%s 20 the fimancial statemments, particulyly on taxes, Saties and Lcanses paid or accrued during the
year.

Ths Bazk reported 2ad'or paid the following types of taxes for the ysar

Taxes 2od Ticenses
Iz 2020, s2xe: 20d Boenses of the Bank consist of:

Gross tecaipts tax ®15,133.504
License, permits and others 2.284.111
R17.427.613

Raczmenncy Snmp Taxe:
Ia 2020, the Baxk kas paid documeatxy stamps tax assountiag to #2,622,218.
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Witholding Taxes
Ths following table shows the breakdonwa of taxes withheld and remitted = 2020:

Tozal
Asmsount Remittancss Balancs
Witkbolding taxes oo
compeasation and bezeSts #3219328 #2.502.097 ®717231
Withholding tax o= depesits 329324 3116234 178,010
Expasded withbolding taxes 20526595 1.608.727 243 968
7 #3.566.267 27.227.058 ®1.339.209

As of Docember 31, 2020, there are no cutitanding tax cases under investizaticn, Litgaton or
Prozecuton i comrt of bodies outiide BIR.

. Supplementary Informadon Required uader BSP Circular No. 1074

Oxn Febrmary 7, 2020, the BSP in3ued Circular Ne. 1074 to amend cortain provisions of the MORB
and Mazuma! of Regulations for Foreizn ExcRange Transaction: (MORFXT). The Ccular provides
for sew and amended dsclosure requirssseats 0 the andited fimancial statemsears, which are 20 be
presented sither (i) o= speciSc notes to the Snancial statexnents, or (1) in a separate oote contaizing
supplezmentary informaton as requized by the BSP. This supplemseatary information is 2ot a requived
disclosure undsr PFRS.

In compliance with the requizements 36t forth by Circular No. 1074, Seroundar ave the supplomentary
mformaton:

Sapinal Samuzmenty
As of Docexmber 31, 2020 and 2018, the Ba=k has cunitanding capital stock a3 shown below

Sharss Amoeme
Cozx=ea stock - R100.00 par valme
A=Socized 20.000,000 ___22.000.000,000
Iisusd and ontsanding
Saixocer »bemmomz and aad of veer - 12439.600 B1.235.960.000

Breakdown of total lcass 33 to security and status

Ths following tabls shows e breakdown of receivable fom customars as to secursd and unsecured
axd the breakdows of secured receivables Som customaers a3 1o the type of securnity asof

December 31, 2020 204 2019:

2020 2019

Amousnt L) Amouat s

Secured by:
Roal ostate #174,089,430 .73 RIED 277015 8§51
Charsl 129,001,546 7.21 153,527,609 §42
Deposithold-outs 927,764 0.05 512,812 003
Jowelzy 20,277,723 113 13.2235.520 082
324,296,463 1812 329743855 1809
Uzsecured 1465352391 §18§ 1.492675.510 8191

21789 648854 10000  R1.822419.355 10000

As of Docazber 31, 2020 and 2019, denails of stares of loans follow:

Performene Noo-Performize

2020 2019 2020 2019
Cemmuzgccn $1357,041,786 1387594581 B9 347503  R06199.217
Conxmarcial 85,017,815 7133323 66818532 104.368,958

Raal sstars §2,670.110 46746223
B1525429671  R1.50607+336

052748 5.587.314
#2 83 2316345029

Fizancial performance indicators
Ths foliowing basic ranes measure the fnancial performance of the Bazk:
_ _2020 2019
Raoturn 02 2verage equity -195% 20.65%
Ratwrn oo average asiots -182% 5.02%
Neot Interost MArgin 02 AVWIZO XTI 36N 15.20% 15.2%9%
Ths following forzoulas were used 0 computs the indicaters:
Performxxe oacare BSP Prescnbed Formesls
Ronzn on Avengs Eqoy Net Incoms (or Loss) after Incorss Taxx 100
Avsaame Torl Copital Acconzes®
[ Ronzm on Avngs st w%zw
Avenage Tonl Aswetn®
Nt =xwrent Mugm Nt Inzome Iocome x 100
Avenage Intorgst Ferning Azsees®

*Avergge awan 0 calovivad harad on awrres? yoarend and prvvioss wear-end dalances

Under baokizz rerzlatons. foxmaal mitmeons shall adept e ECL meds! ia measunag credit
Impadrment, in accordance with the provisions of PFRS 9. With the issuance of BSP Cucular 941,
Amendments to the Regulanons on Pavt Due and Non-Performing loans, Joans and lease receivadbles,
or azy Snancial 3336t thall be considered son-perfomming, eves without any missed coayacrual
pryments, whea it is considered impaied under existing accommting standards, classified 23 dowbtful
or less, I Lugation, and'or there is evidence that full repaymeat of principal and‘or imterost is
wolksly without forscliosuwe of collasenal, if azy.

Al other leans, evea if not considered impaired, shall be conuidered non-performing if any principal
andler interest are

1. Uszpaid for more than zinsty (90) days Som conactual due datwe, or accrued interssts for mere
thas ninety (90) days have bean capinalized, refnanced or delayed by azreament.

2. MicroSnancs and other small loans with similar credit chanacterizacs hall be comsidersd noz-
performming after contracraal due date or after it has become past dus for mors than 7-10 days.

3. Rastructared Joans shall be comsidered noz-parforming. Homwever, if prior to resruchwing, the
loazs were categorized a3 pacforming. such ¢lassiScatios shall be retamed.
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Reostucnured recedvables which do not mest the requiremeats 0 be meated a3 performing recaivables
shall alio be comsidered 23 NPL3. Restuctared receivables as of Decamber 31, 2020 and 2029
amounted to $#60.03 millics 22d #72.40 m:lZon, respectvely.

As of Docaxnber 31, 2020 and 2019, details of gross NPLs follow:

2020 2019
Seczzed R48,666,699 ®53.380.5%2
Uszzecured 215,552,484 262964 487

R264.219.183  ®316.345.029

Ths NPLs of the Bank ot fully coversd by allowancs for credit losses 23 reported to BSP follow:

_ ) 2020 2018
Tonl NPLs 2264219183 ®316,345.029
Allowazce for credit losses® 159,009,408 239.576.780

R105,209,.775 ®76,765.258

A Bneance fr cradi lowes per BSP

Siznifcane crodit sxposures 33 to industrvisconcmic sector
As of Docambar 31, 2020 azd 2019, information oa the concentration of credit 35 t0 induswy, netof

=noxned interest and discon=t, follows:

2020 2019
H Amount ) Asscunt )
Cearmptica Papeses F948861,108 5533 RS 05119 3631
Other secvico actiSes 339,101,327 .77 603,521,571 3829
Wholezals 2ad renl eade, repair of moter
vekicles 2ad moteetyclss 190,356,026 11.10 273770176 1550
Raal ¢sox% actvities 98181.,710 S 61038433 346
Agscultrs, nmting and Sk 78106485 455 103733488 3588
Casmcnon - 2059311 120 3253624 184
Education 14730202 086 14683298 083
Magufactring §178142 048 7.666565 043
Profsssicasl, iGatiSe xod techmical ranices 629224 037 5847104 033
Accommodicn and fHod senioss actvities 6355502 037 5959863 034
Traspormation and ssccaze 2354984 014 2758356 016
Finaacisl seemed i 393901 0.02 §.228547 047
Othary 1494782 0.09 28093592 016

#1.715057,783 100.00 B 7as s 01 10000
- A —

Ths BSP considers that concantation rizk exists whea the total loan exposure o 3 particular industry
or eccoomic sector exceods 30.00% of the tonal loaz porzfolio.

I=formation oz related pasty loans
Ia the crdinary course of business, the Bank has loan tansactons with afftliates and with certain

DOSRI Exiiting banking rogulations Limit the amount of individzal loans to DOSRI, 70.00%¢ of
which must be secuwred, to the retal of ther respectve deposits and book value of their respective
mvesxnents in the Bank. o the agzregate, Joans to DOSRI gezernally should not exceod e Bazk's
sotal regulatery capital or 15.00% of tonal loam portfolio, whichover:s lower.

On Jazuary 31, 2007, BS? Cireular No. 360 was issusd providing the mules and regulations that
govera loans, other credit accommedations and guanastoss grasted to subsidiaries and affliates of
baxnks azd quasi-banks. Usnder te 323d circular, the total outstanding exposmres 20 oach of a bazk’s
subsidiarics and afSkates shall sot exceed 10.00% of bank’s 2ot werth, the ussecured portios of
which s2all oot exceed 5.00% of such net worth.

Further, the tomal ounitanding exposures to subsidiaries and afSliates shall not exceed 20.00% of the
2%t wersh of the lending bank. BSP Circular Ne. 560 is efective oa February 15, 2007.

The following table shows informatien relating to DOSRI accounss of the Bazk:

= - 2020 . 2019
Total cxutstanding DOSRI accounts # 4,569,293 24353251
Total cutstanding DOSRI accounts priorte

offoctvity of BSP Circular No. 423 4,569,293 353,251
Parcent of DOSRI accommts to total loans 0.27% 023%
Porcent of masecursd DOSRI acconnts to total

DOSRI accounts 5195% 67.17%
Parcent of nonperforming DOSRI accounts to tonal

DOSRI accounss 0.96% 161%
Parcent of past due DOSRI accounts 20 total

DOSRI accounts 0.96% 161%

As of Docemmber 31, 2020 and 2019, DOSRI lcans includs roal ostats loans to bank officers which
were grasted undsr the Back's Financial Assistance Program, as approved by the BSP, ames=ting to
§0.30 ilbon and #0.57 milliea, respectvely.

Commimmeats and coatageat Babilites
Following is a summary of the Bazk's commitments and costingent Habilities at their equivalent peso
coatractaal amounts:

2020 2019
Late depout paymeat recaived B644,051 R388373
Irozms Beld for safikesping 15,491 16,134
Othsr costagent account 6,098 3221
Total B665,.650 R619.828
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